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DEFINITIONS

In this annual report, unless otherwise required by the context, the following terms shall have the meanings set out

below.

“Annual General Meeting” or
“AGM”

“Board”

“China IC Fund”

“China” or “the PRC”

“Company” or “our Company’

“Company Secretary”
“Director(s)”

“EPS”

“Executive Director(s)”

“Extraordinary General Meeting”
or “"EGM”

“Grace Cayman”

“Grace Shanghai”

a hybrid annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 14 May 2020 at
2:00 p.m., with the combination of a physical meeting at Kowloon Shangri-La Hong
Kong, 64 Mody Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong and a virtual meeting online;

the Board of Directors of the Company;

China Integrated Circuit Industry Investment Fund Co., Ltd., a company
incorporated in the PRC on 26 September 2014; its shareholders include the
Ministry of Finance, the enterprises in the Integrated Circuit Industry Cluster, large-
scale state-owned enterprises, certain financial institutions and private enterprises.
It mainly focuses on the manufacturing of semiconductor wafers and takes into
account the upstream and downstream links covering wafer and IC design,
package test, equipment and materials etc;

the People’s Republic of China, but for the purpose of this annual report and for
geographical reference only and except where otherwise required by the context,
references in this annual report to “China” and the “PRC” do not include Taiwan, the
Macau Special Administrative Region and Hong Kong;

Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability on 21 January 2005 and, except where otherwise required by the
context, all of its subsidiaries, or its present subsidiaries where the context refers to
the time before it became the holding company of its present subsidiaries;

the Company Secretary of the Company;

the Director(s) of the Company;

earnings per share;

the Executive Director(s) of our Company;

an extraordinary general meeting of the Company;

Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation, an exempted company with
limited liability incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 5 October 1999 and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of our Company;

Shanghai Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation (_E/&72 - EaE8lEE

[R2®]), a company incorporated in the PRC on 20 December 2000 and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of our Company. It was deregistered on 3 August 2018;
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“Group”

“HHGrace”

“HHNEC”

“HKS’

“Hong Kong”

“Huahong Group”

“Huahong Real Estate”

“Huahong Technology
Development”

“Huali Integrated”

“Hua Hong Wuxi”

DEFINITIONS

our Company and our subsidiaries or, where required by the context, with respect
to the period before our Company became the holding company of our present
subsidiaries (or became such associated companies of our Company), the business
operated by such subsidiaries or their predecessors (as the case may be);

Shanghai Huahong Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation (/&2 # 7 /)
FEE AR /A A]), a company incorporated in the PRC on 24 January 2013 and
a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company;

Shanghai Hua Hong NEC Electronics Co., Ltd. (E/B8ZFEYWNECE T AR A A), a
company incorporated in the PRC on 17 July 1997 and a wholly-owned subsidiary
of our Company. It was deregistered on 3 August 2018;

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong;
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC;

Shanghai Huahong (Group) Co., Ltd. (E/8 %4 (£ E) AR 2 7)), a company
incorporated in the PRC on 9 April 1996 as Shanghai Hua Hong Microelectronics
Co., Ltd. and renamed as Shanghai Huahong (Group) Co., Ltd. in 1998, and a
controlling shareholder of our Company;

Shanghai Huahong Real Estate Co., Ltd. (E/8ZFE I FE X ER A A, a company
incorporated in the PRC on 28 October 2011 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Huahong Technology Development;

Shanghai Huahong Technology Development Co., Limited (/8 R ZERERE QD
A]), a connected person, a company incorporated in the PRC on 10 May 2010, and
a company 50% held by and consolidated with Huahong Group and 50% held by
HHGrace;

Shanghai Huali Integrated Circuit Corporation (/8% &K E K& E AR A 7)),
a company incorporated in the PRC on 8 August 2016. Its Shareholders include
Shanghai Huali Microelectronics Corporation, Shanghai Integrated Circuit Industry
Investment Fund Co., Ltd. and China Integrated Circuit Industry Investment Fund
Co., Ltd.;

Hua Hong Semiconductor (Wuxi) Limited, a company incorporated in the PRC on
10 October 2017. Upon such incorporation, Hua Hong Wuxi was held 100% by
HHGrace, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and continues to be held
51.0% by the Group following the completion of the transactions under the JV
Agreement and the Capital Increase Agreement, of which 22.2% is held directly
by the Company and 28.8% is held indirectly by the Company through HHGrace;
China IC Fund and Wuxi Xi Hong Lian Xin hold 29.0% and 20.0% of Hua Hong
Wuxi, respectively;
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DEFINITIONS

“Independent Non-Executive
Director(s)”

“INESA”

“JV Agreement”
“Listing Rules”
“Merger”

“NEC”

“Non-Executive Director(s)”

“QST”
“RMB”
“SAIL”
“SFC”
“SFO”

“Shanghai Huali”

“Shareholders”
“Stock Exchange”

“Wuxi Xi Hong Lian Xin”

the Independent Non-Executive Director(s) of our Company;

INESA (Group) Co., Ltd. (E/8&SE (£E) BRAF]), formerly known as INESA
Holding Group (£ /8 & & & & (& E) & R 2 A7), a state-owned company
incorporated in the PRC in December 1993, and a controlling shareholder of our
Company;

the JV Agreement dated 3 January 2018 entered into by the Company, HHGrace,
Hua Hong Wuxi, China IC Fund and Wuxi Xi Hong Lian Xin;

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, as amended or supplemented from time to time;

the merger of Grace Cayman and Hua Hong Semiconductor (Cayman) Inc., an
exempted company established by the Company in the Cayman Islands;

NEC Corporation, a company incorporated in Japan and founded in 1899 as
Nippon Electric Company, Limited;

the Non-Executive Director(s) of our Company;

QST Corporation (/W ERHZHBRAF]), a company incorporated in the PRC on
13 September 2012 and a connected person;

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC;

Shanghai Alliance Investment Ltd (/88X & BR A F]), a company incorporated
in the PRC on 26 September 1994, a controlling shareholder of our Company and a
major shareholder of Huahong Group;

the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong;

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended or supplemented from time to time;

N

Shanghai Huali Microelectronics Corporation (/8% J#E 7B R A 7)), a company
incorporated in the PRC on 18 January 2010 and a connected person;

holders of ordinary shares in the capital of the Company;
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited;
Wuxi Xi Hong Lian Xin Investment Co., Ltd., a professional investment company

incorporated in the PRC on 19 December 2017, jointly established by municipal
and district-level state-owned enterprises.
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

Dear Shareholders,

In a complex and changing macroeconomic environment, 2019 has been a lower revenue year for the semiconductor
industry with global semiconductor sales falling by 12%. With full support of our shareholders, customers, suppliers,
and employees, we overcame a challenging market and made great progress toward our goals. Under the strategic
guidance of our initiative, “Next 20 Years of Hua Hong”, a 12-inch wafer line was successfully put into production
in September at Hua Hong’s IC Research, Development and Manufacturing Base in Wuxi, embodying the ingenuity
and hard work of our employees. In Shanghai and Wuxi, our “8-inch + 12-inch” strategy is moving full speed
ahead, covering emerging markets for 5G mobile communication, Internet of Things, New Energy Vehicles, Artificial
Intelligence, and other new applications, to meet the diverse and growing needs of our customers.

2019 has been a year of growth and profit. The newly completed Hua Hong Wuxi 12-inch fab achieved the targeted
monthly capacity of 10,000 wafers and the capacity of our three 8-inch fabs steadily increased. Altogether, total
monthly capacity of our four fabs grew to 201,000 wafers (8-inch wafer equivalent). In 2019, the Company’s revenue
reached US$932.6 million, overcoming a lower total available market to achieve another record high with a year-on-
year increase of 0.2%; gross margin was 30.3%; net profit was US$155.0 million, accounting for 16.6% of revenue; and
ROE was 7.4%. As of the end of 2019, we have been profitable for 36 consecutive quarters. MCU product shipments
grew from 2014 to 2019 at a CAGR of 27%, with particularly strong performance in Asia. In 2019, the Company’s
power discrete product revenue increased by 14.2% year-on-year, taking advantage of the demand from industrial,
consumer electronics and the growing electric vehicle markets, including products covering low, medium, and high
voltage ranges.

2019 has been a year of innovation and recognition. Implementing our strategic plan, we executed on our commitment
to technology research and development. We focused on differentiated technology, covering technology nodes ranging
from 1 micron to 65 nanometers. The technical advantages of our differentiated platforms (embedded non-volatile
memory; power discrete; analog and power management; logic and RF) enabled us to meet the growing requirements
of our loyal high-quality customers. We have won many honors for our innovative achievements, significantly increasing
our stature in the international market. The Company won the “Second Prize for Scientific and Technological Progress
in Shanghai” and the “Golden Award in Innovative Application” at the 7th China Information Technology Expo for
technology development of advanced super junction MOSFET. The Company was also awarded “Enterprise with the
Greatest Growth Potential” in China New Energy Vehicle IGBT at PSIC2019, recognizing its achievements in IGBT
development. Our leading position in the expanding market for new energy vehicles is built on years of successful
experience in mass production of automotive electronic chips. The Company’s newly developed ultra-high voltage BCD
process platform is leading internationally in performance, enabling a domestic single chip solution for LEDs targeted
at the global environmentally friendly lighting market.

In 2019, we focused on bringing the 12-inch wafer line into production. With an investment of US$2.5 billion for the
first phase, our new fab generated a revenue of US$7.4 million and shipped around 4,000 wafers in the fourth quarter,
receiving the “Outstanding Contribution Award for Major Industrial Projects” in Wuxi. We have firmly established our
position in the 12-inch wafer market, inaugurating the “Next 20 Years of Hua Hong”. We will speed up the capacity
ramp to strengthen our market position and accelerate development of the domestic semiconductor industry.
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

Since the outbreak of the coronavirus, the Company has been taking every effort to protect the safety and health of
every one of our employees. We have formed an epidemic emergency reaction team, established a prevention and
control system, taken various measures strengthening the safety of our environment, completed a thorough screening
control on travel history, temperature check, health condition registration, field disinfection, etc. So far, those epidemic
prevention and control systems have worked out well, and our operations are stable and smooth. We will continue to
keep a close watch on epidemic prevention and control. We hope the pandemic will be globally contained soon and
the market will gradually stabilize.

Looking forward to 2020, Hua Hong Semiconductor will continue to thrive through technical innovation as a world-class
semiconductor enterprise. The narrower linewidth capability of our 12-inch wafer fab will support development of new
products, such as 65nm eFlash, 65nm RF-SOI, CMOS Image Sensors, and advanced NOR Flash. In terms of 8-inch
technology platforms, we will further enhance our embedded non-volatile memory technology by developing a smaller
memory cell size and lower mask-count process to meet the demand of high-end MCU market. As an important part
of the global semiconductor supply chain, our differentiated technologies will provide domestic and foreign customers
with advanced product solutions including cutting edge technology.

All Hua Hong Semiconductor employees are committed to improving returns for our shareholders, surpassing global
customers’ requirements, making significant contributions to the semiconductor industry for years to come, while
adhering to our core values, “Disruptive Innovation, Confidence, Initiative, and Teamwork”. We believe 2020 will be a
year of remarkable accomplishment for Hua Hong Semiconductor, capitalizing on our strong technology portfolio and
strategic position. Thank you for your continued support as we look forward to excellence in the future.

Mr. Suxin Zhang
Chairman and Executive Director

Mr. Junjun Tang
President and Executive Director

Shanghai, PRC
26 March 2020
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Corporate Culture

We empower our customers
through continuous innovation

Mission e

Creating value for shareholders,
customers and employees through
collaboration, innovation and being
a good corporate citizen

@AV R oER E B O B I I O o®

Spirit
Disruptive Innovation, Confidence,
Initiative and Teamwork
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mr. Suxin Zhang, aged 56, was appointed on 11 March 2016 as an Executive Director and Chairman of our Company
as well as a member of and Chairman of the nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”).
He is currently Chairman and Secretary of the Communist Party of Huahong Group, Chairman of Shanghai Huali,
Chairman of Huali Integrated, legal representative and Chairman of Hua Hong Wuxi. Mr. Zhang has extensive
experience in hi-tech strategic development, energy strategy research and the power equipment industry. Mr. Zhang
held various positions, including President of Shanghai Turbine Co., Ltd., Executive Vice President of Shanghai Electric
Power Generation Group, Chairman of Siemens Gas Turbine Parts Co., Ltd., Executive Director of Shanghai Electric
Group Company Limited, Vice President of Shanghai Electric (Group) Corporation, Secretary of the Communist Party
and General Manager of Shanghai Jingiao (Holdings) Limited, Chairman and Secretary of the Communist Party of
Shanghai Jingiao Export Processing Zone Development Co., Ltd. and Deputy Director of both the Shanghai Municipal
Development and Reform Commission and the Administration Commission of Shanghai Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Industrial
Development Zone. Mr. Zhang graduated from Tsinghua University with a Bachelor's degree in engineering and is a
professor-level Senior Engineer.

Mr. Junjun Tang, aged 55, has served as the President and Executive Director of the Company since May 2019. Mr.
Tang has extensive experience in the integrated circuit industry and management, and possesses strong coordination
and execution ability. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Tang was the Secretary of the Party Committee, Vice President
and Executive Vice President of Shanghai Huali from February 2010 to March 2019. He was concurrently the President
of Huali Integrated from August 2016 to March 2019. During the period from July 2008 to February 2010, Mr. Tang
was the Vice Secretary of the Party Committee, President of Trade Union and head of administrative and government
relationship of Shanghai Huahong NEC Electronics Co., Ltd. (/8% NECE T AR F)). Shanghai Huali, Huali
Integrated and Huahong NEC are associates as defined by the Listing Rules of the Company. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Tang successively held various positions, including Associate Chief Officer of Shanghai Bureau of
Instrument and Telecommunications Industry (_E/&EXREF L% /3), Technologist of Shanghai Radio No.17 Factory (=
BELRE L) and Technologist of Shanghai Semiconductor Device No.4 Factory (/&4 E8E22{FPUK). Mr. Tang
graduated from Southwest Jiaotong University with an Undergraduate’s degree in business administration. He also
graduated from China Europe International Business School with a Master's degree in business administration. Mr.
Tang obtained the Chief Senior Economist qualification in China in 2014.

Mr. Yu Wang, aged 47, acted as an Executive Director and the President of our Company from February 2012 to May
2019.

Mr. Jianbo Chen, aged 55, acted as a Non-Executive Director of our Company from February 2012 to June 2019.

Mr. Yang Du, aged 42, has served as a Non-Executive Director of the Company since November 2018. Mr. Du joined
China Development Bank on August 2005. From 2005 to 2014, Mr. Du held various positions in China Development
Bank, including Manager of the Large Corporate Client Department in the head office, Deputy Head of the Customer
Division in Henan Branch, and Head of the Project Development and Business Innovation Division in the Business
Development Department of the head office. Mr. Du has served as Chief Operating Director of Sino IC Capital Co.,
Ltd. (FEMIREEEABRETAE]) since December 2014 and General Manager of Shanghai Branch of Sino IC Capital
since October 2015. Mr. Du is also Director of Shanghai Integrated Circuit Industry Investment Fund Co., Ltd. (£/8%
RERREEREESRM B AF), Shanghai Integrated Circuit Industry Investment Fund Management Co., Ltd. (+
BEREREEREESLEEARAF), Huali Integrated and Shanghai Xinshuo Investment Management Co., Ltd.
(SR EER AR /AR]). In addition, Mr. Du serves as legal representative, Chairman and General Manager of
Sino IC Leasing Co., Ltd. (S\&@BEMREBGRETAR]). Mr. Du successively obtained a degree of Bachelor of Arts in
Chinese Language, Literature, an MBA degree and a degree of Master of Financial Management respectively from
Fudan University, Nagoya University of Commerce & Business and University of Salford in Manchester of England, and
obtained the Senior Economist qualification in 2015.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mr. Takayuki Morita, aged 60, has been a Non-Executive Director of our Company since July 2009. Mr. Morita joined
NEC in April 1983. From 1983 to 2011, he held various positions in NEC, including Manager of the International
Planning Division, and Senior Vice President and Executive General Manager of the Corporate Business Development
Unit. Mr. Morita is currently the Senior Executive Vice President and the Chief Financial Officer at NEC and has held
this position since June 2018. He also served as an auditor at Japan Aviation Electronics Industry Ltd from 24 June
2008 to 26 June 2012. He currently has board representation in NEC as well as in Japan Aviation Electronics. Mr.
Morita graduated with a Bachelor’s degree in law from the University of Tokyo.

Ms. Jing Wang, aged 49, has been a Non-Executive Director of our Company since June 2019. She is currently
President of Huahong Group, Vice Chairman of Shanghai Huali, a Director of Huali Integrated and a Director of Hua
Hong Wuxi. Ms. Wang has extensive experience in management and economic development. During the period from
December 2003 to December 2007, Ms. Wang was the Deputy Division Director of the Industrial Development Division
of Shanghai Municipal Development and Reform Commission and from December 2007 to February 2014, she was the
Division Director. From February 2014 to May 2018 she worked as a Deputy Director of China (Shanghai) Free Trade
Zone Management Committee (B (_E)8) BREBZHABREEZE) and was concurrently the Deputy District Head of
Shanghai Pudong New Area during the period from July 2015 to May 2018. She had also been employed by Shanghai
Investment Consulting Corporation (_E/&1% & #4372 7]), Shanghai Planning Commission (_t/&MstE|Z £ €), Shanghai
Comprehensive Economics Work Committee (/8 T4R& B TEZ E€) and Shanghai Municipal Development and
Planning Commission (_E/8M3ETEIZ) from 1992 to 2003. Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Wang was a Deputy
Director at Shanghai Science and Technology innovation Centre Development Office (/8RS AT ORI A
=) and Shanghai Zhangjiang Hi-tech Industrial Development Zone Management Committee (/8 5R/ LS FHMTE 2
HEEEZZ) from May 2018 to May 2019. Ms. Wang graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong University with a Bachelor’s
degree in technical economics in 1992. She also graduated from Fudan University with a Master's degree of world
economics in 2003 and is a Senior Economist.

Mr. Jun Ye, aged 47, has been a Non-Executive Director of our Company since February 2012. Mr. Ye has more than
20 years of experience in finance and investment. Mr. Ye has successively held various positions in SAIL, including
Manager of the Investment Banking Division and the Business Development Division, General Manager Assistant and
Deputy General Manager since 1996 and General Manager since May 2018. Mr. Ye is also a Director at Huahong
Group, Huali Integrated, Bank of Shanghai and Sino-US United MetLife Insurance Company Limited. Mr. Ye also serves
as the Chairman of Shanghai Zhaoxin Semiconductor Co., Ltd. and Sino Therapeutics Inc. Mr. Ye obtained a Bachelor’s
degree in industrial and international trade and a Master's degree in business administration from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang, aged 71, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of our Company. Mr. Chang has
extensive experience in accounting, auditing and financial management. He was a certified public accountant in
Hong Kong and a member of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants from 1978 to the end of 2003. Mr. Chang was
also a Fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales since January 1983, and he
held various positions at Ernst & Young starting in 1976. He became a Management Committee Member of Ernst &
Young in 1989 and was actively involved in establishing and monitoring the firm’s internal control and risk management
policy and procedures. Prior to his promotion to Managing Partner of the Professional Services Department, he was
Chairman of Ernst and Young's audit and advisory business services for four years. He was a Partner of Ernst and
Young and the Chairman of Ernst and Young China and Hong Kong prior to his retirement in 2003. He is a member
of the Investment Committee of Shanghai Fudan University Education Development Foundation and Fudan University
Education Development Foundation (overseas). He is also an Independent Non-Executive Director of Kerry Properties
Limited (stock code: 683.HK), and China Life Insurance Company Ltd. (stock code: 2628 HK) and was formerly an
Independent Non-Executive Director of China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1359.HK). Mr. Chang
obtained a Bachelor’s of Science degree in food science and chemistry from the University of London.

Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, BBS, JP, aged 68, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of our Company. Mr. Wong had
served as the PRC Managing Partner of two international law firms for 15 years. Prior to that, he had worked for the
Lands Department, Department of Justice and Legislative Council of the Hong Kong SAR Government for a total
of 10 years. He was appointed as Member of Airport Authority Hong Kong, Hospital Authority and the Competition
Commission from 2011 to 2018. He was the Chairman of the Hong Kong International Arbitration Centre and the
former President of the Law Society of Hong Kong and Inter-Pacific Bar Association. He is presently one of the Deputy
Chairmen of Hong Kong Inland Revenue Board of Review, the Chairman of Hong Kong Copyright Tribunal, the Director
of the Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited, and the Independent Non-Executive Director of Vinda International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 3331.HK), China Qilfield Services Limited (stock codes: 2883.HK and 601808.5Z) and
NWS Holdings Limited (stock code: 659.HK). In addition, he is the Honorary Lecturer, External Examiner and Professor
at The University of Hong Kong, The Chinese University of Hong Kong, City University of Hong Kong and Hong Kong
Shue Yan University. Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and a
Bachelor of Law degree from the University of London.

Mr. Long Fei Ye, aged 78, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of our Company. Mr. Ye held various positions
in the Shanghai Municipal Government. Mr. Ye was relocated to Hong Kong in 1991, and served until 1995 as the
Chief Executive of the “Shanghai Desk”, which was a cooperation arrangement for promoting Shanghai between the
Shanghai government and Arthur Andersen & Co. He then joined Kerry Holdings Limited in 1995, and served as the
Chairman and Deputy Chairman of Shangri-La Asia Limited from October 2000 to August 2003 and August 2003 to
March 2007, respectively. He was an advisor to Shangri-La Asia Limited from March 2007 to February 2018. Mr. Ye
obtained a Bachelor’s and Master’s degree, both in physics, from Fudan University.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 ¢ HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 13



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM

Senior Management
As of the date of this report, the Company’s senior management includes:

Mr. Suxin Zhang, aged 56, was appointed as an Executive Director and Chairman of our Company on 11 March 2016.
For more information about Mr. Zhang’s past experience and academic background, see the section headed “Directors
and Senior Management Team — Board of Directors”.

Mr. Junjun Tang, aged 55, was the President and Executive Director of the Company. For more information about Mr.
Tang'’s past experience and academic background, see the section headed “Directors and Senior Management Team
— Board of Directors”.

Mr. Yu Wang, aged 47, was the President and an Executive Director of our Company from February 2012 to May 2019.

Mr. Wei Xu, aged 62, was an Executive Vice President of our Company and was responsible for manufacturing
and engineering, human resources, administration, and security management of our Group, before he retired on 30
September 2019.

Mr. Heng Fan, aged 58, is an Executive Vice President of our Company responsible for Sales and Marketing. Prior
to joining the Company at the end of 2014, Mr. Fan was Director and President of Shanghai Huahong Jitong Smart
System Co. Ltd from 2003 to 2014. Before this, he held various positions including Research Analyst/Deputy Director
of Shanghai Institute of Microsystem and Information Technology, Chinese Academy of Science, and Vice President
of Shanghai Huahong Integrated Circuit Co. Ltd. Mr. Fan received his Bachelor's degree in microelectronics from
the Electronic Engineering Department of Fudan University and his Master’'s degree in Semiconductor Physics and
Semiconductor Device Physics from Shanghai Institute of Microsystem and Information Technology, Chinese Academy
of Science.

Mr. Daniel Yu-Cheng Wang, aged 57, is an Executive Vice President of our Company overseeing finance, information
technology, administration and compliance, listed company affairs and overseas human resources for our Group.
He joined Grace Shanghai in April 2001 and played a central leadership role in each stage of Grace Shanghai’s
Development and in the preparation for and implementation of the Merger and the successful initial public offering of
the Company. Mr. Wang has been Secretary of the Board of the Company since February 2012. Prior to joining Grace
Shanghai, Mr. Wang worked at LSI Logic Corporation in San Jose, Silicon Valley, California from August 1995 to March
2001 as the Division Controller in the Broadband Entertainment Division. Before joining LSI Logic Corporation, Mr.
Wang was employed by Franklin Templeton Investments in the U.S. Mr. Wang obtained a Bachelor’s of Science degree
in industrial engineering and operations research from the College of Engineering, University of California, Berkeley,
and a Master’s of Business Administration in finance and banking from the University of San Francisco.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM

Dr. Weiran Kong, aged 56, is an Executive Vice President of our Company and is in charge of technology
development. He joined Grace Shanghai in March 2003 and has over 25 years’ experience in the semiconductor
industry, with a proven track record of driving innovations in the area of NOR Flash, Logic and embedded Flash.
Before joining Grace Shanghai, Dr. Kong was based in the U.S. and has worked for Sun Microsystems, Inc., LS| Logic
Corporation and ISSI. He obtained a Bachelor’s degree in physics from Nankai University in Tianjin and graduated
with a Master’s of Science degree in electrical engineering and a Doctorate degree in applied physics from Oregon
Graduate Institute of Science & Technology in the U.S.. Dr. Kong holds 13 U.S. patents, 58 PRC patents and co-
authored over 20 technical papers.

Mr. Weiping Zhou, age 53, joined the Company at the beginning of 2018 as an Executive Vice President and is
responsible for manufacturing and security management. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Zhou was the Executive
Vice President of Shanghai Belling Corporation Limited, the General Manager of Ningbo Shanshan Ulica Solar
Technology Developing Company Limited, the General Manager of Shanghai Belling Microelectronics Manufacturing
Company Limited, the Deputy Secretary to the Communist Party Committee, President, Chief Executive Officer,
Secretary to the Communist Party Committee and Vice President of Advanced Semiconductor Manufacturing
Corporation Limited. Mr. Zhou graduated from East China Normal University with a Bachelor’'s degree in solid state
electronic technology, and subsequently obtained a Master’'s degree in business administration from Fudan University
and is a professor-level Senior Engineer.

Dr. Qi Li, aged 57, is a Vice President of our Company and is currently responsible for purchasing, logistics, testing,
quality assurance, and planning. Dr. Li has over 20 years of professional working experience and joined Grace
Shanghai in January 2003. Prior to that, he was the Senior Engineering Manager at Applied Materials, Inc., in the
U.S. from 1995 to 2002. Dr. Li received a Bachelor's degree in physics from Peking University and his Master’s and
Doctorate degrees in physics from the University of Maryland.

Dr. Steven Lin, aged 58, is a Vice President of our Company and currently leads regional sales for North America and
Japan. He worked in various non-volatile memory technology development roles at several leading semiconductor
companies in the U.S. and joined Grace Shanghai in August 2006. Dr. Lin received his Doctorate degree in electrical
engineering from the California Institute of Technology.

Mr. Bill Lin, aged 51, is a Vice President of our Company and is currently responsible for our Fab 3 operations. He
has over 20 years of working experience in the semiconductor industry and joined Grace Shanghai in August 2000.
Before joining Grace Shanghai, he worked for Texas Instruments-Acer Inc. (later merged with Taiwan Semiconductor
Manufacturing Company Limited) from 1995 to August 2000. Mr. Lin received his Master's degree in chemical
engineering from the National Taiwan University of Science and Technology (previously known as National Taiwan
Institute of Technology).
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Mr. Mirko Sonntag, aged 43, is a Vice President of our Company and is currently responsible for the Company’s sales
operations and customer service in Europe. His expertise encompasses demand and supply chain planning and
business operations, with a strong foundation in business development. Mr. Sonntag joined Grace Shanghai in October
2008. Prior to that, he worked at Infineon Technologies AG in Germany. Mr. Sonntag obtained a Diploma in process
engineering and economics from the University of Applied Sciences Berlin and School of Economics Berlin, Germany.

Ms. Ying Chen, aged 47, is a Vice President of our Company and is currently responsible for general administration,
corporate image communication, and compliance. Ms. Chen joined Grace Shanghai in April 2001 and has 20 years
of administrative experience. Prior to this, Ms. Chen worked at Shanghai Fudan Forward Science and Technology Co.,
Ltd.. Ms Chen graduated from Fudan University with a Bachelor's degree in law, subsequently obtained a Master’s
degree in business administration from Renmin University of China and is a Senior Economist.

Mr. Guangping Hua, aged 53, is a Vice President of our Company and is currently responsible for our Fab 1
operations. He has over 20 years of working experience in the semiconductor industry and joined HHNEC in July
2007. Before joining HHNEC, Mr. Hua has worked for Chartered Semiconductor Manufacturing Limited (Singapore)
and Advanced Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation Limited. Mr. Hua graduated from Tsinghua University with a
Master’'s degree in microelectronics engineering.

Mr. Liang Yao, aged 55, is a Vice President of our Company and is currently responsible for our Fab 2 operations. He
has nearly 30 years of working experience in the semiconductor industry and joined HHNEC in August 1997. Before
joining HHNEC, he worked for China Huajing Electronics Group Co., Ltd. from 1987 to October 1996. Mr. Yao received
his Bachelor’s degree in metal materials studies from Nanjing Institute of Technology.

Mr. Lihua Ni, aged 51, is a Vice President of the Company and Factory Director of HH Fab 7. He joined HHGrace in
May 2018. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Lihua Ni successively worked for Wuxi Huajing Group Co., Ltd. (5% &
£ E/~d]), Shanghai Hua Hong Microelectronics Co., Ltd., Shanghai Hua Hong NEC Electronics Co., Ltd., and acted
as a Department Manager at Shanghai Xinjin Semiconductor Fabrication Co., Ltd., Department Head at Shanghai Hua
Hong NEC Electronics Co., Ltd. and Deputy Factory Director at Shanghai Huali. He graduated from Xidian University,
with a Bachelor of Engineering degree and obtained a Master of Engineering degree from Shanghai Jiao Tong

University.
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Company Secretary

Mr. Xiaojun Wang, aged 65, was our Joint Company Secretary since June 2014, and was appointed as our Company
Secretary in June 2016 and resigned in November 2019.

Ms. Sui Har Lee, aged 42, has been serving as the Company Secretary of the Company since November 2019. Ms.
Lee is currently a Partner of Jun He Law Offices. She has around 14 years of experience in general business practices
and corporate financial transactions, such as assisting corporations in listing their shares on the Stock Exchange,
merger and acquisitions, capital reorganization, and compliance and regulatory matters in relation to the Listing
Rules of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Lee was admitted as a Solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong in 2005. Ms. Lee
graduated from City University of Hong Kong with the degree of Bachelor of Laws and obtained the degree of Master
of Laws from University College London.
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The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company diligently practices good corporate governance and has established corporate governance procedures
that comply with the principles in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules.

The Company understands the importance of sound corporate governance practices and recognizes the changing
regulatory environment. Therefore, the Company has continually monitored and updated its corporate governance
practices, from implementing the Code and evaluating the effectiveness of its practices, to responding to continuous
developments in the regulatory landscape.

Compliance with the Code Provisions

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company complied with the Code.

Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries with all of the Directors, each of whom has confirmed that he
has, throughout the year ended 31 December 2019, complied with the required standards set out therein.

Board of Directors

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility of managing the business and affairs of the Company. It has the
ultimate responsibility for the day-to-day management of the Company, which is delegated to the Chairman and the
management.

The nine-member Board currently comprises two Executive Directors, Mr. Suxin Zhang (Chairman) and Mr. Junjun Tang
(President) (appointed on 1 May 2019); four Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Takayuki Morita, Mr. Jun Ye, Mr. Yang Du and
Ms. Jing Wang (appointed on 28 June 2019); and three Independent Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Stephen Tso Tung
Chang, Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP and Mr. Long Fei Ye. More details of the Directors are disclosed on pages 11 to 13
of this annual report. The Company publishes and maintains on its website and on the Stock Exchange website an
updated list of the Directors, identifying their roles and functions.

Each of the Non-Executive Directors of the Company is appointed for a specific term of three years and is subject to

re-nomination and re-election by the Company in general meetings unless previously terminated in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the relevant letter of appointment or Director’s service contract.
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The Board meets regularly throughout the year. All Directors are given the opportunity to put items on the agenda
for regular Board meetings. All Directors have access to the Company Secretary to ensure that all Board procedures
and rules and regulations are followed. Full minutes of Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and
are available for inspection on reasonable notice. Any Director may, in furtherance of his duties, take independent
professional advice, where necessary, at the expense of the Company.

The Board is responsible for setting the strategic direction and policies of the Group and supervising management.
Some functions are reserved by the Board, including, inter alia, the monitoring and approval of material transactions;
matters involving a conflict of interest with a substantial shareholder or a Director of the Company; the approval of
the quarterly, interim and final results; other disclosures to the public or regulators; and the internal control system.
Decisions relating to such matters shall be subject to formal decisions of the Board. Matters not specifically reserved to
the Board and necessary for the daily operations of the Company are delegated to management under the supervision
of the respective Director(s) and the leadership of the Chairman.

The roles of the Chairman and the President are separate. The Chairman is responsible for the overall management
and operations of the Company and for proposing and reviewing the corporate directions and strategies of the
Company. The Chairman is responsible for formulating business strategies and provides leadership to the Board,
ensuring effective running of the Board, including that all appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely
manner. The Chairman ensures that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and
all Directors receive adequate, complete and reliable information. The Chairman of the Board highly values the
communication with the Independent Non-Executive Directors and will hold meetings with them at least once each
year without the presence of other Directors.

The President is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Company’s business and operations as well as the
implementation of the Company’s business strategies.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board at all times complied with Rules 3.10(1), (2) and 3.10A of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three Independent Non-Executive Directors representing at least
one-third of the Board; one of the Independent Non-Executive Directors is required to possess appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise. Each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors has made an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
is of the view that all Independent Non-Executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities Insurance
Appropriate insurance cover has been arranged by the Company to cover potential liabilities of Directors and Officers

of the Company regarding legal actions against said Directors and Officers of the Company and its subsidiaries,
arising out of corporate activities of the Company.
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Board Operation

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board held five Board meetings. The attendance record of each Board
member at Board meetings, meetings of the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”), the Nomination
Committee and the remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”), as well as the 2019
annual general meeting and extraordinary general meeting is set out below:

Audit Nomination Remuneration 2019
Board Committee Committee Committee AGM
meetings meetings meetings meetings and EGM
Executive Directors
Suxin Zhang 5 N/A 11 N/A 2/2
Yu Wang (Note 1) 2 N/A N/A N/A 1/2
Junjun Tang (Note 2) 3 N/A N/A N/A 1/2
Non-Executive Directors
Jianbo Chen (Note 3) 3 N/A N/A 2/3 2/2
Jing Wang (Note 4) 2 N/A N/A 1/3 0/2
Takayuki Morita 5 N/A N/A N/A 2/2
Jun Ye 2 2/5 N/A N/A 0/2
Yang Du 5 N/A N/A N/A 2/2
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Stephen Tso Tung Chang 5 5/5 N/A N/A 2/2
Kwai Huen Wong, JP 5 N/A 11 3/3 2/2
Long Fei Ye 5 5/5 11 3/3 2/2

Note 1: Mr. Yu Wang has resigned as an Executive Director and a President of the Company as of 1 May 2019. Before that, Mr. Yu
Wang attended two Board meetings.

Note 2: Mr. Junjun Tang was appointed as an Executive Director and a President of the Company as of 1 May 2019. After that, Mr.
Junjun Tang attended three Board meetings.

Note 3: Mr. Jianbo Chen has resigned as a Non-Executive Director and a member of the Remuneration Committee as of 28 June
2019. Before that, Mr. Jianbo Chen attended three Board meetings and two Remuneration Committee meetings.

Note 4: Ms. Jing Wang was appointed as a Non-Executive Director and a member of the Remuneration Committee as of 28 June
2019. After that, Ms. Jing Wang attended two Board meetings and one Remuneration Committee meeting.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company held one extraordinary general meeting on 28 March 2019 to
approve and pass the ordinary resolution regarding the share options granted in 2018 and 2019.

In place of physical meetings, the Board may circulate written resolutions for approval by the relevant members of the
Board except for matters where a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest that the Board has
determined to be material, in which case the matter shall be dealt with by a physical Board meeting (rather than a
written resolution) to comply with Article A.1.7 of the Code.

The Board, having considered the attendance records of the Directors, is satisfied that each Director spends sufficient
time performing his responsibilities.
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Continuous Professional Development

Directors shall keep abreast of their responsibilities as Directors and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company.

Under Code Provision A.6.5, the Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional development
programs to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. During the year ended 31 December 2019, all Directors were provided with timely updates
on the Company’s performance, financial position, prospects, and materials on new or salient changes to laws and
regulations applicable to the Group, to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.
Internally-facilitated briefings for the Directors will be arranged in the next financial year and reading material on
relevant topics will be issued to the Directors where appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expense.

The participation by each Director in continuous professional development for the year ended 31 December 2019 is
set out below:

Reading related rules and materials

Stephen Tso Tung Chang
Kwai Huen Wong, JP
Long Fei Ye

Name of Director and/or attending training
Suxin Zhang (Chairman) v
Junjun Tang (President) v
Jing Wang v
Yang Du v
Takayuki Morita v
Jun Ye v

v

v

v

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises one Non-Executive Director, Ms. Jing Wang, and two Independent
Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP and Mr. Long Fei Ye. The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
is Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP. Each member is sufficiently experienced and is appropriately skilled in the issues of
determining executive compensations in public companies. The Board expects the committee members to exercise
independent judgement in conducting the business of the committee. The roles and functions of the Remuneration
Committee include the determination of the specific remuneration packages of all Executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments, and making recommendations
to the Board in connection with the remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee should
consider factors such as the salaries paid by comparable companies, employment conditions elsewhere in the
Group, and the desirability of performance-based remuneration. A copy of the terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is available from the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website. The Remuneration Committee
shall meet at least once a year.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, three meetings of the Remuneration Committee was held to review and
recommend the share option scheme of the Company, which was approved by an extraordinary general meeting of
the Company held on 1 September 2015. The Remuneration Committee also reviewed the share option scheme of the
Company, as well as the remuneration of senior management staff and the Directors with reference to the remuneration
level of directors of comparable listed companies.
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Details of the emoluments of the Directors are set out in note 8 to the Financial Statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises one Executive Director, Mr. Suxin Zhang, and two Independent
Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP and Mr. Long Fei Ye. The Chairman of the Nomination Committee
is Mr. Suxin Zhang. Each member is sufficiently experienced and is appropriately skilled in the issues of nomination
of directors to the Board. The Company has provided the Nomination Committee with sufficient resources to perform
its duties. The Nomination Committee may seek independent professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to
perform its responsibilities. The roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board, make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy, with due regard to the board diversity policy, identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members, select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships, assess the independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors, and make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the
Chairman and the President, and monitor the implementation of the board diversity policy and review such policy,
as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness. The Nomination Committee has established a specific written committee
charter which deals clearly with its authority and duties. A copy of the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
is available from the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website. The Nomination Committee shall meet at
least once a year.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, one meeting of the Nomination Committee was held to assess the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company, make recommendation to the Board on the
retiring Directors’ eligibility for re-election at the AGM and approve the nomination of Ms. Jing Wang to the Board for
appointment as a Non-executive Director of the Company to fill the vacancy arising from the resignation of Mr. Jianbo
Chen. It also reviewed the Nomination Policy, the size and composition of the Board and the Board Diversity Policy, and
then endorsed the Nomination Policy and considered that the Board Diversity Policy was appropriate and effective.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”), any person appointed as a Director to fill a
casual vacancy of the Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election at the relevant general meeting, and any Director appointed as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election at the relevant general meeting. Every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years and shall be eligible for re-election in accordance with the Articles. The Articles also allow for removal of a
Director by an ordinary resolution.

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the remuneration paid and payable to the auditors of the Company, Ernst
& Young, for the provision of audit services and non-audit related services to the Company were US$0.56 million
and US$0.13 million, respectively. Details of significant non-audit related services include tax and risk management
advisory services.
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Audit Committee

At least one of the members of the Audit Committee has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required under the Listing Rules. None of the members of the Audit Committee
was a former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors within one year immediately prior to the dates of
their respective appointments. All members have appropriate skills and experience in reviewing financial statements
as well as addressing significant control and financial issues of the Company. The Board expects the members of the
Audit Committee to exercise independent judgement and delegates the responsibilities of the corporate governance
functions to the Audit Committee in order to comply with the requirement of the Code.

The Audit Committee currently comprises one Non-Executive Director, Mr. Jun Ye, and two Independent Non-Executive
Directors, Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang and Mr. Long Fei Ye. The Chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Stephen
Tso Tung Chang. The primary duties of the Audit Committee include the reviewing of the Company’s financial
reporting system, the nature and scope of audit review as well as the effectiveness of the system of internal control
procedures and risk management. The Audit Committee is also responsible for making recommendations in relation
to the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditors, and the reviewing and monitoring of the
independence and objectivity of the external auditors. In addition, the Audit Committee discusses matters raised by the
external auditors and regulatory bodies to ensure that appropriate recommendations are implemented. A copy of the
terms of reference of the Audit Committee is available from the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year. Reference is also made to the revised terms of reference of the
Audit Committee came into effect on 1 January 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Audit Committee held five meetings and a majority of the committee
members were present at the meetings. The major work performed by the Audit Committee with respect to the year
ended 31 December 2019 included reviewing and recommending the re-appointment of the external auditor, approving
the terms of engagement (including the remuneration) of the external auditor and the audit plan, reviewing the
unaudited quarterly results announcement, reviewing the unaudited interim report and interim results announcement for
the six months ended 30 June 2019, reviewing the audited financial statements and final results announcement for the
year ended 31 December 2018, reviewing the work of the Group’s audit department and assessing the effectiveness
of the Group’s systems of risk management and internal control. The Audit Committee also discussed with the
management to ensure that the Company has adequate resources, qualified and experienced staff in the accounting
and financial reporting function, training programmes and budget.

Summary of the Board Diversity Policy
The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) in compliance with Code provision A.5.6 on 1 January 2019.

The Policy aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board and does not apply to diversity in relation
to the employees of the Company, nor the board or the employees of any subsidiary of the Company. The Company
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in maintaining the Company’s competitive
advantage. In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity will be considered from several aspects, including
without limitation, differences in the talents, skills, regional and industry experience, background, gender, age, and
other qualities of the members of the Board, in order to maintain an appropriate range and balance of talents, skills,
experience, and background on the Board. In recommending candidates for appointment to the Board, the Nomination
Committee will consider candidates on merit against objective criteria and with due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board. In 2019 the Nomination Committee discussed and agreed on the measurable objectives for achieving
diversity on the Board and recommended them to the Board for adoption. At any given time, the Board may seek to
improve one or more aspects of its diversity and measure progress accordingly. The Company aims to maintain an
appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the Board that are relevant to the Company’s business growth.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Nomination Committee took the view that the measurable objectives
were achieved to a large extent. It paid particular attention to the cultural and educational background, professional
and technical experience, and skills of the members of the Board and also reviewed the composition of Executive
Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors so as to ensure appropriate independence within the Board.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in provision D.3.1 of the Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance with the Model Code, and the Company’s compliance with the
Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

Investor Relations

The Company maintains a website at www.huahonggrace.com with information and updates on the Company’s
business developments and operations, list of Directors and their role and function, constitutional documents, terms of
reference of the Board and its committees, procedures for nomination of Directors for election, Shareholder rights and
communication policy, corporate governance practices, announcements, circulars and reports released to the Stock
Exchange, and other information. Information on the Company’s website www.huahonggrace.com will be updated from
time to time.

Company Secretary

Former Company Secretary, Mr. Xiaojun Wang, has tendered his resignation as the Company Secretary and the
authorized representative of the Company on 12 November 2019. Ms Sui Har Lee has been appointed as the
Company Secretary and the authorized representative of the Company on 12 November 2019.

Ms Sui Har Lee is currently a partner of Jun He Law Offices. Ms Lee was admitted as a solicitor of the High Court of
Hong Kong in 2005. Ms Lee graduated from City University of Hong Kong with the degree of Bachelor of Laws and
obtained the degree of Master of Laws from University College London.

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring that the Board procedures are followed and that the
Board activities are efficiently and effectively conducted. She is also responsible for ensuring that the Board is fully
appraised of the relevant legislative, regulatory and corporate governance developments relating to the Company and
facilitating the induction and professional development of Directors.

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and the President, plays an essential role in the relationship between
the Company and its Shareholders, and assists the Board in discharging its obligations to Shareholders pursuant to

the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, Ms Sui Har Lee attended relevant professional seminars to update her
skills and knowledge and has complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Shareholder Rights

The Company uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure and comprehensive and transparent reporting of
its performance and activities. These include quarterly, interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars.
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The general meetings of the Company are a primary forum for communication between the Shareholders and the
Board. The Company encourages its Shareholders to attend and participate in general meetings to ensure a high
level of accountability and to keep Shareholders informed of the Company strategy and goals. The Chairman of the
Board, other Board members and the Chairmen of all the Board committees, or in their absence, other members of the
respective committees, are available to answer any questions from the Shareholders.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

Extraordinary general meetings may be convened by the Directors on requisition of Shareholder(s) holding not less
than one-twentieth of the paid-up capital of the Company or by such Shareholder(s) who made the requisition (the
“Requisitionist(s)”) (as the case may be) pursuant to sections 566 to 568 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”). The objects of the meeting must be stated in the requisition
which must be signed by the Requisitionist(s) and deposited at the registered office of the Company. Shareholders
should follow the requirements and procedures as set out in sections 580 to 583 of the Companies Ordinance for
convening an extraordinary general meeting.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings and Directing
Enquiries from Shareholders to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their written requests, proposals, enquiries, and concerns to the Company for the
attention of Chairman of the Board or the Company Secretary whose contact details are as follows:

288 Halei Road, Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Shanghai 201203, China
Tel: (86) 21 38829909

Fax: (86) 21 50809999

Email: IR@hhgrace.com

Voting by Poll
Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of Shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll.

Risk Management and Internal Monitoring
Risk Management and Internal Monitoring Objectives

Risk Management Objective
From a compliance perspective, the Company has implemented the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange to ensure the compliance with relevant requirements in a timely manner.

From the perspective of operations, the management team well understands the risks that may be confronted by the
Company as it undertakes future development. Therefore, risk management objective of the Company is to identify
and assess risks and take appropriate countermeasures to evade a risk entirely if possible, otherwise to manage these
risks to reduce their impact and keep them under control. The Company has constructed a robust risk control system
working on a continuous basis, established a risk management platform, clarified risk management mechanisms,
improved a risk map, and carried out an annual risk evaluation. We have developed a concise, scientific, practical and
efficient risk management and control model in line with the Company’s specific, evolving circumstances.
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Internal Control System Objective

The Company’s internal control system has fully implemented the requirements for a risk management framework as
set out by COSO (Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission) as well as the guidelines of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants for risk management. We refined the three tiers of risk map in the
processes and formed risk-oriented internal control evaluation by considering the Company’s ongoing operational
circumstances and business characteristics. The objective is to evaluate the effectiveness and applicability of our
internal monitoring system and provide reasonable guarantees for the effectiveness of the Company’s operating
activities, the reliability of financial reports, and compliance with laws and regulations.

Risk Management and Internal Monitoring System

To ensure our risk management work develops efficiently and forms a long-term mechanism, the Company has
established a risk management monitoring system comprising “three lines of defense”. It covers the roles and duties of
many different aspects as follows:

1st Line of Defense Business Departments

e Establish and maintain various departmental risk management mechanisms;
e Ongoing collection of risk data while performing day-to-day department tasks;
e Assist Risk Management Level in carrying out risk management work, including

providing necessary documents and samples, identify major risks related to the
department, and determine major risk countermeasures;

2" Line of Defense Risk Management Level

e Formulate/revise the Company’s risk management systems and provisions, and
submit them to the Company’s business management team and the Audit Committee
for deliberation;

e Set/update standardized risk management language terms to assure common
understanding of the risk management process, with timely acceptance and
implementation among relevant risk management departments;

e Based on annual risk assessment results, define the major risk factors and relevant
response responsibilities, organize and guide each department in making and
implementing response plans for major risks in its area, and follow up on the
Implementation;

3" Line of Defense Internal Audit Level

¢ Independently inspect and supervise risk management activities conducted by the
Business Departments and the Risk Management Level, and evaluate whether the
Company’s risk management mechanism is implemented effectively and efficiently;

e Urge departments or agencies to rectify problems discovered during the auditing
process, and monitor the ongoing status of the rectification work;

e Report the auditing results to the Audit Committee.
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Risk Management and Internal Monitoring Statement

The Board is responsible for the Company’s risk management and internal monitoring system, as well as ensuring a
review of the system'’s effectiveness. The Board designated the Internal Auditing Department to perform the internal
auditing function and granted it full independent responsibility and authority. The internal auditors audited the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal monitoring system every half year according to the
approved auditing scope and in accordance with the provisions in C.2 of the Corporate Governance Code, and no
material deficiency was found.

Based on audits by the Internal Auditing Department, the Board believes that the Company’s risk management and
internal monitoring system is adequate, trustworthy and effective. However, one must recognize that the Company’s
risk management and internal monitoring framework can only manage rather than completely eliminate risks that may
affect the Company’s ability to accomplish its business objectives. Therefore, it provides a reasonable but not an
absolute guarantee for the avoidance of material misstatement or loss.

With a view to identifying, handling and disseminating inside information in compliance with the SFO, procedures
including pre-clearance on dealing in the securities of the Company by designated members of management,
notification of regular blackout period and securities dealing restrictions to relevant Directors and employees,
identification of projects by code name and dissemination of information to stated purpose and on a need-to-know
basis, have been implemented by the Group to guard against possible mishandling of inside information within the
Group.

General

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility in preparing the Company’s financial statements for each financial
period to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments and estimates
that are prudent, fair and reasonable, and prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the auditors with respect to the financial reporting are set out in the Independent Auditors’
Report on pages 185 to 192 of this annual report.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. Suxin Zhang
Chairman
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The Directors present herewith the 2019 annual report and the audited financial statements of the Company for the
period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019 (the “Financial Statements”).

Principal Activities

The Company was a pure-play 200mm and 300mm-wafer foundry throughout 2019. As mentioned in the Letter to
Shareholders above, and further elucidated in this Directors’ Report below, the Company began delivering products
on 300mm wafers starting in the 4th quarter of 2019. We focus on providing wafer manufacturing services to our
customers based on our own differentiated semiconductor technologies. The activities of our principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 1 to the Financial Statements (Page 201-202).

Business Review

Revenue Analysis

Revenue of the Company in 2019 was US$932.6 million (a new record high), an increase of 0.2% over 2018. 2019
was the fifth consecutive year of maintaining gross margin above 30%. According to the forecast of IC Insights, a
renowned American market research organization, among the top eight pure-play foundries, the Company is one of
only two companies that have maintained positive annual revenue growth. The Company’s achievements in 2019 were
driven by our technological innovations, continuous optimization of product mix, expansion of our production capacity,
and increased demand for our differentiated semiconductor technologies, primarily for MCU, super-junction MOSFET,
general MOSFET, and IGBT.

Revenue by service

YoY YoY

2019 2019 2018 2018 Change Change

US$’000 % US$'000 % US$000 %

Semiconductor wafers 906,550 97.2% 911,435 98.0% (4,485) (0.5)%

Others 26,017 2.8% 18,833 2.0% 7,184 38.1%

Total 932,567 100.0% 930,268 100.0% 2,299 0.2%

° In 2019, 97.2% of our revenue was from the sale of semiconductor wafers.

Revenue by customer

YoY YoY

2019 2019 2018 2018 Change Change

USs$’000 % US$000 % US$000 %

Systems and Fabless companies 730,720 78.4% 721,334 77.5% 9,386 1.3%

IDMs 201,847 21.6% 208,934 22.5% (7,087) (3.4)%

Total 932,567 100.0% 930,268 100.0% 2,299 0.2%

e  Revenue from systems and fabless companies accounted for 78.4% in 2019, an increase of 1.3% over 2018.

° Revenue from IDMs accounted for 21.6%, a decrease of 3.4% over 2018.
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Revenue by geography

YoY YoY

2019 2019 2018 2018 Change Change

US$’000 % US$'000 % US$'000 %

China 546,029 58.5% 525,795 56.4% 20,234 3.8%
North America 150,392 16.1% 161,428 17.4% (11,036) (6.8)%
Other Asia 115,256 12.4% 117,963 12.7% (2,707) (2.3)%
Europe 70,818 76% 70,660 7.6% 158 0.2%
Japan 50,072 5.4% 54,422 5.9% (4,350) (8.0)%
Total 932,567 100.0% 930,268 100.0% 2,299 0.2%

In 2019, China was our largest market, with 3.8% increased revenue over 2018. The growth was primarily from

embedded flash memory MCU and Discrete.
Revenue from North America decreased by 6.8%.

Revenue from Other Asia decreased by 2.3%.

Revenue from Japan decreased by 8.0%.

Revenue by technology type

YoY YoY

2019 2019 2018 2018 Change Change

US$’000 % US$'000 % US$'000 %

eNVM 350,477 375% 361,341 38.7% (10,864) (3.0)%
Discrete 354,470 38.0% 310,488 33.4% 43,982 14.2%
Analog & PM 123,945 13.3% 142,131 15.3% (18,186) (12.8)%
Logic & RF 91,012 9.8% 94,549 10.2% (3,537) (8.7)%
Standalone NVM 11,805 1.3% 21,261 2.3% (9,456) (44.5)%
Others 858 0.1% 498 0.1% 360 72.3%
Total 932,567 100.0% 930,268 100.0% 2,299 0.2%

In 2019, eNVM was one of our main sources of revenue, with a decrease of 3.0% compared to 2018. Among
them, MCU products made an outstanding growth.

general MOSFET.

Revenue from Analog & PM decreased by 12.8%.

Revenue from discrete increased by 14.2% compared to 2018, mainly from super-junction MOSFET, IGBT and
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Revenue by technology node

YoY YoY

2019 2019 2018 2018 Change Change

US$’000 % US$'000 % US$'000 %

<0.13um 326,165 35.0% 331,521 35.6% (5,356) (1.6)%
0.15um & 0.18um 117,308 12.6% 131,300 14.1% (13,992) (10.7)%
0.25um 10,910 1.2% 15,482 1.7% (4,572) (29.5)%
>0.35um 478,184 51.2% 451,965 48.6% 26,219 5.8%
Total 932,567 100.0% 930,268 100.0% 2,299 0.2%

° Revenue from 0.13um and below technology nodes decreased by 1.6% in 2019.

° Revenue from the 0.35um and above technology nodes further pushing revenue contribution to 51.2%, mainly
from discrete.

° Revenue from 0.15pm & 0.18um decreased by 10.7%.

Revenue by end market

YoY YoY

2019 2019 2018 2018 Change Change

US$’000 % uss$ooo % Uss$0oo %

Consumer Electronics 581,094 62.2% 598,031 64.3% (16,937) (2.8)%
Industrial & Automotive Electronics 212,278 22.8% 187,930 20.2% 24,348 13.0%
Communications 99,537 10.7% 99,777 10.7% (240) (0.2)%
Computing 39,658 4.3% 44,530 4.8% (4,872) (10.9)%
Total 932,567 100.0% 930,268 100.0% 2,299 0.2%

e  Consumer Electronics accounted for the largest share of the Company’s revenue in 2019, a decrease of 2.8%
compared to 2018. Among them, discrete and embedded flash memory MCU had outstanding revenue growth.

e  Revenue from Industrial & Automotive continuous increased by 13.0%, mainly driven by increase of discrete and
domestic MCU.

° Revenue from Communications remained stable.

e  Revenue from Computing decreased by 10.9%.
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Capacity and Capacity Utilization

Fab (In thousands of wafers per month) 2019 2018 YoY Change
Fab1 65 65 0
Fab2 60 59 1
Fab3 53 50 3
Total monthly 8 inches wafer capacity 178 174 4
Fab7 10 0 10
Capacity Utilization (equivalent to 8 inches) 91.2% 99.2% (8.0)%

° In 2019, the capacity utilization rate was 91.2% as a result of including new capacity of Fab7 in the calculation
for the fourth quarter.

Wafer shipments
In thousands of wafers 2019 2018 YoY Change
Wafer shipments (equivalent to 8 inches) 1,974 2,016 2.1)%

° In 2019, the Company'’s wafer shipments decreased by 2.1%.

Research and Development

Hua Hong Semiconductor is committed to research and development, innovation, and optimization of differentiated
technologies, with a focus on embedded non-volatile memory (eNVM), discrete, analog and power management, logic,
radio frequency (RF). It continues to provide customers with highly cost-effective process technologies and services. In
2019, the “8-inch + 12-inch” strategy was substantially developed and implemented.

Technology platforms related to embedded non-volatile memory remained one of the major revenue sources of Hua
Hong Semiconductor in 2019, mainly for smart card chips and MCUs. In terms of smart card chips, 90nm eFlash
technology saw a strong year-on-year increase of 78% in shipments in 2019. The third generation of 90nm embedded
flash memory technology with proprietary intellectual property rights was successfully developed, reducing the unit
area by approximately 40%, thus enabling customers to maintain their products’ advantages in the market. This
achievement also provided preparation for the transfer to our 12-inch fab. 95nm SONOS EEPROM technology achieved
significant success in the domestic bank card market, with annual shipments of 0.2 billion chips. In addition to further
development of 8-inch platforms, the 90nm embedded flash technology platform was transferred to the 12-inch fab
in the fourth quarter of 2019. The first SIM card chip product was delivered from the 12-inch fab to customers by the
end of 2019, with yield exceeding expectation. Smooth progress was made in development of 65nm eFlash platform
technology and devices, with verification of the relevant supporting IP.
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Embedded flash MCU continued double-digit growth in sales in 2019, contributing to double-digit CAGR in sales and
shipments for all MCU products from 2014 to 2019. Driven by the growing trend of smart devices and applications
of the Internet of Things, our industry-leading 0.11 micron low power consumption and ultra-low leakage embedded
flash memory technology platform, has been widely recognized by customers around the world. A strong and growing
number of new products are being launched on this platform including general MCU, Type-C interface chips, image
stabilization chips, touch control chips, and smart meter controller chips. In order to meet the needs for large-capacity
and ultra-low leakage MCUs, 90 nm ultra-low leakage embedded flash memory technology was developed for the
8-inch wafer fab in the fourth quarter of 2019. These developments enhanced the Company’s competitive position in
embedded flash memory technology providing better differentiated services to our customers.

The discrete platform of Hua Hong Semiconductor, mainly covering general MOSFET, deep-trench super-junction
MOSFET (DT-SJ), IGBT and other mainstream technologies, continued to make a great contribution to revenue in 2019,
with a year-on-year increase of 14.2%, maintaining a double-digit growth rate for 5 years in a row. From 2015 to 2019,
both deep-trench super-junction MOSFET and IGBT saw a CAGR of over 50% in sales and shipments. In 2019, the
Company continued to cooperate with several leading global IGBT enterprises with a focus on products for industrial
and automotive electronics.

Thanks to the Company’s innovation in DT-SJ technology, the technical advantages of its unique deep trench epitaxial
filling process have gradually become well known. In 2019, the Company achieved successful development of
4th-generation super junction technology, trial production of engineering samples, and further optimization of key
performance indicators by 30%. This enabled a further reduction in the cost and switching loss of customer products.
The Company cooperated with several IGBT customers in our development of 1700V Trench Field-Stop IGBT, which is
being mass-produced and used in new energy applications, for example, wind turbines.

In 2019, Hua Hong Semiconductor’s power discrete technology made advances in the automotive electronics market.
Increasing demands for low-voltage MOSFET in the electronic stability program (ESP), as well as DT-SJ and IGBT in
charging stations and inverters for electric vehicles resulted in over 100% year-on-year sales growth rate for automotive
power discrete devices. The Company has become a reliable partner for customers in the global automotive electronic
power discrete market.

The analog and power management technology platform of Hua Hong Semiconductor has a wide voltage range from
5v to 700v, using technology nodes ranging from 1 microns to 90nm. In line with the trend of higher integration and
intelligence used in power management products, Hua Hong Semiconductor devoted considerable research and
development resources for 0.18 micron, 0.11 micron and 90 nm BCD (Bipolar-CMOS-DMOS) technologies, which were
developed as enhancements of the prior 0.35 micron BCD technology. In 2019, based on mass-produced 0.18 micron
second-generation BCD technology, third-generation BCD technology was optimized and upgraded reaching world
leading performance, targeted at worldwide customers. The 0.11 micron BCD platform compatible with embedded
flash memory is mainly oriented towards chips for automotive power supply systems, wireless charging, etc., while
the 90 micron BCD platform is mainly oriented towards chips for digital power supplies, digital motor drives, etc. Both
technology platforms were developed for a number of products, which have been launched.
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In addition to the above major platform technologies, Hua Hong Semiconductor continues to develop new
differentiated technologies. The Company has developed and optimized RF-SOI technology which addresses demand
in the radio-frequency front-end module market, establishing a leading position in China. In 2019, with the increase in
total available market and demand in domestic markets, the Company closely coordinated its development efforts with
several domestic customers. This development effort is expected to become a new driving force to establish a leading
position to address expected growth of radio-frequency technology in 2020.

As an important step for Hua Hong Semiconductor to develop its business outside Shanghai as well as integrate into
and serve the Yangtze River Delta integration strategy, the Company cooperated with the Government of Wuxi, Jiangsu
to establish Hua Hong Semiconductor (Wuxi) Co., Ltd. Formal incorporation and start of operations were achieved in
2019. The 12-inch IC production line with a total investment of US$10 billion, including a first-tranche investment of
US$2.5 billion, integrates special technologies and covers technology nodes ranging from 65 to 90nm. The planned
monthly capacity is approximately 40 thousand pieces. After completion of the factory and availability of the equipment
at the end of the second quarter, 65 nm logic technology process development was successfully completed and put
into operation in a very short period of time, making a significant contribution to sales in the fourth quarter. Meanwhile,
90 nm embedded flash memory technology was transferred from the 8-inch fab to the 12-inch fab and put into
production at the end of 2019, These accomplishments comprehensively support the new “8-inch + 12-inch” strategic
plan of Hua Hong Semiconductor.

Based on its technical innovations as a leading enterprise in semiconductor technology, the Company applied for a
total of 370 patents in 2019 and has been granted a total of over 3,400 Chinese and U.S. invention patents.

Outlook

Looking forward to 2020, the World Bank has forecast moderate growth for the worldwide economy in Global Economic
Prospects. The development trend of the global semiconductor industry continues to be in line with the macro
economy. According to predictions by market research institutions, the global semiconductor market will see growth
in 2020. The global foundry industry will evolve to positive revenue growth in 2020. However, there is uncertainty in
the global market predictions due to the unknown impact of the coronavirus. While we are very confident that, with the
growing maturity of China’s domestic IC design companies, continuous support of national policies, and rapid growth
of innovative and entrepreneurial enterprises, the domestic semiconductor foundry industry will be in a favorable
environment with long-term growth.
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Differentiated and innovative technologies will remain the focus of Hua Hong Semiconductor in 2020. For 8-inch
technology platforms, we will further enhance existing 95 nm and 90 nm embedded non-volatile memory technologies,
providing smaller memory cell and IP size, and a lower mask-count process, to meet the requirements of MCU markets.
We will optimize fourth-generation super junction technology, introduce hydrogen injection technology for high-quality
automotive IGBT, develop reverse-conducting IGBT (RC-IGBT), SJ-IGBT, and other new power discrete technologies.
In addition to efforts towards higher power density and lower power loss required for high-voltage power devices, we
will develop intelligent IGBT technology with on-chip sensors and highly reliable IGBT technology with a new thermal
dissipation feature. We are also focusing on improving 0.18 micron BCD third-generation technology and 0.11 micron
embedded flash memory-BCD technology to meet automotive electronics requirements for electric vehicles. We are
working on higher quality, fourth-generation RF-SOI technology to be mass produced for the emerging 5G market,
particularly in China.

Hua Hong Semiconductor (Wuxi) Ltd. is an important part of our overall “8-inch + 12-inch” strategy. The 12-inch fab in
Wuxi has been completed and put into operation, which means Hua Hong Semiconductor has the most advanced 12-
inch semiconductor production line devoted to differentiated technologies in Mainland China. This is also the first 12-
inch foundry in Mainland China devoted to power discrete semiconductors. The 12-inch ‘IC + Power’ business position
will provide two driving forces for the Company’s revenue growth: more extensive differentiated technologies; and
more production capacity to meet our customers’ requirements. We are developing and optimizing our 90 nm to 65
nm IC technologies including logic and radio-frequency, embedded flash memory, power management BCD, CMOS
image sensor, RF-SOI, as well as the power discrete technologies. Due to promising market predictions, the Company
has accelerated capacity expansion of the 12-inch production lines, so as to capitalize market opportunities for our
differentiated technologies.

The “8-inch + 12-inch” strategy of Hua Hong Semiconductor has been substantially developed and implemented, with
the use of the capacity and differentiated technologies of the 12-inch platform, along with continuous innovation of the
8-inch platform. In 2020, we will continue to promote the rapid and orderly development of the strategy, accelerate
research and development, and continuously provide more reliable products and services to our customers using a
variety of technologies. The Company is committed to becoming the world’s most competitive wafer foundry focused
on differentiated technologies.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Financial Performance

2019 2018 Change
US$’000 US$'000
Revenue 932,567 930,268 0.2%
Cost of sales (650,107) (619,114) 5.0%
Gross profit 282,460 311,154 (9.2)%
Other income and gains 69,091 43,613 58.4%
Fair value gain on an investment property 163 247 (34.0)%
Selling and distribution expenses (8,828) (7,771) 13.6%
Administrative expenses (169,796) (122,323) 38.8%
Other expenses (406) (11,106) (96.3)%
Finance costs (1,242) (2,203) (43.6)%
Share of profit of an associate 10,131 9,444 7.3%
Profit before tax 181,573 221,055 (17.9)%
Income tax expense (26,588) (35,447) (25.0)%
Profit for the year 154,985 185,608 (16.5)%
Attributable to:
Owners of the parent 162,237 183,158 (11.4)%
Non-controlling interests (7,252) 2,450 (396.0)%
Revenue

Revenue was US$932.6 million, an all-time high and an increase of 0.2% from the prior year.

Gross profit
Gross margin was 30.3%, 3.1 percentage points lower than in 2018 mainly due to decreased capacity utilization,
increased labor costs, unit cost of raw materials, and depreciation expenses, partially offset by an increase in average
selling price.

Other income and gains
Other income and gains were US$69.1 million, an increase of 58.4% compared to 2018, primarily due to increased
government subsidies, fair value gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, and interest income.

Selling and distribution expenses
Selling and distribution expenses were US$8.8 million, an increase of 13.6% from 2018, primarily due to increased
labor expenses.

Administrative expenses
Administrative expenses were US$169.8 million, an increase of 38.8% from 2018, chiefly due to increased labor,
engineering wafers, and depreciation expenses for the Hua Hong Wuxi fab.

Other expenses

Other expenses were US$0.4 million, a decreased of 96.3% from 2018, largely due to decreased foreign exchange
loss.
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Finance costs
Finance costs were US$1.2 million, a decrease of 43.6% from 2018, primarily due to decreased bank borrowings.

Income tax expense
Income tax expense was US$26.6 million, a decrease of 25.0% from 2018, primarily due to decreased taxable profit.

Profit for the year

As a result of the cumulative effect of the above factors, profit for the year decreased to US$155.0 million from
US$185.6 million, 16.5% below the amount for 2018. Net profit margin decreased from 20.0% to 16.6%.

Financial Status

31 December 31 December Change
2019 2018
US$’000 US$'000

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1,558,283 773,180 101.5%
Investment property 168,615 171,225 (1.5)%
Right-of-use assets 74,526 - N/A
Investment in an associate 73,142 64,005 14.3%
Equity investments designated at fair value

through other comprehensive income 207,689 208,357 (0.3)%
Other non-current assets 34,437 87,432 (60.6)%
Total non-current assets 2,116,692 1,304,199 62.3%
Current assets
Inventories 142,087 129,629 9.6%
Trade and notes receivables 164,968 176,797 (6.7)%
Due from related parties 9,262 10,800 (14.2)%
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets 113,453 12,479 809.2%
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 519,779 667,033 (22.1)%
Restricted and time deposits 70,776 337 20,901.8%
Cash and cash equivalents 476,286 777,000 (38.7)%
Total current assets 1,496,611 1,774,075 (15.6)%
Current liabilities
Trade payables 86,119 79,470 8.4%
Due to related parties 10,655 5,838 82.5%
Other current liabilities 372,343 239,890 55.2%
Lease liabilities 1,922 - N/A
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 4,300 4,371 (1.6)%
Total current liabilities 475,339 329,569 44.2%
Net current assets 1,021,272 1,444,506 (29.3)%
Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 21,502 26,227 (18.0)%
Lease liabilities 16,694 - N/A
Deferred tax liabilities 17,176 18,146 (5.3)%
Total non-current liabilities 55,372 44 373 24.8%
Net assets 3,082,592 2,704,332 14.0%
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Explanation of items with a fluctuation of over 5% from 31 December 2018 to 31 December 2019

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment increased from US$773.2 million to US$1,558.3 million, mainly as a result of the
construction of Hua Hong Wuxi.

Right-of-use assets/Lease liabilities

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities were recognized under HKFRS 16 after 1 January 2019. According to HKFRS
16, a lessee is required to recognize a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and
a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.

Investment in an associate
Investment in an associate increased from US$64.0 million to US$73.1 million, primarily due to profit shared from the
associate in 2019.

Other non-current assets
Other non-current assets decreased from US$87.4 million to US$34.4 million, primarily due to restating prepayments of
land lease as right-of-use assets.

Inventories
Inventories increased from US$129.6 million to US$142.1 million, primarily due to Hua Hong Wuxi starting production in
2019.

Trade and notes receivables
Trade and notes receivables decreased from US$176.8 million to US$165.0 million, primarily due to lower revenue in
the second half of 2019 compared to the second half of 2018.

Due from related parties
Due from related parties decreased from US$10.8 million to US$9.3 million, primarily due to decreased receivables
from certain related companies.

Prepayments, other receivables and other assets
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets increased from US$12.5 million to US$113.5 million, primarily due to
increased VAT deductible tax.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss decreased from US$667.0 million to US$519.8 million, primarily due
to payout from investment in financial products.

Restricted and time deposits

Restricted and time deposits increased from US$0.3 million to US$70.8 million, primarily due to investment in time
deposits.
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Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents decreased from US$777.0 million to US$476.3 million, mainly due to the reasons stated in
the cash flow analysis below.

Trade payables
Trade payables increased from US$79.5 million to US$86.1 million, primarily due to increased purchases of inventories
for Hua Hong Wuxi.

Due to related parties
Due to related parties increased from US$5.8 million to US$10.7 million, primarily due to increased payables to related
suppliers for Hua Hong Wuxi.

Other current liabilities
Other current liabilities increased from US$239.9 million to US$372.3 million, primarily due to increased payables for
capital expenditures.

Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Total interest-bearing bank borrowings decreased from US$30.6 million to US$25.8 million, due to repayments of bank
borrowings.

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities, largely comprising withholding tax accrued for dividend distribution, decreased from US$18.1
million to US$17.2 million, primarily due to (i) a reversal of dividend withholding tax accrued for the prior year and (ii)
the tax paid for 2018 dividends, partially offset by the accrual of dividend withholding tax in 2019.
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Cash Flow
2019 2018 Change
US$’000 US$'000

Net cash flows generated from operating activities 162,934 274,400 (40.6)%
Net cash flows used in investing activities (722,587) (717,239) 0.7%
Net cash flows generated from financing activities 262,898 865,010 (69.6)%
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (296,755) 422,171 (170.3)%
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 777,000 374,890 107.3%
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net (3,959) (20,061) (80.3)%
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 476,286 777,000 (38.7)%

Net cash flows generated from operating activities

Net cash flows generated from operating activities were US$162.9 million, a decrease of 40.6% from 2018, mainly
due to increased payments for VAT deductible tax, materials, labor, and operating expenses, partially offset by strong
collection of trade receivables.

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Net cash flows used in investing activities were US$722.6 million, primarily attributed to (i) US$2,5632.5 million for
investment in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, (i) US$922.3 million for capital investments, and (iii)
US$70.0 million for investment in time deposits, offset by (i) payout of US$2,689.4 million from investment in financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, (ii) receipts of US$94.5 million of government grants, (iii) US$17.4 million of
interest income, and (iv) US$0.8 million of proceeds from disposal of equipment.

Net cash flows generated from financing activities

Net cash flows generated from financing activities were US$262.9 million, including (i) US$317.0 million of equity
injection into Hua Hong Wuxi, and (ii) US$2.6 million proceeds from issue of shares, offset by (i) dividend payments
of US$51.0 million, (i) repayments of bank borrowings of US$4.3 million, (i) payments of lease liabilities of US$0.9
million, and (iv) interest payments of US$0.5 million.

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

As a result of the cumulative effect of the above factors, cash and cash equivalents decreased from US$777.0 million
as of 31 December 2018 to US$476.3 million as of 31 December 2019.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 ¢ HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 39



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Financial Risks

Foreign currency risk

We are exposed to foreign exchange risks, arising primarily from sales or purchases by HHGrace in US$ rather than
in the subsidiary’s functional currency, which is RMB. As of 31 December 2019, if the US dollar had strengthened or
weakened against the RMB by five percent, with all other variables held constant, our profit before tax for the year
would have been approximately US$10.8 million higher or lower.

Credit risk

We trade only with recognized and creditworthy third parties and related parties. It is our policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis, and our exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Our maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to our financial assets is: the carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents, trade and notes receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
amounts due from related parties, and restricted and time deposits included in the consolidated statement of financial
position. We have no other financial assets which carry significant exposure to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

To meet liquidity requirements in the short and long term, our policy is to monitor regularly the current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that we maintain sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions.

Capital management
Our primary objectives of capital management are to safeguard our ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios to support our business and maximize shareholders’ value.

We manage our capital structure and make adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions. To do this, we may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, or issue new shares. We are not subject
to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies, or processes for
managing capital during the year.
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Gearing Ratio

Details of the gearing ratio are set out in note 38 to the Financial Statements.

Results

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the state of affairs at that date are set out in the
Financial Statements on pages 193 to 196 of this report.

Final Dividends

In view of the Company’s “8-inch + 12-inch” strategy and uncertainty in the impact of the Coronavirus pandemic on the
global economy, the Company is maintaining a stable, prudent, and responsible policy for our shareholders. Based on
the requirements for a sustainable operation and long-term development, the Board does not recommend payment of
a dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: HK$0.31 per share). The Company will retain sufficient cash
to continue its investment activities, in preparation for a strong market recovery when the pandemic is contained and
to maximize future benefits for our shareholders.

Dividend Policy

Subject to the approval of the Shareholders and the requirements of law, it has been decided that the Company
will pay dividends to the Shareholders for the year of 2015 and onwards if the Group is profitable, the operations
environment is stable, and there is no significant investment made by the Group. It is intended that the average of
dividends paid in three consecutive years will be no less than 30% of the average distributable net profit of these three
years. The remaining net profit will be used for the development and operations of the Group.

This dividend policy will continue to be reviewed from time to time and there can be no assurance that dividends will

be paid in any amount for any given period. In the event that the Board recommends a dividend, the form and amount
will depend on the assessment by the Directors of the factors affecting the Group from time to time.

Distributable Reserves
As of 31 December 2019, the Company had no distributable reserves available for distribution to our shareholders.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

The particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as of 31 December 2019 are set out in note 26 to the
Financial Statements.

Financial Summary

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the past five financial years is set
out on page 308. This summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of additions and other movements during the year ended 31 December 2019 in the property, plant and
equipment and investment property of the Group are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the Financial Statements.

In addition, details of the investment property are set out below:

Location Type of Use Term of Lease Group’ s Interest Gross Floor Area
(sq.m.)

Portions of 9 buildings Industrial use Held under a land use 100% 91,563.11

No.818 Guo Shou Jing Road right for a term expiring

Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park on 8 March 2051

Pudong New Area
Shanghai, PRC

Significant Events After the Reporting Period

There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the Group after 31 December 2019.

Share Capital and Share Option Scheme

Details of movement in the share capital of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note
30 to the Financial Statements. The movements include the automatic inclusion of the amount standing to the share
premium account into the share capital as from 3 March 2014 in accordance with section 37 of Schedule 11 to the new
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), as part of the transition to the no-par value regime.

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was approved by an extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 1 September 2015. A summary of the Share Option Scheme is as follows:

Purpose of the Share The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract, retain and
Option Scheme: provide incentives to the Participants (defined below), to provide them
with the opportunity to obtain Shares of the Company, and to link their
interests closely to the operating results and share performance of the

Company with the view to increasing the value of the Company.

Participants: The participants of the Share Option Scheme (“Participants”)
include (1) existing Executive and Non-Executive Directors of any
member of the Group; or (2) senior management and key managerial
and technical personnel having a direct impact on the results of
operations and sustainable development of any member of the Group,
subject always to any limits and restrictions specified in the Share
Option Scheme, but shall not include any Independent Non-Executive
Directors.
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Maximum entitlement of each Participant:

Minimum period, if any, for which
an option must be held before
it can be exercised:

The amount payable on application
or acceptance of the Share Option
and the period within which
payments or calls must be made
or loans for such purposes
must be paid:

Remaining life of the Share
Option Scheme:

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

If the total number of Shares allotted and which may fall to be allotted
upon exercise of all the share options (“Share Options”) granted
and to be granted (including exercised, cancelled, and outstanding
Share Options) to a Participant in any 12-month period in aggregate
exceeds 1% of the issued share capital of the Company at the time,
no further grant of Share Options shall be given to such Participant.
Share Options may be granted to a Participant in excess of the
individual limit of 1% in any 12-month period only with the approval
of the Shareholders in a general meeting. No Share Option shall be
granted to any person who holds over 5% of Shares which carry
voting rights on the Grant Date (as defined in the Share Option
Scheme) unless such grant is approved by shareholders in the
general meeting.

Two years unless otherwise stated in the grant notice of the Share
Option.

HK$1.00 is to be paid by each grantee as consideration for the grant
of Share Option within 28 days from the date of offer.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
seven (7) years commencing on the date of adoption and will expire
on 1 September 2022.

As of the date of this report, the total number of shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is
47,440,029 shares, representing approximately 3.67% of the total number of shares in issue.

Share Options Granted under the Share Option Scheme

On 4 September 2015, the Company granted 30,250,000 share options (the “2015 Options”) to subscribe for up to a
total of 30,250,000 ordinary shares of the Company to certain individuals under the Share Option Scheme. Details of

the 2015 Options are as follows:
Date of grant:
Exercise price of options granted:

Number of options granted:

Validity period of the options:

Vesting period of the options:

4 September 2015
HK$6.912

30,250,000 (representing 2.35% of the issued shares of the Company
as of 31 December 2019).

From 4 September 2015 to 3 September 2022 (seven (7) years), both
dates inclusive.

One third of the options shall vest on each of 4 September 2017, 4
September 2018, and 4 September 2019.
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The exercise price of HK$6.912 per Share represents a premium of 0% over the higher of (i) the closing price of
HK$6.87 per Share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of the grant;
and (ii) the average closing price of HK$6.912 per Share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the grant.

On 24 December 2018, the Company granted 34,500,000 share options (the “2018 Options”) to subscribe for up to a
total of 34,500,000 ordinary shares of the Company to certain individuals under the Share Option Scheme. Details of
the 2018 Options are as follows:

Date of Grant: 24 December 2018
Exercise price of options granted: HK$15.056
Number of options granted: 34,500,000 (representing 2.68% of the issued shares of the Company

as of 31 December 2019)

Validity period of the options: From 24 December 2018 to 23 December 2025 (seven (7) years),
both dates inclusive

Vesting period of the options: For employees at or above the level of the vice president of the
Company (together with Directors), one fourth of the 2018 Options
shall vest on each of 24 December 2020, 24 December 2021, 24
December 2022, and 24 December 2023; for the other employees of
the Company, one third of the 2018 Options shall vest on each of 24
December 2020, 24 December 2021, and 24 December 2022

The exercise price of HK$15.056 per share represents the higher of (i) the closing price of HK$14.440 per share as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of the grant; (ii) the average closing
price of HK$15.056 per share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the grant; and (iii) the face value of the share.

On 29 March 2019, the Company granted 500,000 share options (the “March 2019 Options™*) to subscribe for up to
a total of 500,000 ordinary shares of the Company to one individual under the Share Option Scheme. Details of the
March 2019 Options are as follows:

Date of Grant: 29 March 2019
Exercise price of options granted: HK$18.400
Number of options granted: 500,000 (representing 0.04% of the issued shares of the Company as

of 31 December 2019)

Validity period of the options: From 29 March 2019 to 28 March 2026 (seven (7) years), both dates
inclusive
Vesting period of the options: One fourth of the options will vest on each of 29 March 2021, 29

March 2022, 29 March 2023, and 29 March 2024

*

The March 2019 Options are referred to as “2018 Tranche A” in the financial statements in this report.
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The exercise price of HK$18.400 per share represents the higher of (i) the closing price of HK$18.400 per share as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of the grant; (ii) the average closing
price of HK$18.176 per share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the grant; and (iii) the face value of the share.

On 283 December 2019, the Company granted 2,482,000 share options (the “December 2019 Options™) to subscribe
for up to a total of 2,482,000 ordinary shares of the Company to certain individuals under the Share Option Scheme.
Details of the December 2019 Options are as follows:

Date of Grant: 23 December 2019
Exercise price of options granted: HK$17.952
Number of options granted: 2,482,000 (representing 0.19% of the issued shares of the Company

as of 31 December 2019)

Validity period of the options: From 23 December 2019 to 22 December 2026 (seven (7) years),
both dates inclusive

Vesting period of the options: For employees at or above the level of the vice president of Hua Hong
Wuxi, one fourth of the options will vest on each of 23 December
2021, 23 December 2022, 23 December 2023, and 23 December
2024; for the other employees of Hua Hong Wuxi, one third of the
options will vest on each of 23 December 2021, 23 December 2022,
and 23 December 2023

The exercise price of HK$17.952 per share represents the higher of (i) the closing price of HK$17.260 per share as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of the grant; (ii) the average closing
price of HK$17.952 per share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the grant; and (iii) the face value of the share.

Among the 2015 Options, 2018 Options and March 2019 Options, 988,000, 680,000® and 500,000 share options
were granted to the Directors of the Company, respectively, subject to their acceptance.

*

The December 2019 Options granted to directors and key management personnel are referred to as “2018 Tranche B” and the
December 2019 Options granted to other employees are referred to “2018 Tranche C” in the financial statements in this report.

(1) Among these, 869,000 share options were granted to Mr. Yu Wang, who has resigned as an Executive Director and President of
the Company as at 1 May 2019.

(2) Among these, 600,000 share options were granted to Mr. Yu Wang, who has resigned as an Executive Director and President of
the Company as at 1 May 2019.
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Details of the movements in the share options during the year ended 31 December 2019 are as follows:

Number of share options

Weighted
average
closing
price of the
shares
immediately
hefore the
Exercise dates on
Cancelled  Cancelled ~ Cancelled  Cancelled  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed  Quistanding Outstanding price which the
Name or category ~ Grantedat ~ Grantedat  Grantedat  Grantedat  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe  during the at at Exercise period ofshare  share options
of participants 04092015 24122018 29032019 23422019  vyear2015  year206  year2017  year2018 period period period 01012019 31122019 of share options options  were exercised

Directors
i Junjun Tang 500000 - - - 500000 2903202180302 HKS18.400 -
i Takayukd Morta 119,000 - - - - - - - 19000 119000 0409.2017-0309022 HKS6.912 -
80000 - - - 80,000 80000 24122020-2312.2025 HK$15.056 -
i Yu Weng? 869,000 - - - - 669000 - - 66900 0 4092017030902 HKS6.912 HK§14.150
600000 - (600000) - 600000 0 A420208122% HK$15.056 -
Other employees 29262000 (130000)  (1456000) (1188.399)  (153995) 4198335 (57666) (334) 18084362 13628027 0409.017-03092022 HK$6.912 HK§17.022
33820000 - (1,035,000 - 3380000 3276000 241220203.122025 HK$15.056 -
2482000 - (36000 - 2046000 2312.2021-22.12.20% HK§17.952 -

In aggregate 30250000 34500000 500000 2482000 (130000) (1458000) (1,188399)  (7939%5) 48673 (1728666) (334) 53372362 49758027

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the year were US$2,476,000, which were estimated as of the date
of grant, using a binomial model. The value of the options is subject to the limitation of the binomial model and a number of
assumptions which are subjective and uncertain. Changes in such assumptions could materially affect the value of the options.

# Mr. Yu.Wang resigned as an Executive Director and the President of our Company on 1 May 2019.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not adopted any other share option scheme during the year ended 31
December 2019.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 197 and 198 of this report.
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Continuing Connected Transactions and Connected Transactions

Continuing Connected Transactions
The Group disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 3 October 2014 a series of continuing connected
transactions relating to Huahong Zealcore, QST, INESA, Shanghai Huali, Huahong Real Estate, and Shanghai Huajin
Property Management Co., Ltd. (“Huajin Property Management”). Certain details of such transactions are summarized
in the table below. With respect to of such transactions the Company had applied for and the Stock Exchange had
granted a waiver from, among others, strict compliance with the announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirement (as the case may be). Details of such continuing connected transactions of the Group together
with certain other continuing connected transactions of the Group conducted during 2019 are as follows:

Actual Proposed
Transaction Transaction Annual
Transaction Date Parties to the Transaction Connected Relationship Transaction Amount 2019 Caps 2019
(1) 1 January 2017 Huahong Zealcore (as purchaser) Huahong Zealcore is 90.66% held by  Sales agreement between the Company  US$2,895,000 US$13,230,000
and a subsidiary of Huahong Group, the ~ as seller and Huahong Zealcore as
The Company (as seller) Company's controlling shareholder. purchaser in relation to the sale of IC and
other semiconductor products to Huahong
Zealcore,
) 1 January 2017 QST (as purchaser) QST was 36.36% held by SAIL, the Sales agreement between the Company  US$1,810,000  US$9,600,000
Company’s controlling shareholder, of as seller and QST as purchaser in relation
The Company (as seller) which 27.27% interest was held directly o the sale of IC and other semiconductor
by SAIL and 9.09% interest was held  products to QST.
directly by the Company.
(3) 1 January 2017 Huahong Zealcare (as seller) Huahong Zealcore is 90.66% held by Purchase agreement between Huahong — US$476,000  US$740,000
and a subsidiary of Huahong Group, the ~ Zealcore as seller and the Company as
The Company (as purchaser) Company’s controlling shareholder. purchaser in relation to the purchase of
materials used in the manufacturing process
of the Group’s semiconductor products.
(4 1 January 2017 INESA (on behalf of itself and its ~ INESA is the Company’s controlling  Purchase agreement between INESA as  US$4,362,000  US$5,800,000

*

subsidiaries”) (as seller)

The Company (as purchaser)

shareholder.

Shanghai Nanyang Wanbang Software Technology Co., Ltd..
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Actual Proposed
Transaction Transaction Annual
Transaction Date Parties to the Transaction Connected Relationship Transaction Amount2019  Caps 2019
(5) 27 September  Shanghai Huali (as seller) Shanghai Huali is 53.42% owned  Wafer foundry service agreement between  US$8,698,000  US$9,000,000
2019 by Huahong Group, the Company's  Shanghai Huali and Hua Hong Wuxi in
Hua Hong Wuxi (as purchaser) ~ contralling shareholder. relation to process services and wafer
foundry services to be provided to Hua Hong
Wuxi during the period of the agreement.
(6) 25February  Shanghai Huali (as lessee) Shanghai Huali is 53.42% owned Lease agreement between Shanghai Huali ~ RMB86,347,000 RMB92,000,000
2010 by Huahong Group, the Company’s as lessee and the Company as lessor in (approx. (approx.
(together with  The Company (as lessor) controlling shareholder. relation to the factory premise situated at - US$12,536,000) US$13,295,000)
supplemental Hill 2, 13th street, Zhangjiang Hi-Tech park,
agreements Pudong New Area, Shanghai, PRC leased
dated 10 June by the Company to Shanghai Huali for their
2011 and 300mm wafer production line. The total
25 July 2014) gross floor area leased was 96,099.2 square
meters.
(7 15February  Shanghai Huali (as lessee) Shanghai Huali is 53.42% owned Lease agreement between Shanghai Huali  RMB4,135,000 RMB22,000,000
2017 by Huahong Group, the Company’s as lessee and HHGrace as lessor in relation (approx. (approx.
HHGrace (as lessor) controlling shareholder. to certain clean rooms with a total gross  US$603,000)  US83,179,000)
floor area of 820 square meters and related
utility services and materials to be provided
by HHGrace to Shanghai Huali.
(8) 10 January Huahong Real Estate (as lessor) ~ Huahong Real Estate is a wholly-owned  Lease agreement between Huahong Real  RMB11,198,000 RMB13,000,000
2013 subsidiary of Hua Hong Technology Estate as lessor and the Company as (approx.  (approximately

(together with a  The Company (as lessee)
supplemental
agreement
dated 10 June
2014)

1 January 2019 Huajin Property Management
(as property manager)

The Company (as contractor)

Development, a company 50% held by
and consolidated with Huahong Group,
our controlling shareholder, and 50%
held by HHGrace.

Huajin Property Management is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Hua Hong
Technology Development, a company
50% held by and consolidated with
Huahong Group, our controlling
shareholder, and 50% held by HHGrace.

lessee in relation to the dormitory premises
situated at Hua Hong Innovation Park, Nong
2777, Jinxiu Road East, Pudong New Area,
Shanghai, PRC (Dormitory Premises) rented
by the Company from Huahong Real Estate
for use as staff quarters for the Company's
employees. The total gross floor area rented
was 17,412.87 square meters.

Property management agreement between
Huajin Property Management as property
manager and the Company as contractor
in relation to the engagement of Huajin
Property Management by the Group to
provide property management services for
the Dormitory Premises.

USS1,625,000)

US$1,879,000)

RMB1502,000 RMB2,000,000
(approx. (approximately

US$218,000)

1S5289,000)
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The Group entered into a twenty-year lease with respect to certain dormitory properties from Huahong Real Estate. The
amount of rent payable by the Group under the lease is US$1,625,000 per year. With the initial adoption of HKFRS 16, the
Group recognized right-of-use assets of US$16,922,000 and lease liabilities of US$17,049,000 for the operating lease on 1
January 2019. On 31 December 2019, the balances of those right-of-use assets and lease liabilites were US$15,538,000
and US$17,595,000, respectively. Before 1 January 2019, the Group recognized rental expenses under operating leases on a
straight-line basis over the lease term according to HKAS 17.

The price and terms of the continuing connected transactions as described above were determined in accordance
with the pricing policies and guidelines as set out in the relevant announcements of the Company. The Board (including
the Independent Non-Executive Directors) has reviewed the continuing connected transactions as described above
and confirmed that such transactions did in fact continue in 2019:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

(ii) either on normal commercial terms or, if there are no sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they
are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less favorable to the Company than terms available to or from (as
appropriate) independent third parties; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company have confirmed in a letter to the Board that, with respect to the aforesaid continuing
connected transactions of 2019:

(i) nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditors to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Company’s Board;

(i) for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the Group, nothing has come to their attention
that causes the auditors to believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Company;

(i) nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditors to believe that the transactions were not entered into,
in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such transactions; and

(iv) with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing connected transactions, nothing has come to their
attention that causes the auditors to believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have exceeded
the maximum aggregate annual value disclosed in the Prospectus in respect of each of the disclosed continuing
connected transactions.
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Related Party Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group entered into certain transactions with parties regarded as “related
parties” under the applicable accounting standards. Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2019 are disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements. The Company has
complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save as disclosed in
the paragraph headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” in this annual report, the other related party transactions
disclosed in note 35 were not regarded as connected transactions or were exempt from reporting, announcement and
shareholder approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

Performance of the Equity Investments and FVTPL

The table below sets out the breakdown of the performance in respect of the Equity Investments and FVTPL during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

Principal guaranteed
structured deposits and
wealth management
products (“Products”)

Shanghai Huali QST purchased from banks
(USD’000) (USD’000) (USD’000)
Initial investment cost 229,133 1,704 516,040
Book value at the beginning
of the year 205,973 2,384 667,033
Purchases - - 2,632,504
Redemption - - (2,689,442)
Changes in fair value 2,708 - 23,989
Exchange realignment (8,337) (39) (14,305)
Book value at the end of the year 205,344 2,345 519,779
Dividends received - - -
Gain on disposals - - 19,965
Percentage of shares* 6.3428% 2.18% N/A
Size compared to the total
assets of the Company 57% 0.1% 14.4%

* refers to the percentage of shares held by the Company in Shanghai Huali and QST respectively
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group did not dispose of any shares in Shanghai Huali or QST.

Increases in the fair value of the Company’s equity investment in Shanghai Huali and QST were US$2,708,000 and Nil,
respectively.
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Shanghai Huali was established in 2010. As an industry-leading IC wafer foundry company, Shanghai Huali has
advanced process technologies and offers comprehensive solutions. It is devoted to providing one-stop wafer foundry
technical services for process technology nodes from 65/55nm to 28/22nm for design companies, IDM companies and
other system companies. Shanghai Huali has two 12-inch fully-automated wafer fabs in China.

During the financial year of 2019, although there was an increase of US$2,708,000 in the fair value of the Company’s
equity investment in Shanghai Huali, the book value of the Company’s equity investment has decreased by US$629,000
due to depreciation of the RMB. Overall, Shanghai Huali continued steady development in 2019. Accordingly, the
Board is of the view that the performance of Shanghai Huali during the financial year of 2019 has been in line with its
expectations.

QST is committed to the research and development of high performance sensors, emerging sensors and intelligent
sensor systems for the internet-of-things, and industrial and automobile applications. In 2018, QST was awarded the
Top 10 MEMS Enterprises of China. Similar to the investment in Shanghai Huali, the increase of exchange rate has
caused a foreign currency statement loss of around US$39,000. As the business of QST is still in its early development
stage, the Board is of the view that the performance and strategic planning of QST during 2019 have been consistent
with its expectations.

With respect to of the FVTPL, the Products are generally principal-protected, short-term and low-risk investment
products offering a better interest rate than prevailing rates. Their fair value increased by US$23,989,000 during
2019. Their performance in 2019 tracks the expected rate of return as contained in the terms and conditions of these
financial products and are in line with the management expectations.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the accounting policy of investments and other financial assets
(policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018) as contained in the annual report of the Company for the

year end 31 December 2019.

The Company expects the future prospects of the aforementioned investments to be largely in line with that over the
past year. No significant changes in investment strategy or source of funding are expected for the coming year.
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Annual General Meeting

The AGM will be held on Thursday, 14 May 2020.

Closure of Register of Members

For determining the eligibility of Shareholders to attend and vote at the AGM

Latest time to lodge transfer documents for registration 4:30 p.m. on 8 May 2020
Closure of Register of members 11 to 14 May 2020 (both dates inclusive)
Record date 14 May 2020

In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting, unregistered holders of shares of the
Company should ensure all share transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration no later than the aforementioned latest time.

Directors and Directors’ Service Contracts
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Suxin Zhang (Chairman)
Mr. Junjun Tang (President)

Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Yang Du

Mr. Takayuki Morita

Ms. Jing Wang

Mr. Jun Ye

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang

Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP

Mr. Long Fei Ye
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Each of the Non-Executive Directors of the Company is appointed for a specific term of three years and is subject
to re-nomination and re-election by the Company in general meetings, unless his appointment has been previously
terminated in accordance with the terms and conditions of the relevant letter of appointment or director’'s service
contract.

Ms. Jing Wang, Mr. Takayuki Morita, Mr. Jun Ye, and Mr. Kwai Huen Wong will retire by rotation from office as Directors
at the Annual General Meeting, and Ms. Jing Wang, Mr. Takayuki Morita, Mr. Jun Ye, and Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election pursuant to the articles of association of the Company.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the Annual General Meeting has a service contract which is not
terminable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from each of the existing Independent Non-Executive
Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the Independent
Non-Executive Directors are independent in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Profiles of Directors and Senior Management

Profiles of Directors and senior management of the Company are set out on pages 11 to 17 of this report.

Highest Paid Individuals and the Remuneration of the Directors and Senior
Management

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five individuals with the highest emoluments are set out in notes 8 and 9
respectively of the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Interests of the Directors and the Chief Executive in Shares and Underlying Shares
of the Company

As at 31 December 2019, save as disclosed below, none of the Directors nor the Chief Executive of the Company
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares, or debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register kept under section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing
Rules.

Number of underlying Approximate

shares held in long percentage

Name of Director Capacity position™ of interests
Mr. Junjun Tang Beneficial owner 500,000 0.04%
Mr. Takayuki Morita Beneficial owner 199,000 0.02%

Notes:

(1) Long position in the underlying shares of the Company under share options granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.
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Interests of Directors in a Competing Business

During the year, none of the Directors of the Group had any interests in a business which competes, either directly, or
indirectly, with the business of the Company or the Group.

Interests of Directors in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts of Significance
No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or associates

was a party and in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director has or had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year ended 31 December 2019 or at any time during the year.

Directors’ Securities Transactions
The Company has devised its own code of conduct regarding Directors dealing in the Company’s securities (the
“Company Code”) on terms no less exacting than the Model Code. Specific enquiry has been made of all the

Directors, and the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Company Code and the Model Code
throughout 2019.

Indemnity and Insurance

The Company provides directors and officers liabilities (D&O) insurance for the Directors and Officers. The D&O
insurance covers day-to-day management liability and is renewed every year.

Director(s) of the Subsidiaries

The names of Directors who have served on the boards of the Company’s subsidiaries during the year ended 31
December 2019, or during the period from the end of the year 2019 to the date of this report, were as follows:

Name of the Subsidiary Place of Incorporation Name of the Director(s)
Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Cayman Islands Mr. Suxin Zhang
Corporation (“Grace Cayman”) Mr. Jun Ye
Shanghai Huahong Grace Semiconductor Shanghai, PRC Mr. Suxin Zhang
Manufacturing Corporation (“HHGrace”) Mr. Junjun Tang
Ms. Jing Wang

Mr. Yuchuan Ma

Mr. Takayuki Morita

Mr. Jun Ye

Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang
Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP

Mr. Long Fei Ye
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Name of the Subsidiary Place of Incorporation Name of the Director(s)
Global Synergy Technology Limited (“GST”") Hong Kong, PRC Mr. Daniel Wang
Mr. Cheng Fu
HHGrace Semiconductor USA, Inc. CA, USA Mr. Daniel Wang
(“HHGrace USA”) Mr. Cheng Fu
HHGrace Semiconductor Japan Co., Ltd. Tokyo, Japan Ms. Maki Nakamura
(“HHGrace Japan”) Mr. Daniel Wang
Mr. Cheng Fu
Shanghai Huajie IC Technology Service Co., Ltd. Shanghai, PRC Mr. Heng Fan

(“Shanghai Huajie”)

Hua Hong Semiconductor (Wuxi) Limited. Wuxi, PRC Mr. Suxin Zhang
(“Hua Hong Wuxi”) Mr. Jun Wei
Mr. Junjun Tang
Mr. Linyi Wei
Ms. Jing Wang

Mr. Xingliang Tang
Ms. Hongxia Yuan
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Interests of Substantial Shareholders and Other Persons in the Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company

As of 31 December 2019, persons other than a Director or Chief Executive of the Company, having interests of 5% or
more or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Group, were as follows:

Percentage of

aggregate
interests in
Capacity and nature of Number of shares issued share
Substantial shareholders interest held capital*
Shanghai Hua Hong International, Inc. Legal and beneficial owner 350,401,100 27.19%
(“Hua Hong International”)
Shanghai Huahong (Group) Co., Ltd Interest in a controlled corporation 350,401,100 27.19%
(Huahong Group) @
INESA (Group) Co., Ltd. (“INESA") @ Interest in a controlled corporation 350,401,100 27.19%
Sino-Alliance International, Ltd. Legal and beneficial owner 160,545,541 12.46%
(“Sino-Alliance International”)
Sino-Alliance International, Ltd. Interest in a controlled corporation 34,919,354 2.711%
(“Sino-Alliance International”)
Shanghai Alliance Investment Ltd. (“SAIL") Interest in a controlled corporation 545,865,995 42.35%
Xinxin (Hong Kong) Capital Co., Limited Legal and beneficial owner 242,398,925" 18.81%
Xun Xin (Shanghai) Investment Co., Ltd. Interest in a controlled corporation 242,398,925 18.81%
China Integrated Circuit Industry Interest in a controlled corporation 242,398,925 18.81%
Investment Fund Co., Ltd.
NEC Corporation Legal and beneficial owner 99,038,800 7.68%
Notes:

(1) Long positions in the shares of the Company.

(2) Hua Hong International is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Huahong Group. As of 31 December 2019, Huahong Group was 81.34%
owned by SAIL. Therefore SAIL was deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which Huahong Group is interested by virtue of
Part XV of the SFO.

(3) Including 3,084 shares held in escrow by Sino-Alliance International pursuant to an escrow arrangement.

(4) In addition to the 350,401,100 Shares (27.19%) it indirectly held through Hua Hong International, SAIL indirectly held interests in
the Company through four wholly-owned subsidiaries, including Sino-Alliance International.

* The percentages are calculated based on the total number of shares of the Company in issue as of 31 December 2019, i.e.,
1,288,819,560 shares.

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to any of the Directors and the Chief Executive of the Company, as of
31 December 2019, no other person or corporation other than a Director or Chief Executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares or underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2019 were rights to acquire benefits by means of an acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any of the Directors or their respective spouses or minor children,
or were any such rights exercised by them, or was the Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow

subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or their respective spouses or minor children to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Major Customers and Suppliers
For the year ended 31 December 2019, the purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers combined were

less than 30% of total purchases, and the turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest customers combined was
less than 30% of total turnover.

Emolument Policy

As of 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of 5,138 employees. The Group recruits and promotes individuals
based on merit and their development potential. The emolument policy for the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications, and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating

results and individual performance. The emoluments of the Directors on a named basis are set out in note 8 to the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

For the year ended 31 December 2019, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold, or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s articles of association, or the laws of Hong Kong,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of
shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability.

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report in this annual report.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

As far as the Board is aware, the Company has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operation of the Company.
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Environmental and Social Responsibilities

Environmental, social, and governance factors are three critical benchmarks to evaluate an enterprise. The Company
believes that environmental, social, and governance initiatives are very important to bring success to our business
and to create long-term value for the Company. Detailed information on the environmental and social responsibility
practices adopted by the Company in 2019 is set out in the 2019 Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

Hua Hong Semiconductor is committed to reducing the negative impact of its operations on the environment through
green and effective operating practices. The Company has established a sound environmental management system,
formed a waste gas treatment system, and authorized a qualified third-party company to treat the waste produced
from the Company’s operations. The Company also carries out technical renovations in relation to energy and water
conservation, and continues to invest in the development and promotion of green products.

In 2019, the Company won the “Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design” (LEED v4) Gold Award certified
by the U.S. Green Building Council (USGBC), the “Two-Star Green Building Design Label Certificate” certified by
the Chinese Society for Urban Studies and the honor of Shanghai Energy Conservation and Emissions Reduction
Benchmark Enterprise. To promote clean production, the Company continues to invest in energy conservation and
emissions reduction to effectively cut down greenhouse gas emissions. In addition, with respect to green products
promotion, the Company’s customers achieved 100% compliance with hazardous substances control in 2019. All
manufacturing facilities of the Company are verified as meeting the QC 080000 electronic components standards and
hazardous substances reduction requirements.

Compliance with the Deed of Non-Competition and the Deed of Right of First
Refusal

Huahong Group, SAIL and INESA, being controlling shareholders of the Company, entered into a deed of
non-competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) dated 23 September 2014, details of which have been set out in
the paragraph headed “Deed of Non-Competition” in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders”
of the Company’s prospectus dated 3 October 2014 (the “Prospectus”). In addition, Huahong Group and SAIL also
entered into a deed of right of first refusal (the “Deed of Right of First Refusal”’) dated 10 June 2014, details of which
have been set out in the paragraph headed “Deed of Right of First Refusal” in the section headed “Relationship
with Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus. The Company has reviewed the written declaration from each
of the controlling shareholders mentioned above on their compliance with their undertakings under the Deed of
Non-Competition and the Deed of Right of First Refusal (as the case may be) for the year ended 31 December
2019. The Independent Non-Executive Directors have reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed that all the
undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition and the Deed of Right of First Refusal (as the case may be) have
been complied with by the relevant parties.

Sufficiency of Public Float
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as of the

date of this report, the Directors are satisfied that the Company has maintained the prescribed minimum public float
under the Listing Rules.

Auditors

A resolution will be submitted at the AGM to re-appoint Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. Suxin Zhang
Chairman

26 March 2020

58 HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2019



2019 ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCGE REPORT

Introduction

Our concept of sustainable development and the pursuit of long-term performance is to achieve these under
consideration of economic, environmental, and social aspects, as these aspects interact with and support each
other, enabling long-term, sustainable performance. We strictly comply with all local applicable laws and meet social
expectations in our operations, and we align our standards for environmental protection to those of the leaders in
international industry. We devote ourselves to sustainable cities and communities. In following our corporate vision
of Continuous Innovation and Empowering the Future for Global Customers, we promptly respond to Stakeholders,
including customers, employees, investors, communities, and countries where we operate, toward the goal of
sustainable development of enterprises and society.

1 Social Responsibility Management System

1.1 Social Responsibility Policy

We believe fulfillment of corporate social responsibility first requires pro-active adherence to and implementation
of the highest international standards of business and social ethics, while creating value for and sharing value with
all Stakeholders. To this end, in addition to compliance with all laws, regulations, and rules of the state in terms of
operation, we also incorporate environmental and social responsibilities directly into our business strategies and
operations. We take a prudent approach to manage our environmental and social risks by perfecting our management
system, improving supply chain performance, and reducing resource consumption and environmental emissions. We
encourage innovation-driven development and foster innovative talents, thereby promoting social harmony.

1.2 Social Responsibility Management Mechanism

Effective social responsibility management requires the ongoing attention of senior management and the involvement of
all employees. We established a Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) working group to set up a CSR organization
system that enables management to participate in and coordinate with functional departments horizontally and
member companies vertically. The working group comprises responsible officers from diverse functional departments.

CSR Decision Vision

Board of Directors @ Continuous Innovation, Empowering
Management the Future for Global Customers

CSR Executor @

CSR Working Group

) 2= il ol M| K2R

General Marcom General  Compliance  Internal Purchase

Office  Department  Affars  Department  Audit  Department Department @
Department Department

=¢
HR | EHS || S5/ M m

CSR Planning

“New” Profits for Shareholders

Empowering the Future for Global
Customers

“Heart-felt” Value for Employees

“Prosperous” Environment for Society

©000

Planning Human EHS Finance Marketing Labor
Department Resources Department Department Union

Structure for CSR Management
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Provided by the Board of Directors as the CSR Decision Maker, the following four aspects summarize the social
responsibility of the corporate vision Continuous Innovation and Empowering the Future for Global Customers.

Expanded “New” Profits
for Shareholders

Empowering the Future
for Global Customers

Development through
Innovation
Consolidate Operations

Providing Quality
Products Guaranteeing
Rights & Interests of

Customers with Integrity
Booming Industrial Sharing the Benefits of
Economy China’s growth

Continuous
Innovation Empowering
the Future for Global
Customers

“Prosperous” Environment
for Society

“Heart felt” Respect for
the Value of Employees

Caring about Career Promoting Green

Development Development
Protecting Utilizing Resources
Occupational Health Jointly Promoting

Social Harmony

Implementation Points of Focus of CSR Planning of Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited
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1.2 Involvement of Stakeholders
Based on the business and operational characteristics of our Company and leveraging the experience and practices
in the industry at home and abroad, we have determined the following to be our Stakeholders: our shareholders;
customers; employees; government agencies and regulators; partners; communities; and the public. Our Company
actively communicates with all of these Stakeholders via various channels and methods, including websites, media,
meetings, reports, and other business and social activities.

Expectations and Responses of Stakeholders

2019 ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANGE REPORT

Key Stakeholders

Description

Issues concerned

Communications and responses

Shareholders and
senior
management

Customers

Employees

Government and
regulators

Partners

Communities and
the public

Domestic and foreign investors holding
equity and debt investments in our
Company, and senior management
members of the Company

IDMs, systems and fabless
semiconductor companies

Our employees and contract personnel
who serve our Company on a continuous
basis

Industry, tax, environmental protection,
security and other departments,
local governments, SFC and other
governmental or regulatory authorities

Suppliers, research institutions, industry

associations, etc.

Communities in which we operate, the
public and media, etc.

Risk management, economic performance,
industrial development, customer
communication and satisfaction

Protection of customer rights and
information, product and service quality,
customer communication and satisfaction

Employee interests and welfares,
employee health and safety, employee
development and training

Compliant operation, green products,
emissions management and energy
utilization

Industrial development, compliant
operation, product and service quality,
customer satisfaction and communication

Green products, emissions management,
community and public benefit

Shareholders’ meetings, financial reports,
performance reports, results road shows,
etc.

Product exhibitions, customer research,
technical seminars, B2B (such as E-tapeout
systems, WIP report and WAT report, etc.),
customer service hotlines and complaints,
customer satisfaction surveys, etc.

Employee activities, Employee
Representatives Congress, Intranet,
trainings, self-service systems and
employee manuals, internal publications,
efc.

On-site visit, official correspondences, policy
enforcement, information disclosure, etc.

Public tender conferences, strategic
cooperation negotiations, exchanges and
visits, etc.

Community activities, employee volunteer
activities, public welfare activities, social
cause campaigns, etc.
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1.3 Risk Management/Identification and Analysis of Substantive Issues

Risk Management

We continuously improve our risk management system by upgrading relevant processes and policies, thereby
effectively enhancing our risk management abilities. Since 2016, the Company has established procedures for risk
management through the Internal Audit Department, which issued the guideline “Rules about Comprehensive Control
of Risks”, and launched related projects.

In 2019, the Company started construction of the risk control system of Hua Hong Semiconductor (Wuxi) Co., Ltd., a
subsidiary, which initially formed a risk control system based on the theory of three lines of defense. The Company
carried out an annual comprehensive risk assessment covering Shanghai and Wukxi; interviewed the management
with regard to risks through risk questionnaires; identified major risk areas; and formed an annual risk management
report. Two risk training sessions were carried out with the participation of 20 managers at all levels from companies
in Shanghai and Wuxi, covering the operation of the existing risk management system and discussion of typical risk
events.
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Key Operational Risks and Countermeasures

Risk Category Content

Countermeasures

Strategy

Operation

Finance

Environment
and Safety

Project risk

Strategic
planning

Investment
Decision

Supervising and
management
system

Reserve of
Talents

Information
security

Research and
development

Intellectual
property

Cash flow

Exchange
fluctuations

Environment

Safety check

Occupational
health

Wuxi project
management

The Company formulated strategic objectives from top to bottom, appropriately
deconstructed and implemented such objectives in specific business models of
corporate operation, to ensure the accomplishment of strategic objectives

We conduct prudent pre-investment analysis, continuous process supervision, and
effective post-investment evaluation to control the investment risk to an acceptable
range in a multi-pronged manner

Our well-organized systems and processes, taken together with the Company’s
risk management system with its three lines of defense, can efficiently assure
accomplishment of strategic objectives

We set up the talent resume database, carried out the talent inventory,
continuously explored the recruitment channels, optimized the salary structure, and
comprehensively enhanced the Company’s attraction and employee satisfaction
by combining the synergies of brand building and cultural promotion.

Based on our Management Rules about Information Security, the Company
established its information security framework and management policy. We
implement the risk evaluation procedure for information security every year to
maintain the optimal interests of all Stakeholders

The structured R&D closed-loop mechanism conducts comprehensive monitoring
on R&D initiation, implementation and post-evaluation, and helps develop new
products with commercial value continuously and in a timely fashion

Comprehensive intellectual property protection awareness and management
procedures protect the intellectual property rights of the Company and customers

Monthly cash flow statements record cash flows and dispatch the same to relevant
departments for follow-up actions

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are settled in the same foreign
currency whenever possible to reduce the need for foreign currency exchange,
thus reducing risks arising from exchange rate fluctuations

We design management procedures based on our observation, assessment and
control of environmental factors, and list major environmental factors

Safety checks focusing on troubleshooting and fault diagnosis are carried out
continuously

We have developed the goals, indicators and program management forms of
our environmental and occupational health and safety programs in accordance
with the Company’s established goals, indicators and program management
procedures for health, safety and environment (“HSE”)

The Company’s management has always attached great importance to Wuxi
projects and has given priority to the allocation of resources. Special personnel
have been appointed to continuously monitor the project progress, investment
expenditure, procurement compliance, and other important control points to
ensure that the project progress, quality, and cost control meet established
targets.
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Identification and Analysis of Substantive Issues

We check social responsibility issues on a regular basis and identify the more substantive ones on which to focus our
operations, reporting, and disclosures through periodic identification, evaluation, and screening. We consider both
internal and external factors such as our strategic and operational direction, Stakeholders’ concerns and expectations,
as well as national and international standards and policies.

Risk management
Compliance management
Anti-corruption

Economic performance
Innovative operation
Industry development

High Economy

(o]
MmO O W >

Products Sustainable development management
of supply chain

Product/service safety

Green products

Customer communication and satisfaction

®
(N )
© ©00 0
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Customers’ interests and information protection
Energy utilization

Water resource utilization

Emissions management
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o Employees Reduction of and adaptation to climate changes
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Employee interest and benefits

Employee health and safety

Employee development and training
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Community Community and social welfare

Low Significance of economic, High
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2 Environmental Responsibilities

The Company takes environmental protection as its own duty; complies with laws, regulations, and industry standards
in relation to environmental protection; makes efficient use of energy and other resources; attaches great importance to
pollution prevention; continuously invests in the development and promotion of green products; reduces the negative
impact of its own operation on the environment; and strives for the sustainable development of enterprises and society.

2.1 Environmental Management System

The Company gradually shifted its focus from production management to control of product life cycles and risks;
committed to improving environmental performance at every step of the process, including procurement of raw
materials, production, and waste management; and passed the new ISO 14001:2015 environmental management
system certification. In terms of supervision and management, we added a review and follow-up system to the
security management system in the Company'’s intranet. This system collects and lists matters violating environmental
protection regulations, which are identified daily by management, following up and recording subsequent actions
through regular system reminders.

In 2019, the Company adhered to the aim of innovative development and green development realizing clean
production through various energy-saving and emission-reduction group activities. It won the honor of Shanghai
Energy Conservation and Emissions Reduction Benchmarking Enterprise in Shanghai Energy-Saving and
Emission-Reduction (JJ) group activities.

As of the end of the reporting period, the Company was not subject to any environmental complaints or penalties, or
involved in any environmental pollution incidents.

Certification in Relation to Environmental Responsibilities

Environmental Management Certification Authority Date of First Certification

ISO 14001:2015
Environmental Management
A System

British Standards Institutions

(BS)) 26 April 2002

Green Building Certification Authority Date of First Certification

“Leadership in Energy

and Environmental Design” U.S. Green Building Council

October 2019

(LEED v4) Gold Award (USGBC)
[ ﬁ Two-Star green building Chinese Society for Urban December 2019
!ﬁm' design label certificate Studies (FP BRI 756k
Green Products Certification Authority Date of First Certification
Q QC 080000 Hazardous
Substance Process BSI 18 November 2009

1 "."i}_| 15rM
oues Management System
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Green Building

The Company is committed to becoming a green enterprise in green technology, green production, green building,
and green industries. The 12-inch IC production line (HH Fab 7) undertaken by Hua Hong Semiconductor (Wuxi) Co.,
Ltd. has been designed and constructed in strict compliance with LEED certification requirements and has won the
“Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design” (LEED v4) Gold Award certified by the U.S. Green Building Council
(USGBC) due to the green and energy-saving features of the building and supporting facility design. In the design
and construction of the engineering building (E1), it adhered to the concept of green and energy conservation; made
greater effort in innovation; and enhanced the promotion and application of new materials, new equipment, and new
technologies. Finally, it won the “Two-Star Green Building Design Label Certificate” certified by the Chinese Society for
Urban Studies, with its excellent environmental performance, such as the renewable energy utilization rate of 100% for
domestic hot water, the building energy saving rate of 65%, and the non-traditional water utilization rate of 56.19%.

Green Culture

We continuously promote the environmental protection concept inside and outside the Company. We make good
use of science and technology in our daily operations to implement the concept of sustainable development and
environmental protection measures.

Practice in Green Culture

Saving paper around e Implementing office automation to reduce paper consumption.
the office e Making efforts to promote the use of recycled paper, including for printing
business cards of employees, to support recycling.

Saving electricity e Turning off the power supply when leaving work or for a long time.
e Reasonably setting air conditioning temperature above 26°C in summer and
below 20°C in winter.

Saving water e Developing employees’ awareness of saving water and posting water saving
tips.
Waste disposal e  Classifying domestic waste in each factory into 4 categories, namely dry, wet,

recyclable, and harmful waste, and requiring all employees to answer online
waste classification questions.
e  Participating in E-waste recycling activities at alah.com

Commuting e  Encouraging employees to commute by public transport.
e Using new energy vehicles as shuttle buses for the Company.
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Overview on Environmental Management Performance
The Company’s production and operation requires the use of such resources as energy, water, and other raw materials
and generates emissions such as air emission, water, and solids. In addition, we are planning to promote supplier
environmental management and to provide low-power green products in an effort to achieve better environmental
management performance throughout the value chain.

Water Resources

Total water consumed 7,724,830 m®
of which: Water from municipal water supply 4,791,336 m®
Wastewater reused 2,933,494 m3
Water consumed per unit product 2.46 m3per 8-inch wafer
Volume of recycled water 2,823,278 m3
Energy
Total electricity consumed 528,044 MWh
Electricity consumed per unit product 271.14 KWh per 8-inch wafer
Natural gas consumed 8,138,435 m®
Natural gas consumed per unit product 4.18 m?® per 8-inch wafer

Packaging Materials

Total packaging materials used for finished products 110 tons

Other Raw Materials

Silicon slice, quartz, target material, gas, chemicals, and other raw materials for production

4

Product research
and development »
and production operation

¥

Green low power

Supplier environment )
consumption products

and social management

Waste
Total hazardous waste produced 5,013 tons
Hazardous waste produced per unit product 2.57 kg per 8-inch wafer
Total non-hazardous waste 3,595 tons
Non-hazardous waste produced per unit product 1.80 kg per 8-inch wafer

Air Emissions

Total air emissions 1,257,074 m3
Nitrogen oxide (NOx) emissions 19,383 kg
Sulfur dioxide (SO,) emissions 72.50 kg
Greenhouse gas
GHG emissions 449,339 tCOe
GHG emissions per unit product 0.23 tCO.e per 8-inch wafer
Wastewater
Total wastewater discharge 4.31 million m3

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 ¢ HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 67



2019 ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANGE REPORT

2.2 Cleaner Production

Air Emissions and Waste Water Discharge

We follow the rules and regulations related to environmental protection and relevant matters. The air emissions
discharged during production include sulfuric acid mist, hydrogen chloride, nitric oxide, ammonia, and volatile organic
compounds. We established a system for processing air emissions that meets the new requirements for controlling
emissions. This system can eliminate over 90% of the VOCs generated. In terms of waste water discharge, the
Company began adoption of the Grade B Standard of GBT 31962-2015 (Waste Water Quality Standards for Discharge
to Municipal Sewers) in 2017 and reduced the discharge through recycling washing water used for production in the
factory.

In terms of pollution discharge and information disclosure, the Company carried out online monitoring of waste water,
with relevant data disclosed on the Environmental Information Disclosure Platform for Shanghai Enterprises and Public
Institutions, thus improving transparency of environmental information for the Company.

In 2019, the Company amended the Air Emission Management Rules to further improve emission control and treatment
of air emissions and waste water. In addition, HH Fab 2 and HH Fab 3 completed clean production audits and adopted

a series of improvement measures according to the audit results, including installation of VOC online detection devices.

Pollutant Discharge Management

Type Treatment Method

Air Emissions Acid air emission Up-to-standard discharge after removing most of the
components through a washing tower
Alkaline air emission (mainly ammonia gas) Purification through a washing tower
Organic air emission Purification through activated carbon adsorption, or
combustion after concentration
Air Emissions containing dust (mainly small Removal through a dust-extraction unit
particulate matters of silicon dioxide)

Wastewater pH, COD, ammonia nitrogen, fluorine ion, After treatment, up-to-standard discharge through a
etc. pipeline into a designated urban sewage pipe network

Discharge Reduction Work and Achievements in 2019

Measures Achievements
Reconstruction for recycling of boiler flue gas 180%

Nitrogen emissions
Reconstruction for reducing NOx emissions from boilers <50 mg/m?®

NOx emissions from boilers
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Waste Management

Wafer production generates liquid hazardous waste, such as waste acid and isopropanol. We authorized a qualified
third-party company for treatment of this waste, mainly by means of incineration, physical-chemical treatment
and recycling. The Company has: formulated a Waste Management Procedure; standardized waste management
operations; recorded and managed waste treatment, through the unified environmental protection management system
of the government to ensure all transportation records are traceable and controllable. Non-hazardous solid waste, such
as sludge generated in wastewater treatment, was treated by the waste disposal agency using landfill. Since 2017, the
Company has carried out work to reduce the discharge of various hazardous waste every year. In 2019, it reduced the
discharge of waste photoresist and arsenic-containing waste by 96.13 tons in total.

The Company entrusted the Waste Management Center of Shanghai Pudong New Area to pick up and transport
domestic waste and kitchen garbage on a regular basis.

Treatment Methods for Hazardous Waste

Treatment Method Type of Hazardous Waste

Recycling Such as waste acid, waste isopropanol, and waste phosphoric acid
Physical-chemical treatment Such as waste glass bottle, 200L chemical barrels, and waste liquid from laboratory
Incineration Such as cleaning cloth, plastic bottles, organic waste liquid, waste activated

carbon, waste resin, and arsenic-containing waste

Carbon Emissions

The emission of large amounts of greenhouse gases such as COz is the main contributor to global warming. We realize
that climate change mitigation is of great importance to enterprises and the globe. We actively took part in carbon
emission trading by the Shanghai Municipal Development and Reform Commission to cut greenhouse gas emission
and slow down climate change. In 2019, the Company completed settlement of carbon credits of approximately
449,343 tons for 2018.

The Company also set an emission target according to the carbon trading management measure of the Shanghai
Municipal Development & Reform Commission and reduced greenhouse gas emissions through energy saving and
emission reduction projects. In 2019, it invested a total of approximately RMB5.8 million to improve energy saving and
emission reduction technologies.
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2.3 Resource Saving

Energy Management

The energy consumed by the Company is mainly electric power, heat, natural gas, and a small amount of gasoline and
diesel. It has formulated the Resource and Energy Management Procedure, clearly defining the principle of resource
and energy management. The Company shall control the use of energy and carry out continuous reduction, while
satisfying production requirements and improving productivity. These actions will reduce our impact on the environment
while reducing production cost. Our efforts will promote sustainable development in harmony with the environment. In
response to the 2020 goal of the Shanghai Municipal Government to control the total amount of energy and improve
energy utilization efficiency, the Company has set its energy-saving target for the “13th Five-Year Plan” period. By
2020, the Company’s comprehensive energy consumption per RMB10 thousand of revenue will be 12% lower than
that of 2015, and the energy consumption for 8-inch integrated circuit wafer production will be 13% lower than that of
2015. The Company has engaged a third-party organization to conduct its energy audit and put forward a technical
renovation plan for energy conservation.

2019 Energy Saving Work and Achievements

Factory Measures Achievements
HHFab1 e Removal of WALL CHILLER for DRK ASP-CH 171,000 kWh
Electricity saving for the year
e WAT test time reduction 147,000 kWh

Electricity saving for the year

HHFab2 e Extending the service life of aluminum and copper kits and reducing 228,000 kWh
the consumption of water and chemicals for kit cleaning Electricity saving for the year
e  Changing cold pure water (electrical heating) to warm pure water for 25,000 kWh
pure water measuring tanks Electricity saving for the year
HHFab3 e Lighting energy saving control for electrical rooms, DUPS and 199,000 kWh
generator rooms Electricity saving for the year
e  Optimizing the photolithography technique process of source-drain 350,000 kWh
ion implantation for flash platforms Electricity saving for the year
Note:

Since HH Fab 7 was officially put into operation in September 2019 and did not have data on energy saving achievements for the
year as of the end of the reporting period, such data were not included in the table.
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Water Resource Management

Water used by the Company comes from the municipal water supply to a large extent in addition to a smaller amount
of recycled water and air conditioning condensate. Through technological improvement and recycling, we actively
seek to improve our water saving and water resource utilization efficiency. The Company has used recycled water for
the production process and air conditioning condensate water for replenishing the water in cooling towers, with a total

recycled water consumption of 2.82 million m?3 for the year.

2019 Water Saving Work and Achievements Nt

Factory Measures

Achievements

HHFab1 e Increasing the yield rate of MNO665X bank card products

e  Changing POWER MOS Poly 12K to 8K

e  Water saving projects for cooling towers

1,100 tons
Water saving for the year

300 tons
Water saving for the year

85,000 tons
Water saving for the year

HHFab2 e Recycling RO-3 concentrated pure water for EPI Scrubber 52,300 tons
Water saving for the year
e Recycling RO-4 concentrated pure water for dissolution and dilution of 29,200 tons
lime in the fluoride waste treatment system Water saving for the year
HH Fab3 e  Optimizing transportation and cleaning processes for split-gate trench 7,200 tons
power devices Water saving for the year
e  Ebara tool cleaner 2 pencil self-clean water flow reduction project 1,200 tons
Water saving for the year
Note:

Since HH Fab 7 was officially put into operation in September 2019 and did not have data on water saving achievements for the year

as of the end of the reporting period, such data were not included in the table.
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2.4 Green Products

Facing risks arising out of global climate change and the increasingly vigorous demand for energy conservation and
emission reduction in society, reducing the high energy consumption of electronic and electrical products has become
a focus in industry. In the field of professional integrated circuit manufacturing services, the Company is committed
to implementing full-life cycle environmental management covering processes from raw material procurement and

production to disposal.

By continuously optimizing its wafer manufacturing technology; reducing product volume;

improving the energy efficiency of products used at terminals; and reducing the impact of scientific and technological
progress on the environment; the Company is supporting construction of a low-carbon and environment-friendly society
while creating competitive advantages in power consumption, efficiency, and chip size optimization for customers.

Environmental Management for the Full Life Cycle of Products

INERE ' pan N
] @_R T
Warehousing of Product Product End-user Disposal
Raw materials Production Transportation Products
e  Carry out According to e Recycle and By helping Monitoring
hazardous the pollution reuse product customers wafers produced
substance discharge permit packaging produce by the Company
examination management, materials to low energy are monitored
and systematic promote material reduce the consumption for harmful
control on raw reduction consumption products, substances,
materials; projects; of packaging reduce the which means
materials environmental that the terminal
e  Review the From the and waste impact of the electronic
qualification and perspective generation. use of terminal products
environmental of resource electronic manufactured
compliance of recycling, carry products by using the

suppliers and
require suppliers
to sign the
Environmental
Protection
Undertaking.

out allocation
among systems
in waste
chemical plants
to reduce the
use of external
resources;

Implement water
recovery projects
to improve the
overall recycling
rate and reduce
the water supply
pressure of the
pipe network.
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Control of Hazardous Substances

In accordance with: the regulation Restriction of Hazardous Substances (RoHS); the Registration, Evaluation,
Authorization and Restriction of Chemicals (REACH) as formulated by the EU; as well as customer requirements, we
have established a hazardous substances management system and standard.

The Company has established an electronic system to manage different raw materials at different levels. Suppliers are
required to provide a signed Commitment on Nonexistence of Hazardous Substances and relevant test reports on a
regular basis, so as to ensure that their products comply with laws, regulations, and customers’ requirements on the
management of harmful substances, assuring control from the source.

The Company entrusted Sociéte Générale de Surveillance S.A. (SGS) to conduct tests for hazardous substances and
achieved 100% compliance for control of hazardous substances in 2019. All manufacturing devices of the Company
are verified to comply with the standards and requirements of QC 080000 for reducing hazardous substances in
electronic elements, apparatus, and products.

3 Employee-Related Responsibilities

Employees are valuable resources of the Company. We are committed to creating a harmonious, friendly, and win-win
cultural atmosphere in accordance with relevant laws and regulations. In order to protect the rights and interests of our
employees, we take various measures to ensure the occupational health and safety of employees. We build diversified
career development paths and provide a warm and comfortable working environment to promote the realization of
personal goals and corporate values.

As of the end of the reporting period, the Company did not infringe the rights and interests of its employees and was
not subject to complaints or penalties by a regulatory authority.

3.1 Rights and Benefits of Employees

We insist on fair, equal, and open recruitment and employment. We are committed to providing equal opportunity in
all our human resources activities such as employee selection, recruitment, promotion, transfer, and remuneration.
We do not implement or engage in discriminatory policies or injurious actions for any reason, in particular nationality,
region, color of skin, ethnicity, religion, age, family conditions, or other factors. We have formulated and follow the
guidelines described in “Employment Procedures and the Management Procedures for Trainees”. We strictly check the
identity information of our employees and do not employ children or adolescents under the age of 16 years. We strictly
followed related laws and regulations such as the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Special Rules
on Labor Protection of Female Employees and resolutely prevented any compulsory labor practices. As of the end of
the reporting period, the Company had 5,138 regular employees.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 ¢ HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 73



2019 ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANGE REPORT

Overview of Employee Rights and Interests and Benefit System

Recruitment and Dismissal

Recruitment: Adhering to the principle of fairness, equity and openness

Dismissal: The Company and employees go through the dismissal procedure according to relevant
laws, regulations and the Dismissal Management Procedure.

Remuneration
The Company provides competitive salaries for employees, which are higher than the minimum wage
in the place of operation.

Benefit

Endowment insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance, employment injury insurance,
maternity insurance and housing provident fund, accident insurance and other commercial
supplementary medical insurances, employee rehabilitation, festival gift, assistance in household
registration of non-local employees, etc.

Working hours

The standard working hours system is adopted. The comprehensive working hours system or flexible
working hours system is adopted for certain positions with the approval of the labor and personnel
authority of the government.

Vacation
Based on holidays and festivals specified by the government, supplementary annual leaves are
provided for employees.

Democratic Participation
Labor union, employee congress, etc.

Harmonious Relation

An unblocked communication channel and sincere care are vital for the establishment of harmonious labor relations.
The Company has formulated the Employee Communication Rule and encouraged the fair, straight-out, and multi-way
communication between the Company and employees, between officers and subordinate officers, and among
employees through the creation of multiple communication channels.

In addition, we established the Employee Assistance Mechanism, under which we provide assistance for needy
employees at special festivals such as Spring Festival, Labor Day, and Mid-Autumn Festival, in addition to routine
expression of sympathy and solicitude to injured or families of diseased employees; and we give timely care and
support to employees who suffer a significant misfortune and help them overcome their plight as soon as possible
through multiple forms of assistance including donation, support, care, and nursing. We care for the welfare and
development of female employees, annually organizing a special physical examination, continuously improving
human-based management of lactating employees, and providing relevant service facilities to ensure convenience for
pregnant employees and lactating employees at work.
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3.2 Health, Safety and Employee Welfare

Occupational Health and Safety Management

The Company has established an occupational health and safety system that meets the requirements of OHSAS
18001, defining the occupational health and safety policy, so as to provide its employees with a good working
environment and ensure their occupational health. In 2019, in response to the upgrade of OHSAS 18001 to ISO 45001,
the Company improved its internal management system in accordance with the requirements of the new standard,
involving the identification and evaluation of risks, opportunities, and hazards, etc. and arranged for employees to
systematically learn the new standard.

Occupational Health and Safety Management System

Occupational Health and Safety Management Policy
Strictly comply with the safety, health, and environmental protection regulations; make efforts for clean production; carry out continuous

improvement; create a safe, healthy, and comfortable working environment for employees; strenuously pursue the highest goal of “zero accidents”;
sustainable operation; and become a model corporate citizen in the world.

Organizations  Establish System Require the Management ~ Emergency Publicity and  Safety

a safety, Construction ~ employeesto  Iltems response Education education
health and sign the Safety to hazards/ and training;
environment Responsibility environmental Emergency
committee and Statement factors; drill;
implement a and the Safety Chemicals *ANKANG”
regular safety Commitment management; labor
meeting Letter to Special competition
system. ensure the equipment events, etc.

performance and positions;

of the Construction

responsibilities operations;

for safety Occupational

production. health, etc.

The Company mainly eliminated or controlled safety risks in production activities of employees from four major aspects,
namely, fire-fighting equipment, alarm monitoring system, personal protection, and emergency measures. In 2019, the
Company carried out: education and assessment activities with themes including personal protective equipment; first
aid and firefighting; prepared training materials; established a question bank with the internal human resources training
system platform as the carrier; carried out training on typical cases; and identification of potential hazards every
quarter, to create a good safety culture atmosphere.

- .
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Measures for Prevention of Employee Safety Risks

A

Fire-fighting Equipment

& b

Emergency Measure

N

Alarm Monitoring System Personal Protection

e A perfect fire-

fighting system and
an automatic alarm
system have been

established.

Establishing an
emergency rescue
team and formulating
emergency plans for
different disasters;

e There are toxic, °
harmful and
inflammable gas
warning systems,
liquid leakage
detectors and ultra-
high-sensitivity smoke
detectors in the clean
workshop.

Providing necessary .
personal protective
equipment and
emergency protective
equipment; Regularly
checking whether

there is a complete °
set of equipment and
whether the equipment

is effective.

Annually organizing
special disaster
prevention drills, and
in a timely manner,
correcting problems
identified.

In terms of protecting employees’ health, we provide an annual health check-up for all employees, including multiple
cancer screenings and other items, and we establish employee health records to systematically track the changes in
employees’ health status. In addition, the Company engages external organizations to test its production environment
every year, analyze and rectify nonconformities, so as to ensure that the occupational exposure limits for harmful
factors are not exceeded in the production environment, and the Company informs all employees of the test results.

Chemicals, including nitric acid and ammonia water, are used in the Company’s operation. We have formulated
relevant management policies, including the Chemicals Management Procedure and the Chemical Material Review
Procedure. We regularly complete annual detection of harmful factors in workplaces, evaluation of current conditions,
and carry out various emergency drills for safety production accidents, with a total of 10,767 participants. As of the
end of the reporting period, no safety production accidents happened for the Company.

100%

Percentage of
employees receiving
safety trainings

RMB31.32 million
Safety-related
investment for the year

100%

Percentage of
employees having a
health check-up

100%
Rectification rate
for potential safety
hazards
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High-quality Working Environment
The Company is committed to creating better office and service facilities for employees and improving their happiness.

Office
e An air purification system is installed to improve office air quality;

o
A=,

e

e The green space is increased in office areas.

Diet
e There are staff canteens and coffee shops in factory zones;

e Establishing a food safety supervision team and the mode of centralized purchasing of
food materials and qualified supplier management, and inviting employees and department
representatives to carry out supervision;

e Publishing the canteen food cooking guideline to manage balanced nutrition, oil and salt control for
the employees’ diet in the canteens.

r" Accommodation
«ll. + Constructing a dormitory with private bathrooms, 24-hour supply of hot water and WIFI network,
p— etc.;

e  The dormitory area, has a library, computer room, snooker room, laundry, TV room, HIVE BOX and
other facilities.

s
oToMNG e Providing all employees with travel allowance;

e Providing free commuter bus services between the park, subway stations and the dormitory;

e Creating a commuting route for employees living in the transit-challenged areas and arranging
commuter bus services for departments which need to have such services on weekends.

3.3 Training and Career Development

Employee Training

The Company has impeccable training facilities (special training rooms and equipment), learning and sharing
platforms (including online training registration management platform, training material and position-specific question
bank), and where necessary, uses external resources for ensuring employees learning and development.

In addition, the Company has established a complete employee education and training system; formulated the
Operating Procedure of Internal Training System Review, the Education and Training Procedure and department-level
training procedures; and continuously enhanced the training effect according to the training cycle. The Company
continuously carried out improvements according to strategic development and employees’ needs.

In 2019, the Company launched two special linked training camps for newly-hired recent college graduates in
Shanghai and Wuxi respectively, which provide trainees with a variety of courses including theoretical knowledge
about semiconductor manufacturing practices, professional accomplishment, and outward bound. This helped its
new employees quickly integrate into the team, preliminarily and comprehensively master semiconductor-related
knowledge, and meet the challenges of their future work with full enthusiasm.
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Employee Training Programs

Trainees Training Contents 2019 Performance
Grass-roots managers Role recognition, self-management, management of 100%

others, and working management Percentage of employees
Front-line managers Develop management skills of front-line shift and team ~ trained

leaders, cultivate a front-line management team with
high quality and high business ability, and lay a solid
foundation for the Company’s management

Newly-employed university Career quality, corporate culture, introduction to special 100.5 hours
students skills and other courses Average training hours
Front-line employees Courses about theory and practical training of the per employee

semiconductor manufacturing module

Career Development

According to industrial characteristics, the Company has set three professional categories, namely, management,
technology and functional support and has established corresponding positions. Employees may continuously
develop their careers in a single professional title category according to their own specialties, potential, and desires,
and in other professional title categories, such as a shift from technology to management, or function to technology.
In addition, we encourage employees to receive education and pursue further study, providing on-the-job academic
education subsidies for all employees working under a labor contract with the employer. A total of 7 employees
received education subsidies for masters and doctorate engineering degrees in 2019.

4 Products and Customers

The Company keeps track of international treaties, local and foreign laws, and regulations that are relevant to our
products and customers in places where our business operates; regularly updates our management policies governing
products and services in terms of health, safety, labels, privacy, and other areas; and establishes quality assurance
systems and customer service systems. As of the end of 2019, the Company had not been involved in any litigation
regarding infringement of the interests of customers, nor did the Company receive any litigation from customers
regarding product quality.
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4.1 Product Responsibility

Quality Control

According to the philosophy of “the quality is vital
for the existence of an enterprise”, the Company
has formulated the Quality Management Policy,
and successfully passed the ISO 9001 quality
management system and IATF 16949 automotive
quality management system certification.

Quality Management Policy

Comprehensively carry out performance excellence
management; strenuously promote the integration
of industrialization and informatization; actively
fulfill corporate social responsibility; strictly adhere
to the concept of zero defects; deliver green and
high-quality products on time; continuously deliver
competitive services; fully meet customer requirements;
unremittingly improve customer satisfaction; and realize
mutual benefit with win-win results.

The Company implemented an inclusive quality
management model in accordance with the Quality
Management Policy covering the five far-reaching
departments and sections of: quality systems and
customer satisfaction; supplier management and
raw materials analysis; quality engineering; reliability assurance; and failure analysis. To reduce human error, we
established multiple management systems, such as personnel management, equipment management, supply chain
management, environment management, systems management, process management, and customer quality control.
With these reliable management systems, we are able to achieve real-time monitoring and testing over our entire
product cycles from product R&D to production and after-sales feedback; carry out failure analysis on anomalies
that may arise during the production and application processes; dig out the nature of problems; and work out
corresponding corrective and preventive measures. The Company has established an optimal product recall system,
and our customers may return to us within the warranty period non-conforming products whose prescribed functions
or hazardous substances fail to meet our specifications. As of 2019, the failure rate of the Company’s products on the
end-user side was less than one in a billion.

Product Responsibility-related Certification

Product Quality Certification Authority Date of First Certification
28 1S0 9001 Qualit

IS o y . BSI 6 November 2001
Stz Quality Management System
'i:-"' .
(7 B JATF 16949 Aut ti

PR | Hromorve BSI 2 August 2005
W Quality Management System

Information Security Certification Authority Date of First Certification
g ISO 27001 Information

ISO : BSI 2 July 2004
i Security Management System
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Technological Innovation

The Company has always focused on technological innovation and a willingness to cooperate in the creation of
ICs under independent innovation. It established the first Expert Workstation and the first Enterprise Association for
Science and Technology in the integrated circuit industry in Shanghai. The Company endeavors to fully establish an
industry-university-research system for technology innovation through introduction of experts, project cooperation, talent
cultivation, academic exchange, etc., thus promoting the transformation of scientific and technological achievements
into actual productions.

Intellectual Property Protection

As a science-oriented enterprise, we advocate independent innovation and respect for intellectual property rights in
our research and development of application-specific integrated circuits, including intelligent chips and information
security chips. According to the Company’s System for the Management of Intellectual Property, we actively filed
applications for patents and investigated responsibility for any potential breaches of intellectual property rights. At the
same time, we promise that we will never infringe upon the intellectual property rights of any enterprise or individuals
and will keep confidential all technological information regarding products of upstream and downstream partners.

To reduce the risk of claims of infringement of third-party intellectual property rights against our manufacturing of
semiconductor devices or end products, we only accept orders from reputable customers with no known potential risk
of infringement. We have entered into several technology licensing agreements with major technology companies.

4.2 Customer Service and Protection of Customers’ Interests

Customer Service System

According to the philosophy of “providing customers with more convenient and safer services”, the Company has
established an impeccable customer service system, including three main aspects: customer communication;
customer complaint; and customer satisfaction.

/\

Customer Service System

/\

/\

Customer
Communication

Adopt multiple methods of
communication with customers,
including customer survey,
regular quarterly/semi-annual
business reviews, technical

seminar and trainings.

® <

Customer
Complaint
Establish customer complaint
channels and formulate the

Customer Complaint Handling
Procedure.

/
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The Company has formulated the Customer Complaint Handling Rules to standardize customer complaint handling
and the implementation of corrective and preventative measures. Customers may make a complaint and give feedback
to the Company through e-mail, hotline, letter, fax, and other channels.

Customer Complaint Handling Process

@ Occurrence of a Complaint
e Normally, communicate and confirm with the customer within 24 hours after the occurrence of a

)
& complaint and give a preliminary reply.

Investigation into Failure Causes

e  Complaints requiring product failure analysis will be submitted to relevant departments for handling.
Corrective and preventative measures will be proposed according to the investigation results and a
reply will be given to customers.

Correction and Prevention
’ e Relevant departments are required to implement corrective and preventative measures, and the
/ rectification effect is supervised and evaluated by regularly sorting out and analyzing relevant
information given in customer complaints.

Protection of Customer Information

The company attaches great importance to maintaining customer information security. We have established an
ISMS information security management system, which controls information security risks from information asset
management, personnel security, physical control, logic control, and other aspects to ensure information security
and is I1ISO 27001 certified. An Information Security Committee was established within the Company with the main
responsibilities including: responding to and making decisions on major emergency safety accidents; regularly
reviewing the information security management system; auditing our photomask partners to ensure the security of their
data management and storage; returning to customers or destroying waste masks generated during the production
process, thus preventing to the utmost disclosure of customer information on such waste masks. No incidents of
infringement against laws or regulations concerning customer privacy occurred within the Company during the year.
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5 Compliance in Business Operation

The Company is in strict compliance with laws and regulations with respect to compliance in business operations
including the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China,
and the Anti Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China. We thereby strengthen the implementation
of supplier review work and proactively engage in the promotion of clean and honest industrial practices and
anti-corruption governance. As of the end of the reporting period, the Company had not been involved in any litigation
with respect to any commercial bribery or corruption.

5.1 Responsible Value Chain

Creating the CSR value chain is an important strategy for long-term development of the Company. It has established
an excellent value chain management system and has conducted comprehensive assessment, management, and
control of the environmental and social risks of suppliers. It is committed to supporting the growth of suppliers to
promote development of the chip industry in China.

Risk Assessment Industry Growth

We mainly identify and We actively help Chinese
assess risks of the supply suppliers in improving
chain end in terms of price, management ability and
delivery period, corporate production level, so as to
social responsibility, promote the development
technical response, quality of the chip industry in China.
management, etc.

CSR Value Chain
Management System

Continuous
Improvement

We regularly audit suppliers
in terms of environment,
labor, ethics, etc., to promote
continuous improvement of
suppliers.

Management Policy
We have established a
CSC Procurement Review
Committee and formulated
a management policy in
terms of environment, safety,
health, ethics of suppliers,
etc.

|
©
J
|
%

The Company established a CSC Procurement Review Committee and implemented an open bidding process as
our main procurement approach to guarantee an equitable, open, and fair procurement process. As a member of
ECOVadis in France, we monitored the environmental and social risks of suppliers. By entering into the Undertakings
Against Commercial Bribery with suppliers, we strive to eradicate all unfair competition activities.

The Company continued raising requirements on our suppliers with respect to labor, health and safety, environment,
ethics, and management systems in accordance with the Code of Conduct of the Responsible Business Alliance
(formerly known as EICC) and offered relevant training. Through the annual supplier assessment system, the Company
requires unqualified suppliers to take corrective action, thereby further promoting the development of our green supply
chain.
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We proactively support growth and development
of our suppliers in China and constantly assist
suppliers in improving their management capabilities
and production levels. In addition, we proactively
encourage small and medium-sized enterprises to
participate in the local supply of key raw materials,
including, gases, chemicals, and silicon wafers.
Therefore, we've cultivated a growing group of local

Declaration of Non-use of lllegal Minerals

“HHGrace has always taken global social and
environmental responsibility as our goal and carried out
green procurement and has promised to undertake the
following responsibilities in its metal supply chain:

1) The promisor will assume social and environmental
responsibilities.

rgw.rlnaterial and quuipment suppliers, theret?y 2) Gold (Au), tantalum (Ta), tungsten (W) and tin (Sn)
significantly promoting the development of the chip that it promises to use do not come from “conflict
design industry in China. minerals”.

3) It promises to cause product suppliers to provide the
declaration that gold (Au), tantalum (Ta), tungsten (W)
and tin (Sn) do not come from “conflict minerals”, and
to carry out an investigation into conflict minerals, and
complete the EICC-GeSlI conflict minerals report.

Conflict Minerals Management

According to the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform
and Consumer Protection Act and research
reports of certain international non-governmental
organizations, metal mining will cause serious social
and environmental problems in certain areas. For
example, gold, palladium, tungsten, tin, tantalum,
etc. mined in the Democratic Republic of Congo are likely to be used for electronic and electrical products, such as
mobile phones and computers, in ICT industries.

The Company has undertaken to refuse to purchase conflict minerals and has conducted due diligence on the use
of conflict raw materials by suppliers. We continuously update reports on conflict minerals investigations according
to the Conflict Minerals Reporting Template (CMRT), jointly created by the Responsible Business Alliance (RBA,
formerly EICC) and the Global e-Sustainability Initiative (GeSl). According to investigation and review, in 2019 all of the
Company’s suppliers met the requirements of non-use of conflict minerals.

5.2 Anti-corruption

The Company has a long-term commitment to the development of an integrity and credibility culture, whether for the
management of external customers and manufacturers or for the management of internal cadres. The Company has
formulated the Management Rule Against Commercial Bribery, explicitly specifying that companies having business
dealings with the Company shall sign the Undertaking Against Commercial Bribery and that relevant internal personnel
shall sign the Undertaking to Reject Commercial Bribery. In order to ensure unblocked reporting channels for
employees and the standard and orderly handling of matters reported, the Company has published the Management
Measures for Case Handling and Investigation by the Discipline Inspection Commission, which covers the scope of
reporting, notes on reporting, requirements on handling of matters reported, and handling processes, etc.

In 2019, the Company continuously provided training and education on business integrity for all employees; actively
promoted the execution of the Undertaking Against Commercial Bribery and the Undertaking to Reject Commercial
Bribery; carried out regular audits and random checks; constantly promoted ethical business practices; organized
training programs with respect to anti-corruption and business integrity initiatives; and published ethical business
practice publicity documents through the intranet.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 ¢ HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 83



2019 ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANGE REPORT

Achievements in Anti-corruption and Integrity Promotion in 2019

System Construction
e  Prepared the work division table for the work plan and published it in the intranet of the Company.

Carried out enforcement for signing the Business Integrity Undertaking, the Undertaking to Reject
Commercial Bribery, and other documents, ensuring that 100% of relevant persons signed the
documents.

' Petitioning and Reporting

PN e Handled letters and visits according to the amended Case Handling and Investigation Management

m Measure and submitted letters from employees to the Discipline Inspection Commission in a timely
manner.

000 Awareness and Education
Ji‘!’"_& e In the intranet, set special columns including “discipline inspection system, alarm bell, discipline
L inspection mailbox” and other columns to continuously improve and update relevant information in
a timely manner.

e Held a three-day business training course.

Special Audits
@ ° In 2019, successfully completed special audits on cadre promotion and appointment procedures of
N Fab 7 and special audits on remunerations and business expenditures of leaders and cadres.

Complaint and Reporting Management

In order to standardize complaint and reporting management procedures, the Employee Complaints and Reporting
Management Measures of the Company provides clear reporting channels such as mail, hotline and mailbox to
encourage its employees to report suspected internal violations. With regard to the protection of whistle blowers,
the Company is responsible for the fairness and impartiality of the report handling process and results, and it strictly
protects the personal privacy of whistle blowers, in accordance with the requirements of the Management Measures for
Case Handling and Investigation by the Discipline Inspection Commission.
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Anti-corruption Supervision and Report Handling Procedures

Complete the
investigation

and evidence
collection within the

02 specified time limit, 04

Immediately record draw preliminary

any individual conclusions and
case reported and report to the Give feedback to
received. management. the whistle blower.
( () ( [
Arrange special Hold a special (]
personnel or meeting to review )

establish a special the contents of

team to understand the report and
01 the situation, carry 03 investigation 05

out an investigation results, and come
and obtain up with a solution.
evidence.

6 Social Welfare Causes and Public Communities

The Company insists on continual concern about and deep integration with the community. The Company focuses on
the needs of the community and regards mutual development with the community as an important part of our social
responsibility, including feedback to society in collaboration with all walks of life. With regard to community investment,
we focus on targeted poverty alleviation, joint construction of the community, and volunteer services.

The Company encourages employees to actively participate in voluntary services. The trade union department takes
the lead in organizing various employee volunteer activities, which are specified in the HHGrace Trade Union Member
Benefit Policy.

Targeted Poverty Alleviation

In 2019, in response to the call of Huahong Group for urban-rural partner assistance, the Company designated
employees to visit local underprivileged families in Yougiao Village, Shuxin Town, Chongming District during the Spring
Festival and held a signing ceremony for the urban-rural party organization partner assistance (for joint construction).
In the future, the Company will continue to carry out mutual assistance and joint construction activities with Yougiao
Village to realize resource sharing and mutual complementation, thus promoting better the harmonious development
and joint construction of enterprises and communities.

¢
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Joint Construction of Communities

In order to enhance the safety awareness of community residents, the Company has provided a First Aid Course
for Children’s Accidents in the community where the headquarters operates, including first aid common sense for
children and cardiopulmonary resuscitation for children, for three successively years. As a science-oriented enterprise,
the Company cooperated with the enterprise association for science and technology in launching a pilot project of
the community STEM science workshop. In 2019, it continued to provide children with programming enlightenment
activities, covering basic programming, robot control, and intelligent watering of plants, etc., so as to enhance the
exploration spirit and innovation ability of the children in communities.

Volunteer Service
We encourage our employees to serve the local community and express their solicitude, and we have established a
volunteer team, with a total of 659 hours of volunteer services provided in 2019.

Since 2006, employees of the Company have visited Meixin Nursing Home in Pudong New Area each quarter in their

spare time. In 2019, the Company’s employees gave the elderly wormwood sachets, citrus pu-erh tea, and other gifts.
They also wrote and directed art programs to bring joy and laughter to elderly in the nursing home.

7 2019 Social Recognitions

No. Awards

National and Industrial Awards

1 Benchmarking Enterprise in the Electronic Information Industry in China in 2019

2 Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design

3 Two-Star Green Building Design Label Certificate certified by Chinese Society for Urban Studies

4 2018 China Semiconductor Innovation Product and Technology Award

5 Enterprise with the Greatest Growth Potential in China New Energy Vehicle IGBT

6 Wafer OEM Enterprise with Outstanding Performance for the Year in 2019 China IC Design Achievement
Award
Provincial and Departmental-level Awards

7 Shanghai Quality Gold Award in 2018

8 Second Prize for Shanghai Science and Technology Award

9 2017-2018 Shanghai Role Model in Ethical and Cultural Progress

10 Outstanding Contribution Award in Science and Technology Innovation in the Pudong New Area of Shanghai

11 Benchmarking Enterprise for the 10th Anniversary of Shanghai Energy-saving and Emission-reduction (JJ)

Group Activities

12 Economic Contribution Award for Outstanding Enterprises in Zhangjiang Science City

13 Science and Technology Innovation Award at 2019 Conference for the Release of Shanghai Corporate Social
Responsibility Report
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Performance Indicators Unit 2017 2018 2019
Emissions

Total air emissions 10,000 m? 1,121,958 1,145,074 1,257,074
Nitrogen oxide (NOx) emissions Kg 26,374 26,821 19,383
Sulfur dioxide (SO,) emissions Kg 62 68 725
Total wastewater discharge 10,000 m? 436 473 431
GHG emissions Ton of CO, equivalent 424 151 434,834 449,339
GHG emissions per unit output Ton of CO, equivalent/ 0.22 0.21 0.23

8-inch wafers
Total hazardous waste produced Ton 4,641 5,122 5,013
Hazardous waste produced per unit output Kg/8-inch wafers 2.43 2.47 2.57
Total non-hazardous waste’ Ton 3,982 4,017 3,595
Non-hazardous waste produced per unit Kg/8-inch wafers / 2 1.80
output

Use of Resources

Total electricity consumed MWh 509,877 528,402 528,044
Electricity consumed per unit product? kWh/8-inch wafers 268 259 271
Natural gas consumed m?3 7,155,253 7,481,586 8,138,435
Natural gas consumed per unit product m®/8-inch wafers 3.75 3.66 418
Total water consumed m?3 4,898,783 9,267,637 7,724,830
including: Water from municipal water supply m?3 4,898,783 6,325,999 4,791,336
Wastewater reused m3 / 2,941,638 2,933,494
Water consumed per unit product® m®/8-inch wafers 2.57 3.10 2.46
Recycled/reused water m3 2,820,686 2,923,067 2,823,278
Total packaging materials used for the Ton 75 78 110

shipment of finished products
Total recycled packaging materials for Ton 15 16 8

the shipment of finished products

Note:

1

2

Non-hazardous waste is sludge produced in wastewater treatment.

The electricity consumed per unit product in 2018 disclosed in the 2018 Environmental, Social and Governance Report of Hua

Hong Semiconductor Limited has been changed to 259 kWh per 8-inch wafer.

In calculation, water consumed per unit product only includes water from the municipal water supply.
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Employment and Labor Practice

Performance Indicators Unit 2017 2018 2019
Employment
Total number of employees Individual 4,138 4,512 5,138
Including: Number of male employees Individual 2,914 3,227 3,720
Number of female employees Individual 1,224 1,285 1,418
Number of employees working under a labor contract Individual 4,138 4,512 5,138
with the employer
Number of employees working under a labor contract with Individual 215 209 130
a labor dispatch company
Number of employees aged under 30 Individual 2,001 2,129 2,354
Number of employees aged between 30 and 50 Individual 2,054 2,284 2,676
Number of employees aged above 50 Individual 83 929 108
Number of employees from Mainland China Individual 4,128 4,503 5,129
Number of foreign employees Individual 10 9 9
Health and Safety
Occupational disease incidence % 0 0 0
Number of work-related fatalities Individual 0 0 0
Lost days due to work injury Day 193.0 206.0 23.0
Development and Training
Average training hours completed per employee Hour 72.3 77.0 99.5
Including: Average training hours completed per Hour 72.6 78.0 100.5
non-management employee
Average training hours completed per management member  Hour 11.6 13.0 33.6
Average training hours completed per female employee Hour 69.9 66.0 87.7
Average training hours completed per male employee Hour 74.3 82.0 104.0
Percentage of employees trained % 100 100 100
Including: The percentage of non-management employees trained % 100 100 100
Percentage of management member trained % 100 100 100
Percentage of female employees trained % 100 100 100
Percentage of male employees trained % 100 100 100
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Product Responsibility and Customer Service

Performance Indicators Unit 2017 2018 2019
Product Responsibility

Product return rate % 0.3 0.104 0.05
Percentage of products sold subject to recalls for safety and health % 0 0 0

reasons.

Customer Service

Customer complaint event Case 10 8 3
Percentage of customer complaints resolved % 100 100 100

Supply Chain Management

Performance Indicators Unit 2017 2018 2019
Supply Chain Management

Total number of suppliers Supplier 508 520 532
Number of local suppliers Supplier 385 393 399
Number of foreign suppliers Supplier 123 127 133
Number of suppliers assessed’ Supplier 115 112 110
Number of suppliers subject to rectification Supplier 0 0 0
Percentage of raw and auxiliary material suppliers signing the % 100 100 100

Environmental Protection Undertaking
Percentage of raw materials purchased from local suppliers? % 23 26 28
Note:

1 The number of suppliers which were assessed by the Company in terms of labor, health and safety, environment, and business
ethics.

2 Raw materials purchased include silicon slice, quartz, target material, gas, chemicals, and other raw materials for production
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Anti-corruption

Performance Indicators Unit 2017 2018 2019

Anti-corruption

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought Case 0 0 0

against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period
Community Investment

Performance Indicators Unit 2017 2018 2019

Community Investment

Number of employees participating in volunteer services Person 178 176 245

Total hours of volunteer activities Hour 356 352 659

Compliance

Fields Names of Major Laws and Regulations

EHS Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China, Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution, Urban and Rural Planning Law of
the People’s Republic of China, Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China, Marine
Environment Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China, Energy Conservation Law of the
People’'s Republic of China, Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases, Law of the People’s Republic of China on Employment Contracts, Law
of the People’s Republic of China on Protection of Women'’s Rights and Interests, Registration,
Evaluation, Authorization, and Restriction of Chemicals (“REACH”), Waste Electrical and
Electronic Equipment (WEEE) and Restriction of Hazardous Substances (“RoHS”) etc.

Information Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China, Copyright Law of the People’s Republic of China,

Security Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China, Cyber Security Law of the People’s Republic

of China, Cryptography Law of the People’s Republic of China, Accounting Law of the People’s
Republic of China, and Regulation on the Administration of Commercial Cipher Codes, etc.

Quality Company Law of the People’s Republic of China, Constitution of the PRC, Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Product Quality, Customs Law of the PRC, Metrology Law of the People’s
Republic of China, and Foreign Trade Law of the PRC, etc.

RBA Anti-unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China, Employment Promotion Law of the

People’s Republic of China, Social Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of China, Contract
Law of the People’'s Republic of China, Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China, Criminal
Law of the People’'s Republic of China, Measures for the Administration of Health Insurance,
Measures for Application for and Payment of Unemployment Insurance Money, etc.
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9 Preparation

Report Overview

The 2019 ESG Report of Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Report”) discloses its
principles in fulfilling CSR and the work carried out in 2019. It mainly addresses our Stakeholders about sustainable
development regarding the relevant economic, environmental, and social issues.

Basis of Preparation

The Report was prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide published
by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. and by reference to the Sustainability Reporting Standards (2016)
issued by the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI).

Scope of the Report

Organizational Scope: The Report covers Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Company” or “we”), and is in consistent with the scope of the annual consolidated
financial statements of the Company.

Reporting Period: From 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019

Report Cycle: This is an annual report

Notes on the Data
Data and cases in the Report originate from original records and financial reports of the Company generated in actual
operations. In case of any inconsistency, data in the financial reports shall prevail.
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10 Index Table of the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide

of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

Section

A1. Emissions
General Disclosure A1
KPI A1.1

KPI A1.2
KPI A1.3
KPI A1.4
KPI A1.5
KPI A1.6
A2. Use of Resources
General Disclosure A2
KPI A2.1
KPI A2.2
KPI A2.3

KPI A2.4
KPI A2.5

A3. The Environment and Natural Resources

General Disclosure A3
KPI A3.1

B1. Employment
General Disclosure B1

KPI B1.1
KPI B1.2
B2. Health and Safety
General Disclosure B2

KPI B2.1

KPI B2.2

KPI B2.3

B3. Development and Training
General Disclosure B3

KPI B3.1

KPI B3.2

B4. Labour Standards
General Disclosure B4

92

8 Performance Data

2.1 Environmental Management System
8 Performance Data

2.1 Environmental Management System
8 Performance Data

2.1 Environmental Management System
8 Performance Data

2.1 Environmental Management System
8 Performance Data

2.2 Cleaner Production

2.2 Cleaner Production

2.3 Resource Saving
2.1 Environmental Management System
8 Performance Data
2.1 Environmental Management System
8 Performance Data
2.3 Resource Saving
2.3 Resource Saving
8 Performance Data

2.1 Environmental Management System
2.4 Green Products
2.1 Environmental Management System
2.4 Green Products

3.1 Rights and Benefits of Employees
8 Performance Data
8 Performance Data
8 Performance Data

3.2 Health, Safety and Employee Welfare
8 Performance Data
8 Performance Data
8 Performance Data
3.2 Health, Safety and Employee Welfare

3.3 Training and Career Development
8 Performance Data

8 Performance Data

8 Performance Data
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Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Section

KPI B4.1 3.1 Rights and Benefits of Employees

KPI B4.2 3.1 Rights and Benefits of Employees

B5. Supply Chain Management

General Disclosure B5 5.1 Responsible Value Chain

KPI B5.1 8 Performance Data

KPI B5.2 5.1 Responsible Value Chain

B6. Product Responsibility

General Disclosure B6 4.2 Customer Service and Protection of Customers’ Interests
8 Performance Data

KPI B6.1 8 Performance Data

KPI B6.2 4.2 Customer Service and Protection of Customers’ Interests
8 Performance Data

KPI B6.3 4.1 Product Responsibility

KPI B6.4 4.1 Product Responsibility

KPI B6.5 4.2 Customer Service and Protection of Customers’ Interests

B7. Anti-corruption

General Disclosure B7 5.2 Anti-corruption
8 Performance Data

KPI B7.1 8 Performance Data

KPI B7.2 5.2 Anti-corruption

B8. Community Investment

General Disclosure B8 6 Social Welfare Causes and Public Communities

KPI B8.1 6 Social Welfare Causes and Public Communities

KPI B8.2 8 Performance Data
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT

B 2B EN RS

Ernst & Young LG TR BISFT Tel®E 7 © +852 2846 9888
22/F, CITIC Tower FEEPBREE1 9 Faxf8E : +852 2868 4432
EYf i 1 Tim Mei Avenue FIERE22 & ey.com
7 Central, Hong Kong

To the members of Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hua
Hong Semiconductor Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 193 to 307, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B 2 BEN R E

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion
on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B 2 REN R E

Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the
key audit matter

Fair value of an unlisted equity investment

The Group’s equity investments
designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income as
at 31 December 2019 included
an unlisted equity investment
amounting to US$205 million.
The Group measures it at
fair value at the end of each
reporting period and engages
external experts to assess the
fair value. During the year, this
matter was significant to our
audit because the carrying
amount of the unlisted equity
investment was material to
the consolidated financial
statements and the valuation
process was complex and
involved significant judgements.

The Group’s disclosures about
valuation of the unlisted equity
investment are included in notes
3, 19 and 37 to the financial
statements, which specifically
explain the key assumptions
that management used in the
valuation.
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Our audit procedures included,
amongst others, assessing the
competency and objectivity of
the independent external valuer
engaged by the Group and
involving our internal specialists
to assist our work to evaluate the
methodology of the valuation and
the key assumptions used in the
valuation such as determination
of comparable public companies
(peers), selection of the price
multiple and discount for
illiquidity.

EREFEE (&)

BRETEER

BREITERE
ET R NAEHE

K LETRIEREZ 2FlE

RZZE—NFE+=A
=+—H &£E83k
EEANFEFTAHM
ZHE K= RERE
BERETRERE
205EE L. AKHE
REBREHRERAF
B HEETFEWE
BINPERFTHAF
B RAFE %S
HEEEWEME
BEKX IDHRAKE
mikERENRE A
HIEREHM BRI S
BEZ - BEEBIE
B WHPRERHA
@ﬁo

o B B30 37 A5
T BB 13 0 BB
MBI IRMIES - 19
37 H o 5
I8 [ 1 A 4
BEBER -

BEENEMEFE
(AR e b
BERBEMZENE
S7 50 R A B AP &Y B
WEEBEERERA
MERNBHT
At {8 10 R 1 B £ A
MEEDAREER
R& (A L
maR (Ff7) - &
BEREBEHERRZ
MBERITRE) ©

AR AR HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 187



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the
key audit matter

Fair value of an investment property

The Group recorded an investment
property amounting to US$169
million as at 31 December 2019.
The Group measures its investment
property at fair value at the end of
each reporting period and engages
external experts to assess the
fair value. During the year, this
matter was significant to our audit
because the carrying amount of the
investment property was material
to the consolidated financial
statements and the valuation
process was complex and involved
significant judgements.

The Group’s disclosures about
valuation of the investment
property are included in notes 3
and 14 to the financial statements,
which specifically explain the key
assumptions that management
used in the valuation.
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Our audit procedures included,
amongst others, assessing the
competency and objectivity
of the independent external
valuer engaged by the Group,
comparing property-related
data used for the valuation with
the underlying documentation
and involving our internal
specialists to assist our work
to evaluate the methodology
of the valuation and the key
assumptions used in the
valuation such as the estimated
rental value, term vyield,
reversionary yield and long term
vacancy rate.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’'s
report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we will not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B 2 BEN R E

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

e  (Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
R CE: e

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Shun Lung Wai.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR L\QSS
mEBmK

Year ended 31 December 2019
HE-Z-NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT-N\F
Notes (US$°000) (US$000)
Htat FErx F=T
Revenue SHE WA 5 932,567 930,268
Cost of sales SHEMKA (650,107) (619,114)
Gross profit EF 282,460 311,154
Other income and gains Hapg A Ras 5 69,091 43,613
Fair value gain on an investment property &Y% 80 A FEY 163 247
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEER (8,828) (7,771)
Administrative expenses EEER (169,796) (122,323)
Other expenses Hib&H 5 (406) (11,106)
Finance costs 5 ER 7 (1,242) (2,203)
Share of profit of an associate DI —REEE R R A 10,131 9,444
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BADER 6 181,573 221,055
Income tax expense FriSHif = 10 (26,588) (35,447)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERER 154,985 185,608
Attributable to: THIALFEL -
Owners of the parent ISYNEILY-PN 162,237 183,158
Non-controlling interests FEFEAR R 2 (7,252) 2,450
154,985 185,608
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE &4 FZEREZFE A
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS ERESREF :
OF THE PARENT: 12
Basic - IN
— For profit for the year — FWm A US$0.126 US$0.171
0.126% T 0.1713%7T
Diluted e
— For profit for the year — FRE A US$0.125 US$0.169
0.125% 7T 0.169% 7T
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CONSOLIDATED\S,TATEI\/IENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HEETEWER oo,

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
(US$’000) (US$'000)
FErx F=x
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREA 154,985 185,608
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Hit2HER
Other comprehensive loss that may be ~ RHEZHEIBI A EEH DA
reclassified to profit or loss in ZEGMEMEE
subsequent periods: [E518
Exchange differences on translation of A EGINERE
foreign operations SN Z5R (55,733) (107,744)
Net other comprehensive loss that may — RE &I A s EFH H 48
be reclassified to profit or loss in EEZMEMEME
subsequent periods B8 %58 (55,733) (107,744)
Other comprehensive income that will RERBETSEFHE
not be reclassified to profit or loss ZEMEMEE WS
in subsequent periods:
Equity investments designated at fair EERAFE
value through other comprehensive FTAEMEE
income: Was AR R & -
Changes in fair value NHEES) 2,708 1,764
Income tax effect FriStis 2 (406) (265)
Net other comprehensive income that RERBBTESENHES
will not be reclassified to profit or loss R EM RIS F5E
in subsequent periods 2,302 1,499
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FREMEEER
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX KRB IE (53,431) (106,245)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREEKGHEEE
FOR THE YEAR 101,554 79,363
Attributable to: TE AL -
Owners of the parent ISYNEIEZ=PN 129,422 105,794
Non-controlling interests FEERS R (27,868) (26,431)
101,554 79,363

@ HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED #4588 HR /A7) « ANNUAL REPORT 2019 2019 FE#HE



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e IR R

31 December 2019
HE-_Z-NF+-A=+—RHILFE

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
+t=ZA=+—-HB +ZA=+—H
Notes (US$°000) (US$'000)
s+ FEx FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE NEE 13 1,558,283 773,180
Investment property WEYEE 14 168,615 171,225
Prepaid land lease payments A T B E A 15 = 58,989
Right-of-use assets FREEE 16 74,526 -
Intangible assets mEE 17 13,322 9,571
Investment in an associate REL N BIRRE 18 73,142 64,005
Equity investments designated EERATHE AEM
at fair value through other ZEWE A RERE
comprehensive income 19 207,689 208,357
Long term prepayments to third parties ENE=1 2 REBNHIE 6,740 3,762
Long term prepayments to related M BaEE 75 R AT SRIE
parties 35(c) 6,808 8,747
Deferred tax assets BEEFIEEE 28 7,567 6,363
Total non-current assets IEMBEERT 2,116,692 1,304,199
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories w5 20 142,087 129,629
Trade and notes receivables B 5 EWGRIA K EWEE 21 164,968 176,797
Prepayments, other receivables TERTEIE - Bt ERIE
and other assets MEMEE 22 113,453 12,479
Due from related parties &S BE B 5 08 35(c) 9,262 10,800
Financial assets at fair B ATERT AEZER
value through profit or loss TREE 19 519,779 667,033
Restricted and time deposits B4 M EHIER 23 70,776 337
Cash and cash equivalents e NIBESEEY 23 476,286 777,000
Total current assets MENBEMRTE 1,496,611 1,774,075
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEAE
Trade payables B S IR 24 86,119 79,470
Other payables and accruals EpEZmELEEER 25 303,614 165,370
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTESRITER 26 4,300 4,371
Lease liabilities HEBE 27 1,922 =
Government grants HF#E8h 29 40,641 44,406
Due to related parties FET RS 5 k1E 35(c) 10,655 5,838
Income tax payable FERFTS R 28,088 30,114
Total current liabilities mENBERTE 475,339 329,569
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEERE 1,021,272 1,444,506
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EELER
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE 3,137,964 2,748,705

continued #&/...
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e PRI &R

31 December 2019

HE_Z-NF+-A=+—RHILFE

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
—E-hEF —F-N\F
+=ZA=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
Notes (US$°000) (US$'000)
it FEx FErx
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings sHEIRITER 26 21,502 26,227
Lease liabilities HEAaE 27 16,694 =
Deferred tax liabilities REEFIBEE 28 17,176 18,146
Total non-current liabilities MBI AERTE 55,372 44,373
Net assets BEE 3,082,592 2,704,332
EQUITY =
Share capital &N 30 1,966,095 1,960,159
Reserves i 32 279,146 195,097
Total equity attributable to [SYNSIEZEPN
owners of the parent ez 4R%E 2,245,241 2,155,256
Non-controlling interests JEIERRRE RS 40 837,351 549,076
Total equity EREE 3,082,592 2,704,332

N

Suxin Zhang
REL
Director

EF

PP w%

Jun Ye
2k
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
g s oo 0. R O RESS A BN IR

Attributable to owners of the parent
BRAER AR

Fair

value

reserve of

financial

Other assets at
reserve fair value

Share and  through other Statutory  Exchange Non-
Share Merger option contributed  comprehensive Revaluation reserve  fluctuation ~ Accumulated controlling Total
capital reserve reserve surplus income  surplus# funds reserve losses Total interests equity
BATEFA
Efb2EkE
AEE  NEREEZ HE AE

Bk afRE BRERE REZBE  OVERE ERBm BREE  RBRR  BHER &t FERER  BRER
Notes ~ US§'000  US§'000  USS$'000  USS§'000 US$'000  US$000  USS'000  USS'000  USS'000  US$000 - USS'000  USS'000
it Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin Fin T&n Tin e Tin

(note 30) (note 31) (note 32)
(H&E30) (zE31) (f&E32)
At 1 January 2019 R=E-hné-A-R
as previously reported e 1,960,159 645,494 6,607 34,590 2,545 99,257 71,595 34655  (699,646) 2,155,256 549076 2,704,332
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 LA & KSR
B 22 = = = = = = 3 - (1570)  (1,570) - (1,570)
At 1 January 2019 (restated)  R-E-AE—-A-A
(E51) 1,960,159 645,494 6,607 34,590 2,545 99,257 71,595 34,655 (701,216) 2,153,686 549076 2,702,762
Profit{oss) for the year ERER /(B8 - - - = = = = - 162287 162297 (1252) 154,985
Other comprehensiveloss ~ EREM2ESHE
for the year:
Exchange differences related  BEEHERE)
to foreign operations HEZE - - - - - - - (35,117) - (35,117)  (20616)  (55,733)
Net gain on equity RERATEALM
investments designated SERENRERE
atfair value through W8 - MREE
other comprehensive
income, net of tax - - - - 2,302 - - - - 2,302 - 2,302
Total comprehensive income  EAZELHEE
for the year - - - - 2,302 - - (35,117) 162,237 129,422 (27,868) 101,554
Final 2018 dividend declared  BHEE-F—/\E58 - - = = = . - - B (T - B0
Issue of shares EIRG 30 5,936 - (1,634) - - - - - - 4,302 - 4,302
Equity-settled share IEREENERER
option arrangements 3 - - 7508 - - - - - - 7508 238 7,746
Capital contribution from SRR TE
non-controlling interests - - - 1,095 - - - - - 1,095 315,905 317000
Transfer from retained BRa-HTAR
profits generated EEORERR
by a subsidiary - - - - - - 17591 - (17591) - - -
At 31 December 2019 RZE-1E
+ZA=t-A 1,966,095 645,494 12,481 35,685 4847 99,257 89,186* (462)* (607342 2,245,241 837351 3,082,592
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
MEERBER ST

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAEA AR
Fair
value
reserve of
financial
Other assefs at
feserve fair value
Share and  through other Statutory  Exchange Non-
Share Merger option ~ confributed ~ comprehensive - Revaluation reserve  fluctuation - Accumulated controlling Total
capital reserve reserve surplus income  surplus# funds feserve losses Total interests equity
RATEA
Ap2ENE
ApRE  HWEREAEZ iy SHE

BE AHEE BRERR REFER  ATERE EfAM  BREE  RBER Z0BR gt EREE  EaeE
Notes  USH000  USSOO0  USH000  USSO00 USS0D  USS000  USS000  USS000  USS000  USSOO0  USSO0D  USS000
#E TERn TEr TR TR TRt TR TEm TR TR TR TRm TR

(note 30) (note 31) (note 32)
(H¥30) (Rta1) (t32)
At1 January 2018 R=E-\¥-A-R 1,654,870 645,494 7,083 45,097 1,046 99,257 52,173 13518 (822287) 1,696,251 - 1696251
Profit for the year R - = = = = = = = 183,158 183,158 2450 185,608
Other comprehensive EREMRERE
income for the year:
Exchange differences RENEBNNERE
related to foreign operations - - - - - - - (78,863) - (78863)  (28881)  (107,744)
Net gain on equity RERATET AL
investments designated SERENRERE
atfair value through WiFE - MpE
other comprehensive
income, net of tax - - - - 1499 - - - - 1,499 - 1499
Total comprehensive income A2 ANELE
for the year - - - - 1499 - - (78863 18315 105794 (26431) 79363
Final 2017 dividend declared  BAER-F—+ERE - - - - - - - - (41,005)  (41,09) - (41,095)
Issue of shares ki 30 405,289 - (1,774) - - - - - - 403515 - 403515
Equiy-settled share NEREENERERS
option arrangements 31 - - 1,298 - - - - - - 1,298 - 1,298
Capital contribution gD T E
from non-controlling interests - - - (10,507) - - - - - (10507) 575,507 565,000
Transfer from retained b= SN
profits generated EENBERT
by a subsidiary = = = = = - 1042 - (19422) = = =
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E
TZA=t+-H 1,960,159 645,494 6607 34590 2505 99267 71595*  34655' (699646 2155256 549076 2704332
#  Revaluation surplus arose from a change in use from an #  EAEBERIEATFEIE T —IESHY%
owner-occupied property to an investment property carried at fair B BB AR o
value.
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * EZ LT pE A\ =l de A B RIS SR R A
US$279,146,000 (2018: US$195,097,000) in the consolidated & % 1#279,146,000% 7T (= FE — /1 #F :
statement of financial position. 195,097,000 ) °

HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED T35 88HR AR  ANNUAL REPORT 2019 20194 FEME



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AERERER

Year ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-hF+-_A=+—RHLEE

2019 2018
—E-hF =—\F
Notes (US$°000) (US$'000)
Btat FER FE
CASH FLOWS FROM e AEREESRE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax FRATREF 181,573 221,055
Adjustments for: FATSIEEL N
Finance costs Hﬁ%%ﬁﬁ 7 1,242 2,203
Share of profit of an associate DAE—REEE A R T (10,131) (9,444)
Interest income FLEWA 5 (17,676) (9,489)
Other interest income from financial BRATFEFABRD
assets at fair value through profit SREEFES
or loss 2 E At A WA 5 (19,965) (11,412)
Fair value gains on financial assets BATERT AR
at fair value through profit or loss SMEEA T ERKS & (4,024) (4,200)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items HEME - BE KRG
of property, plant and equipment BEME (Ka), A 5] (598) 96
Depreciation of property, plant Y - BB REETE
and equipment 13 122,630 116,187
Amortisation of intangible assets S Y 17 3,444 3,006
Recognition of prepaid land FEAf AR E FRIERER
lease payments 15 - 666
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 16 2,637 -
Changes in fair value of an BREME LN THEEE
investment property 14 (163) (247)
Write-down of inventories to T%’i?ﬁﬂ})ﬁi
net realisable value ~ ZE#[# HIRRE 6 1,370 646
Impairment of trade receivables %f%ﬂgﬂﬂlmlﬁxmﬁ 6 47 25
Impairment of items of property, Y% - BEMEREEE
plant and equipment TR 13 2,222 6,151
Equity-settled share option expense LA A E B AR IR 2 31 7,746 1,298
270,354 316,541
Increase in inventories RN (13,646) (14,199)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B 5 EUGRIA K
notes receivables FEM BRI A (38 0) 11,804 (64,382)
Increase in prepayments, TERFRIE - EAthfEWGRIE
other receivables and other assets N E A B EELE N (99,551) (8,657)
Decrease in amounts due from JE L B RSt 75 SR IR
related parties Vo 1,538 36,188
(Increase)/decrease in pledged deposits 2 3EMFR (3E80), 5L (458) 19
Increase in trade payables B 5 FE IR N 6,649 11,346
Increase in other payables and accruals — H{th g~ Fa
&iﬁ{fﬂ%ﬁﬁﬂ‘bﬂ 14,580 18,955
(Decrease)/increase in government BRAFraas Cmid),/#mn
grants (2,380) 6,011
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due e~ a5 B oA
to related parties #an, CRd) 4,817 (5,047)
Cash generated from operations KRETHELENRSE 193,707 301,775
Income tax paid EATFTiS R (30,773) (27,375)
Net cash flows generated RETERBRE
from operating activities REFE 162,934 274,400

2019F FEMeE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

— hy i — Year ended 31 December 2019
i \éfﬁﬁ)ﬁié‘% e
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Notes (US$°000) (US$'000)
Bfat FErx FET

CASH FLOWS FROM RETHAERERE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received BHE 17,441 10,300
Purchases of items of property, plant BEVE  BELK

and equipment, prepaid lease IHE - ENEENIE

payments and intangible assets MEREE (922,281) (229,837)
Increase in long-term prepayments e BB 7 S A /Y

to related parties REATEI FRIBIE AN = (8,747)
Proceeds from disposal of items HEME - BEMEE

of property, plant and equipment T8 B PS8 796 4
Receipt of government grants for WEIBFE R - BB

property, plant and equipment RREREE 94,519 -
Purchases of financial assets at EERATEF ABR

fair value through profit or loss NEREE (2,532,504) (1,959,653)
Proceeds from disposal of financial LERAFERT ABRA

assets at fair value through profit CRVEEFTSRIA

or loss 2,689,442 1,279,352
(Increase)/decrease in time deposits EHTER (1E),m (70,000) 191,342
Net cash flows used in RETBFARSRERHE

investing activities (722,587) (717,239)
CASH FLOWS FROM METHFERERE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BT PS5/ IR 2,550 403,956
Capital contribution from FEER S L E

non-controlling interests 317,000 565,000
Dividends paid to shareholders AR R 2 AR B2 (50,963) (41,066)
Interest paid EAIFLE (481) (2,259)
Increase in pledged deposits [mEgEEE e il (22) (8)
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (4,332) (60,613)
Principal portion of lease payments XHERS N (854) -
Net cash flows generated from RLE BN TS

financing activities RenEFHE 262,898 865,010
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN RERBELEEY

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CR2) /&R (296,755) 422 171
Cash and cash equivalents at FUREMREEEY

beginning of year 777,000 374,890
Effect of foreign exchange rate SNEERZEZE -

changes, net (3,959) (20,061)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRAGRAESEEY

AT END OF YEAR 23 476,286 777,000
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF RERRESEMEHRIN

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances IR NIRTT4EES 23 211,409 171,781
Non-pledged time deposits with RERRREER DR

original maturity of less than =16 A R FEE I E BATF R

three months when acquired 264,877 605,219
Cash and cash equivalents as stated MR R EIR S HERT

in the statement of financial position FroR & IR & EEY)

and in the statement of cash flows 23 476,286 777,000
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2019
—F-NEF+=A=*+—H

Corporate and Group information

Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Hong Kong on 21 January
2005. The registered office of the Company is located at Room
2212, Bank of America Tower, 12 Harcourt Road, Central,
Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
During the year, the Company’s subsidiaries were principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of semiconductor
products.

In the opinion of the directors, the parent and the ultimate
parent of the Company are Shanghai Alliance Investment Ltd.
(“SAIL") and INESA (Group) Co., Ltd. (“INESA”) respectively,
which are state-owned companies established in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”), supervised by the State-owned

Assets Supervision and Administration Commission.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

Br IS SRR M AT

RFAREEER

EWHERERAF [ARA]) A—K
R-BERE—A_+—BEEETM
R HBRAR o AR R ERE
AESHBREBRBEIEEEETP O
22127FE o

ARABNEBERHRREER - RNF
N ARBNTFRARTENREFEEE
mAEENMHE -

EEZRA ARANEG AR RRKE
BRARI SRR LEBBMIRERR QR
(T &k E/BEE (KE) AR
NE([REEE] - LEBAINEES
B RRHEARKLME (THE]) K
VIHBAEEEEEHRZES ([H
ER]) BEEWBBERQF -

BFREFARNESR
RABBETEZFRANFHFMOT

follows:
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/  €quity attributable to
registration and registered share the Comgﬁny
business capital(000) _ FAFEERGEALL
Name HMRL,/ BRIEE/ Direct Indirect  Principal activities
£ BRBERER EfEE (F7) B B EEXHEE
Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation  Cayman Islands US$0.001 100% - Investment holding
(“Grace Cayman”)* HERs 0.001% RERR
Shanghai Huahong Grace Semiconductor PRC/Mainland China RMB?5,865,538 100% - Manufacture and sale of
Manufacturing Corporation (“HHGrace”)** HE /HRER AR®5,865,5387T semiconductor products
EETENHEREERAR (RN )~ EERFEHERER
Huahong Semiconductor (Wuxi) Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China US$1,800,000 22.2% 288%  Manufacture and sale of
(*Hua Hong Wuxi")*™* RE /RER 1,800,000% 7T semiconductor products
FLER (BH) BRAR (IE5)) EERHEERER
Shanghai Huajie IC Technology Service Co., Ltd. ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB41,385 - 100%  Inactive
(“Shanghai Huajie”)** PE/RER AR®41,3857T =23
RS R EmREARAR ([ DEEE]) ~
Global Synergy Technology Limited (‘GST") Hong Kong HK$10 100% - Trading
HERRERAR (TR ) &E 1047 g5

2019F FZ ¥R ANNUAL REPORT 2019 o ZFEHTE8HR A E HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 201



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IS ERRMEE S

1. Corporate and Group information (continued) 1. 2AREEBER (&)

Information about subsidiaries (continued) BEFRATNESR (E)
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/  equity attributable to
registration and registered share the Company
= 3T A
business capital('000) ARAEERRAS L
Name HMERL/ BRIEE/ Direct Indirect  Principal activities
8 BRMERER EMRE (F7) £ B IEXRED
HHGrace Semiconductor USA, Inc.” USA = 100% - Sales office
HHGrace Semiconductor Japan Co., Ltd.* Japan JPY10,000 100% - Sales office
AA 1000087 HERZE
* No audited financial statements have been prepared for e REBEFE-—F—NEFE+—-H=+—HIF
these entities for the year ended 31 December 2019, as these FJF - AR A B 35 2 B B ) 4 2 42 BT
entities were not subject to any statutory audit requirements BiRE  FARERTME VA EE
under the relevant rules and regulations in their jurisdictions of EBHIFEERER EH ST
incorporation. FETTEDEEEF K °
* HHGrace, Hua Hong Wuxi and Shanghai Huajie are respectively *H o ZET A2 ZEATAE RS G [ A B
registered as a wholly-foreign-owned company, a Sino-foreign WRIED B EFHAI)EEERNG
joint company and a domestic company under PRC law. HGNAE BRI RAAERE] ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
“ooneionsr s B EEERAR B EE

2.1 Basis of Preparation 21 RBEE

These financial statements have been prepared in ZEWBBRRDBBEREESHAE
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ([BEAESHMAE]) BHhNEETE
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting WEER (B BRERD] - B
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) FIBEBEVBmEER - &gt
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute (BEAEEL]) kakg)  BEAR
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting S EURBEBRTHEARE o B
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the Hong WERDIBBEEL KN NEAFR - DI
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared NTHEFENREDMSE BERATE
under the historical cost convention, except for investment ST AH Mt 2 E W s F IR IR B RIZ AT
property, equity investments designated at fair value through Bt ABRHNEREERIN - ZFUB
other comprehensive income and financial assets at fair value mirAET ([Ex]) 2% M58
through profit or loss which have been measured at fair value. ERASN  FTBEREENREREANT
These financial statements are presented in United States 8] -

dollars (“US$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation mER%E
The consolidated financial statements include the financial FEVBEmERBEARAREFAA
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively (B ([AEE]) HEZE=_ZFT—LFT
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December ZRA=T—RLEFENMBERSE - FA
2019. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), AIEXANREENEEEFNELR
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control (BIEABLEER) - MASEERS2H
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to WIRETEBMZA B RNGERRE
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has FHRE B - BBRENITEERIKE
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the FHENTZEB@ALDR  AASEHRE
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ZERBrESIE (AIRER T AEEE
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee). BRWREREEEEEEN) ©
When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a A RB B EERENEIRE TR
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group SRELBOURERTRAE - BIF/EERR
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing RIEERESESSHEENE  AEH
whether it has power over an investee, including: SEZRMAEBEERER B
(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of (a) HAZWIREHHMINEEEB AN
the investee; X ok:a7 3N
(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and (b) WEBEBHMELNLHFIZARER
X
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights. (c) AEEMKREERBLIEERE -
The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared TR RIEAAR R 7] 8 B 7% 3k B 3 d AR
for the same reporting period as the Company, using R - WERA—BEEBERGR - FA
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries AIMEE R ASERGESI#E 2 B
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains RAEANR - WHEERS AREZEE
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that IR RIE -

such control ceases.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RaRMIEE

2.1

204

31 December 2019

Basis of Preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described above.
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognizes (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(i) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognized in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.1 mBLEE (F)

REEE (H)
Téiﬁ?&&ﬁ@z@%l¥ﬁ’3 B TIEEBR
REBBREHEB A MIEERER - A
BEPIERERELBAAR - A&
B B RRZERZAELMEERE
BENAE  #m - WA XHEES
MEBEGE AR 2R o

HEEMRENBER LA =RIZEHRERERZ
*Iﬁiylﬁﬂjﬁm@] K%lé\ééﬁﬁﬁr
HEREEFRRER NGIECR
ﬁ%f“—m@(&ﬁ%ﬁT %M%E) 73
EERR YN

M A SR 2K 5 — A T R R RO FR Il 42
AIHBUBHER()Z T RARINEE (B
EE) RAE - (i) EFEE bR R
EE RN ESEANCHEN RIS ZE
B MEER() AT ER RTE - (i)
REBEMIREN R FERGI)VERESD
TR EENRERLERE © THRE
fhem ks ERNAEBRERNE
MoBRERETRN (WER) -
HARBEEERLERBEERA R
ZBALAR— %’Eﬁguu °©
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
“ooneionsr s B EEERAR B EE

228 RN BBRKE

Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

HKFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 3,
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and
HKAS 23

Except for HKFRS 16 Leases, the new and revised HKFRSs
had no significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
The nature and the impact of HKFRS 16 are described below:

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-
Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles
for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under
a single on-balance sheet model to recognize and measure
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, except for certain
recognition exemptions. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16
is substantially unchanged from HKAS 17. Lessors continue
to classify leases as either operating or finance leases using
similar principles as in HKAS 17.

AEERAEERBERIAE KA T
SIFTR] R RT BB M H s 2R -

BT HEEAEH RERAEZIEFEN
(BaTA) wit

ERUBREERE 6  HE

ERGERIE 198 BT FHAEE

(BATA)

ERGERI B8 RBERAREETE
(BFTA) HEAER

&% (BRIKHRS FriFEEn T T Y

REZEE)-RER0R
BEABHSEN - F-1F BEWHREENE
EoELEEAFENE % BEMBREE
A3 FR G
RAF15REEE
iT B E23% (BT
x)

BREBMIEREERF16HRHAEIN -

A REIER BB RS ERHAEE

PRV ETMNERTE - BBEUKE
EARERIFE16HMMEE R ENT ¢

EREMBHRELENE1RENAELS
AEREITREE BB (HKRMK
BERBZER) REFIVELL
HELEZAHE  BE (FHERERE
) -REFISRLLHE - EELE
B(RHREZE®) - 2EF27HRF
1B REEZEEARZHIAE » %%
AlEAHERR 8 2IIMEER
Al WERABAEE-BEARBERN
BRRGHEMEEE - R ER
REEENREERRE  HETHIHR
BRSO - BRI E LR FE 165 AB0H
RERSTEFI7THRALHEANES

RETA - hWEABEEEREETES
SHEAFATHRBUNRASEESER
REeHEXMERE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BrEE SRR MY EE

31 December 2019
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and

206

Disclosures (continued)

HKFRS 16 did not have any significant impact on leases where
the Group is the lessor.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective method with the date of initial application of 1
January 2019. Under this method, the standard has been
applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initial
adoption recognized as an adjustment to the opening balance
of accumulated losses at 1 January 2019, and the comparative
information for 2018 was not restated and continued to be
reported under HKAS 17 and related interpretations.

New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Control is conveyed where the customer has both the right
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use
of the identified asset and the right to direct the use of the
identified asset. The Group elected to use the transition
practical expedient allowing the standard to be applied only
to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 at the date of initial application.
Contracts that were not identified as leases under HKAS
17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 were not reassessed. Therefore, the
definition of a lease under HKFRS 16 has been applied only to
contracts entered into or changed on or after 1 January 2019.

13
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and 228 BERNBBHRIEE (&)
Disclosures (continued)
As a lessee — Leases previously classified as operating ERABA-EZA2EAKELHED
leases HE
Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 RN BB TSR 2ERE 165 A7 E 1
The Group has lease contracts for various items of property. REBRBESEME LHEESD - 1ER
As a lessee, the Group previously classified leases as either EBEAN AEEXABREBEHEERST
finance leases or operating leases based on the assessment 15 & E T A MR A S B & & e
of whether the lease transferred substantially all the rewards BERSERNFMG  SHESEARE
and risks of ownership of assets to the Group. Under HKFRS MESLCEHE - REBEVBWMEE
16, the Group applies a single approach to recognize and AIE165%  N"EBEBAE —HARER
measure right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases, Rt EMEHENERAEEEREES
except for two elective exemptions for leases of low-value BfE WEEBEAEME (REARNEE
assets (elected on a lease-by-lease basis) and leases with a HEEEE) REHAAFIIRTZMEAN
lease term of 12 months or less (“short-term leases”) (elected ME ((RHHEE]) GREEEERRIE
by class of underlying asset). Instead of recognizing rental #) IMIBEZERERIN c REERE
expenses under operating leases on a straight-line basis REAEEEFE (REHE 08) &
over the lease term commencing from 1 January 2019, the HMAREEHEBECEFTMNE (BRA
Group recognizes depreciation (and impairment, if any) of the BAR) - MERB_ZE-—NEF—-—H—H
right-of-use assets and interest accrued on the outstanding sz MBNRESENKCEHEET
lease liabilities (as finance costs). wREeRAY -
Impact on transition BEZE
Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 were recognized based on RZZE-—NF—A—HZ2HEEARBZH
the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted BREENRNEE FRZZ—NLF
using the incremental borrowing rate at 1 January 2019. The —A—BHIRIE AR AR IR T AR
right-of-use assets were recognized based on the carrying R FRAEEERKRMERER  MWZ
amount as if the standard had always been applied, except for B —EEER WEESEENER
the incremental borrowing rate where the Group applied the Sh MAKREER =T —NE—H—H
incremental borrowing rate at 1 January 2019. JEFRIEERETRZE o
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and

Disclosures (continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as operating
leases (continued)

Impact on transition (continued)

All these assets were assessed for any impairment based
on HKAS 36 on that date. The Group elected to present the
right-of-use assets separately in the statement of financial
position.

The Group has used the following elective practical expedients
when applying HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019:

e  Applying the short-term lease exemptions to leases with
a lease term that ends within 12 months from the date of
initial application; and

e  Applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases
with reasonably similar characteristics.

Financial impact at 1 January 2019
The impact arising from the adoption of HKFRS 16 as at 1
January 2019 was as follows:

22T RN BERIKE (&)

EREBA-AANSBERELEHEEN
HE (&)

BEZE (B)
PIBZSEERNZAYREEEGE
A 365k BLE BB R L FHE - ARE
BERMBIRAR T EBIRERESR
= o

R-ZE—HhE—A—BEASEHER
LERNE16TE - NEBEB AU TR
BUHEERETIE

o HRHEHBEMFERZAE+ _{E
ARKRIENHERBEHHEER
R

. HEEEERLNEEMEAERE
— BT -

R-ZB-NF-A-—HNUMBE
R-ZF-NF—A—BRABTEVBR
SREAFIHEAELENTEWT

Increase/(decrease)
&, R
US$’000
FEx

Assets EE
Increase in right-of-use assets 2 A& AL N 77377
Decrease in prepayments included in ST ATERFRIE - Eofth FEWCRIE [ Eofth

prepayments, other receivables and & EE R TR IR

other assets (1,711)
Decrease in the current portion of prepaid T ATEFRIE - EhEUGRIE R E At

land lease payment included in prepayments,  &EEHTEN + 7 & FRIEENEIEE 5

other receivables and other assets A (642)
Increase in deferred tax assets EEF TR & EE LN 277
Decrease in the non-current portion of prepaid — F81 38 & Zk I8 3ERNER S0 7 i >

land lease payments (58,989)
Increase in total assets BEREEM 16,312
Liabilities aE
Increase in lease liabilities HEAEEM (17,882)
Increase in accumulated losses RETEEE 1,570
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31 December 2019
—E-NF+=-A=1+—8H

22T RN BERIKE (&)

Financial impact at 1 January 2019 (continued) Rfé_niﬁ_ﬁ —H E’ﬂﬂ?ﬁiﬁ? E(ﬁ\)
The lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 reconciled to the B’;\_ﬁ—ﬂiiﬂiﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁtﬁiﬁi?ﬁ
operating lease commitments as of 31 December 2018 are as —= i/\g""—ﬁ ST EMEEHE
follows: APEEERINT
US$'000
FET
Operating lease commitments as at RIB-N\F+A=1T—HRKE
31 December 2018 TEASE 27,116
Less: Commitments relating to short-term leases B BRI AR E R RIE (587)
26,529
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate R-ZE-—NF—-HA—BamMEFH
as at 1 January 2019 EEEEFE 4.9%
Discounted operating lease commitments RZZE-NE—HA—AMERLE
as at 1 January 2019 MEASE 19,593
Less: Prepayments included in prepayments, B RZE-N\F+_A=1+—H5TA
other receivables and other assets as TERFRIE ~ Efth FEUCRIE
at 31 December 2018 HibBEMTEMNFIE (1,711)
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 RZZE-hF—A—AMNHEaE 17,882
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business'

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform!

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®
Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Definition of Material
HKAS 8

’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

Z No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

While the adoption of some of the new and revised HKFRSs
may result in changes in accounting policies, none of these
HKFRSs is expected to have a significant impact on the
Group’s results of operations and financial position.

23EEMEHRERNE LM

& 2R

A S B 4 A SR S B RS MR A T B
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2A4BE RS BEHE

Investment in an associate REEATRNERE

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term BERNA A BAASEHAEE KT
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting DRR20% IR A ERER R B HK
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant SETHAREBESATENNER -
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in RN BNIEERN /,\TxﬁﬁT%H’JEM‘%
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, RASEBRRE - BN HEEZFEORE
but is not control or joint control over those policies. B 1 B A 1 il o

The Group’s investment in an associate is stated in the REEREE R ANRERGS FHR
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s MEANZEREES AT ENREE
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, FE(FE ENRBERDREEBESER
less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other AEERELEBREARNBEREER
comprehensive income of an associate is included in the HEfn 2 EKR S RITIALRE Bk RER
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated other BHMEBEEKZERE o LI - WEEE QR
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there WEZNEZERERE 28 AAEH
has been a change recognized directly in the equity of the E",\/\/W/Eﬁu“ibﬁWEEM\,\EAEHH
associate, the Group recognizes its share of any changes, ) (WER) MEGEGD AREERHE
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in B N AIETT A 5 FTEE AR O R B3R iz
equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions LEBRASENZSHE AR E
between the Group and its associate are eliminated to the TS - T’Eﬂiﬁiﬁﬁﬂgﬁﬂﬁ?@a—?ﬁﬁ
extent of the Group’s investment in the associate, except EEEELIRBEERRIN o Wi — R
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of ERRESNEES RAE B —
the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of LERNEIRER—EB D o

an associate is included as part of the Group’s investment in
an associate.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a iR B2 A RIMIREF KNG E R FH
joint venture, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, ®E - RE %ﬁnTAi%ﬁ#; R
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity ZIRE R EELEREVER - RATEHE
method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence BT @ WASE T BEEEE QA%
over the associate, the Group measures and recognizes any BEAXEN  AEEBFEEAFER
retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between ENBERERMRBIRE - RAEERY
the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant L HRFE IR S A REREA
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained HRBIEENATFERDLERMBRIEL
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognized in profit M ERZEREN B AR o
or loss.
When an investment in an associate is classified as held Tﬁﬁ’\%%@\jﬂ'ﬁxﬁ?ﬁ’\*ﬁﬁr%ﬁﬁ
for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 & BIRBEBUEHRE LR Eo5K =
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. TEH EFIE B B B R AR IF F B AT & R T
SAE °
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment property, equity
investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in

their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset

in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable

inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2AB RS BERBE (&)

(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets, financial
assets, investment properties and non-current assets/
a disposal group classified as held for sale), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.
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31 December 2019

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

214

(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognized only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher
than the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) bhas significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED T35 88HR AR  ANNUAL REPORT 2019 20194 FEME

24BREFTHERBE (&)

FEMEERME (H)

BEEREREEREERRH KD
TRRHER - RFHEERBER - s
ARERBRERE LA IR KRR ER
BE - BAMRERRREEHISZHER
REENFERZEENTERR 5
BEEENEESHENERRAERR
BEEERI)RE— B R R R S8 Rl 40

REREHR - EFERTERRER
5T A HERR YR (B B 1R T B A FE Sk Al BE

WA o MBRERRIFHE - B
WEEEE - SR EE (BRI i
REBERRE  ERRAUEEZEEN
AU Bl BEE ffE A 8 T AR - B
BROSBE TSR HBEFEL BAZ
BEERREBERBRTREETRE
HE (&R ERTE #H) - O
BEBEREEERBFABRRR @
Wz AEEAEGEESIE - RIBERS
BRNeRZASHEEERNEHE
STBER AR

BB
AT AT A48 45 B AR R A R B

(a) fAAT ALEITH

(i) fRdlskARESIASE
(i) BAKBMEEATESN X

(i) AAEEIAEEE QR
FETEEKE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Related parties (continued)

A party is considered to be related to the Group if: (continued)
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

216

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated
and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 3.8%
Plant and machinery 9.5% — 19.0%
Office equipment 19.0%
Motor vehicles 19.0%
Leasehold improvements 20.0%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at least at each financial year end.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2AB RS BERBE (&)

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on disposal
or retirement recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognized is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.

Investment property

Investment property is interest in land and buildings (including
the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset (2018:
leasehold property under an operating lease) which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such property is measured initially at cost,
including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the investment property is stated at fair value, which reflects
market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
investment property are included in the statement of profit or
loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognized in the statement of profit or
loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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(continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end.

Process technology licence and software

Process technology licence and software are stated at
cost less any impairment losses and are amortised on the
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 5 to 10
years of the underlying products, commencing from the date
when the products are put into commercial production.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources
to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed
when incurred.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2AB RS BERBE (&)

(continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)

HE (B-2-hF-A—-HEEA)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract REEREHMBRTEEHORSE AL
is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right BEHE  EOABRDIRERTLS
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in £ —ER S R Al 2 5 Bl & EE 150 F O
exchange for consideration. A e

Group as a lessee KEEEBEEA

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement REBEMEHEE (EEBHBEEREKE
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and BEEEHERIN) KIE -—HAKTTE
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognizes lease FiE e AEBERRATEEAGENELEE
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets I MEREEERGREEEEN
representing the right to use the underlying assets. FER] -

(a)

Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are recognized at the commencement MRIAER B E (BNAERE & &= Al i
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset FRAMBE) BREAEEE - £
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured AEEERKABEMABTINER
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any EREEEE - WHERERN
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement FrEHEEGEERRAE  FAEE
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes ENABECHEREESERE
the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct X EEXEEKARRFSG B H
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the S AEHMBEENFBERMED
commencement date less any lease incentives received. BN E 2R - FAEEERHME
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line HRETAI RS (AREER
basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the B) REHEITENT :
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Land use right

(a) EREEE

42 10 50 years + b {5 42ZE 504
210 20 years BF 2E 204

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at Wl EEENMBERNEEIRE
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise BEREE AR B AR
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the BT - AT EEAEENMGETA
estimated useful life of the asset.

ERFHAENE -
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
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Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019) (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognized at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognized as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change
in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets
recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that
are considered to be low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low value assets are recognized as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24TESHBERBE (&)

(continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019) (continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as
either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in
other income and gains in the statement of profit or loss due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognized as other income and gains in the period in which
they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee
are accounted for as finance leases.

Leases (applicable before 1 January 2019)

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised
finance leases are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss so as
to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease
terms.
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(continued)

Leases (applicable before 1 January 2019) (continued)
Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are
depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group
is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognized on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in
the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2AB RS BERBE (&)
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued) RERHMESBEE (8)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued) G R R it E ()

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured BFESFE EREHEK AR AT ER
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive AEMEHEAWBSRETHELRTE &
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely EXEEAYNAERAEELRS A
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal B ([ rekflE]) R SR
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are 2 - BenslI I NEAS ERHE
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through MNeRMEERRAFEFABRS BN
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model. B (BERMIEEBKER) -

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets AEBEEECRMEENEBENIERAN
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to MERESRMEENELERERE
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether ¥BEARERERESAREKES
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, PVEERE  HESRMEE  IMER
selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified B BREBERASERGFENSREE
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business R—EBEBEXFEE  EEHESR
model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to BENKBENERE - MAATFE
collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified FFARMSEE WENE S ERITES R
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive BEAN—BEBEXLRHE - §EF
income are held within a business model with the objective BUAKBENREREREE - AR L
of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. MEBEXFHRENSREE - BAT
Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned BErf ABmDBERETE -

business models are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are FIERERAXNBEREENSREE
recognized on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group RRXZH (AAREEAZBE L EZ
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases HEEMBH) R - BHIXBEL
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require T8 S B 3l SR —MRIZHR Bl sk
delivery of assets within the period generally established by MiZEARENHERNRNEERNS R
regulation or convention in the marketplace. BE -
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(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognized, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognized in the statement
of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining
fair value changes are recognized in other comprehensive
income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change
recognized in other comprehensive income is recycled to the
statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
when they meet the definition of equity under HKAS 32
Financial Instruments. Presentation and are not held for trading.
The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument
basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognized
as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds
as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in
which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.
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(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognized in the statement of profit or
loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are also recognized as
other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right
of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial
liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host
and accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a
separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the
hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognized in the statement of profit or
loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in
the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification
of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing
a financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The
financial asset host together with the embedded derivative is
required to be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss.
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(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognized (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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(continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest
rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective
of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, the Group applies the low credit risk simplification.
At each reporting date, the Group evaluates whether the
debt investments are considered to have low credit risk using
all reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation, the
Group reassesses the external credit ratings of the debt
investments. In addition, the Group considers that there has
been a significant increase in credit risk when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due.
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(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset
to be in default when internal or external information indicates
that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except
for trade receivables which apply the simplified approach as
detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition
and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2AB RS BERBE (&)
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued) SRMEERE (F)

Simplified approach 1%

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing A EEARMEKDHE FEWFRIAL
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient REBREMERFEN D ERATHE
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, RSGBENAITEERENE @ A&H
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. KABLEATERBEEREE - RIEH
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track b AEBEWREREERRES -
changes in credit risk, but instead recognizes a loss allowance EmMRNEREBHREZHEHREEE
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has BRRAEERE AEECDRBEES
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical FEBBEREIBEBER - WHER
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors AREEIREFERRETRE=ELSR
specific to the debtors and the economic environment. o

Financial liabilities =R

Initial recognition and measurement G R R AT E

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as TRABEVHRERANEEREATES
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and ABRHNERMEE ERREENUARE
borrowings and payables. RI5RIE o

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, FrEcmaEVnEATERR BN
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of REERENFIBERIBNREEZEL
directly attributable transaction costs. RGN °

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, financial REEHNSHEEREE S ENFIBER
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, amounts AAHMENREBREAEANESHE
due to related parties, interest-bearing bank borrowings and & - RN T IR - R RITERUA
lease liabilities. LEEBE -
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(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they
are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.
This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by HKFRS 9.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognized in the statement of profit or loss. The net fair value
gain or loss recognized in the statement of profit or loss does
not include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in HKFRS 9 are satisfied.
Gains or losses on liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss are recognized in the statement of profit or loss,
except for the gains or losses arising from the Group’s own
credit risk which are presented in other comprehensive income
with no subsequent reclassification to the statement of profit or
loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognized in the statement
of profit or loss does not include any interest charged on these
financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2AB RS BERBE (&)
(continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities RiIEBEIEmAE

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under TRABERABENEERER  FHEE
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires. AR I EHERR o

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another ERAoMBERER —BERALMEREA
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the BATRMBENRE  XBEEEEN
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such R BENEHE - BB R IEHRA
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of BREERARFAETHER-IBAFRE
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and B MAEABREENEZENEBERRE
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is R e

recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments KHEMIT A

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net i (BEE) BRITURBIFMITHERE
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if, %ﬁclﬁfﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁégﬁ I B #RLAFREE
and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset ETHEEIRFHEESRRSESR
the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on 1; FABEMEERS A EEE -
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities FEERMERARE®

simultaneously.

Inventories 7E

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable FERAK A R Al # 3R FHE M A HRIE
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis, and EYER o NAEMEFHEEEE
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises MEERMAEKRME  KABRER
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of EME - BERESTIREELNNEES
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling A IERFEAMEEREEME
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion TR REEREPEENGESER -
and disposal.
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(continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when acquired.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when there is a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event
and it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognized for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
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(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognized to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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(continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognized to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognized at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and released to the
statement of profit or loss by way of a reduced depreciation
charge.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2AB RS BERBE (&)

(continued)

Government grants (continued)

Where the Group receives government loans granted with no
or at a below-market rate of interest for the construction of a
qualifying asset, the initial carrying amount of the government
loans is determined using the effective interest rate method,
as further explained in the accounting policy for “Financial
liabilities” above. The benefit of the government loans granted
with no or at a below-market rate of interest, which is the
difference between the initial carrying value of the loans and
the proceeds received, is treated as a government grant and
released to the statement of profit or loss over the expected
useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it
is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur when
the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group a significant financial benefit for more than
one year, revenue recognized under the contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction
price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

The Group is involved in the business of the manufacture
and sale of semiconductor products. Revenue from the sale
of semiconductor products is recognized at the point in time
when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the semiconductor products. The
normal credit term is 30 to 45 days upon delivery, extending
up to 150 days for major customers. Payment in advance is

required for some contracts.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognized on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognized as income in the

accounting period in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognized when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured

reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognized when a payment is received or
a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before
the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract
liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods

or services to the customer).
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(continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants is measured by reference to the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an
external valuer using a binomial model, further details of which
are given in note 31 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognized for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss for
a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognized as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in
the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing
of an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.

2019 FE#4sE ANNUAL REPORT 2019 o #EfT

BUR 9 5K
AREEE—EBRAETS - 5 EE
HERRUAREXRBEAINELERNA
BER2RE - A8EHEER (BRES)
VAR AR 1< 3R 77 MBS B - B B3R it
AR5 1E R WAL IR AR T A ey 1B ([t
mERH]) -

REHEAEREETREEER SN
A Th2RE N B R R FEME
B - AP EHINBSEERERR ZBEAR
NETE @ £E—FHBHNMBmRRME
8 o

P e 46 5 52 55 P AN 422 [ e A P A NP
7 FEER R, SRS 5 A 3 B
HATEREBRNFAXHER - BHERBHA
HIfR S ARERNBRBEEZHH
REFAX - RREFEHE B HEM kA
SEHREGSRBENRATAZKBN
REMET - AR RMRIER -
TitE YRR B R RET R K A &
) o

B RBHNR LB QFELNEBRSE
RIEMIZRBGRIE - HEREZRIRIFA A
REMRIRFTE K RZFBESAREK
AT AZBEMREMGBTO D - M5
RIIGATH RRER B RFE - K
5 i 22 B {8 3 4 A R B AR A R SR EL
AL AR 1T & 1R S IR B R 1 - RARIE
BEGRENEBATEEEPTESR
B & SR BGIT T BN T AST 8 -

AR AR HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 237



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAREER R MIEE “

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognized. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service

conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognized as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognized for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the

date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognized for the award is recognized immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as
if they were a modification of the original award, as described

in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per

share.

Other employee benefits
Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. This
subsidiary is required to contribute a certain percentage of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension

scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognized at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognizes restructuring costs involving the

payment of termination benefits.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 RS BERBE (&)

(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends
Final dividends are recognized as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognized
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in US$, which is
the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
All differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

240

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognized in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognized in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an
advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the
date on which the Group initially recognizes the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain Mainland China and
overseas subsidiaries and associate are currencies other than
the US$. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into US$ at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into US$ at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognized in the statement of
profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of Mainland China and overseas subsidiaries
are translated into US$ at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash
flows of Mainland China and overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into US$ at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.
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Significant Accounting Estimates and 3. EEGHMAETRREE
Assumptions

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires ERETHREASEYBHREREAED
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions FIET - hET RMRER - MBBEAE - A5
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets EEBEREHEA  BAX BEMAED
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the EREREBMMNEE - URIABE
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these WREKRTE - ZEBRE XA HE
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could EMSEBRAHERREIZENE
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the ENEENREEETERRE -

assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements F

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, RERMAEBSHBRNBRET - BY
management has made the following judgements, apart from REFTHSEEEINN  BEECHELRS
those involving estimations, which have the most significant B RREERSHEENREATEN
effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements: FIET AT -

Property lease classification — Group as lessor VR E S — K EFERL A

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on REBRILEBIREYREEEEY
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, X*HE - REBEHBBELTHER G2
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the G - WAETEAE AN E KBS
arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major M EEHS BREHAERBERELS
part of the economic life of the commercial property and the RERAMEZBREIBORAFE  A&EE
present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting EETHREZSEMEMBREMNTHR
to substantially all the fair value of the commercial property, REBo R R B3R - WA B G 4 ALK
that it retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards EHEALR -

incidental to ownership of these properties which are leased
out and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

Classification between investment property and owner-occupied gL /EN =Nk E b

property

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an REBEEMHESRFTEREMENE
investment property, and has developed criteria in making 1% - I B2 HIET/E it 2 E R E R o 3%
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to B YR BRI S S E AN E KRR
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the RUMIEE HMFEME - At - K
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows SEHeER - ENEXEARESRERE
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group. BER FEAEEMRFAENHMEER
Some property comprises a portion that is held to earn rentals B o RLEYENFHEARIMESHE
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held RIBEMSEE - MPEANKS— LD
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or EAAREESNHES MR IET
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold BAZMEE o MELLFEH T AD
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, HESREREHEESFHLME - A&5E
the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions ZHEBEBEHBNORAR - WEZZHMD
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment EEASALE - ARSERAREESE
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the FES ek RIS sk fEFT IR BB & T 435 A B 30
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative MUTEER - BAMES FIERE
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis Yz o REBHZIRYEEL FIE - A
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that RELRERBEREZUFEYEL AFF
a property does not qualify as an investment property. EREYENERE °
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31 December 2019

Significant Accounting Estimates and
Assumptions (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets (including the
right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period.
Non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a
cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal
is based on available data from binding sales transactions
in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset.
When value-in-use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset
or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The unlisted equity investments have been valued based on
a market-based valuation technique as detailed in note 37
to the financial statements. The valuation requires the Group
to determine the comparable public companies (peers)
and select the price multiple. In addition, the Group makes
estimates about the discount for illiquidity and size differences.
The Group classifies the fair value of these investments as
Level 3. Further details are included in notes 19 and 37 to the
financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. Significant Accounting Estimates and
Assumptions (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Fair value of investment property

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including:

(a)

current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect
those differences;

recent prices of similar properties on less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date of the transactions that occurred
at those prices; and

discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms
of any existing lease and other contracts and (when
possible) by external evidence such as current market
rents for similar properties in the same location and
condition, and using discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and
timing of the cash flows.

The carrying amount of the investment property as at 31
December 2019 was US$168,615,000 (2018: US$171,225,000).
Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair value
measurement and a sensitivity analysis, are given in note 14 to
the financial statements.
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4. Operating Segment Information 4. BREFHBER
For management purposes, the Group is organised into one TREERE  ~NEEEBHE— TI%?‘
single business unit that includes primarily the manufacture B TZREREREE LS
and sale of semiconductor products. Management reviews the me BEREEELDEEERAE ?f?/?%
consolidated results when making decisions about allocating NiHE R R ERBEREZGEFEE -
resources and assessing the performance of the Group. It - WEEF DT

Accordingly, no segment analysis is presented.

The principal assets employed by the Group are located in REBEFEFANFEEEMNTRHLE -
Shanghai, the PRC. Therefore, no segment information based W IR EENMBUENRFENZES S
on the geographical location of assets is presented for the BER
year.
Revenues are attributed to geographical areas based on the o PP [ 15 FE (b WA TD IR B P AT AL &
locations of customers. Revenues by geographical segments 7o FRIEBFEHE SR D3
based on the locations of customers for the year are presented WAZFNT
as follows:
2019 2018
—ZE-hF ZE-)N\F
(US$’000) (US$'000)
(F%x) (F=mT)
China (including Hong Kong) 1 (&?E%f}’%) 546,029 525,795
United States of America EFBA RE 150,392 161,428
Asia (excluding China and Japan) CEVA (T@%EP&E! ) 115,256 117,963
Europe BN 70,818 70,660
Japan =N 50,072 54,422
932,567 930,268
Information about major customers EREXEEFHNER
No revenue amounting to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue Eﬁ —E-NFTA=T—RIEFE
was derived from sales to a single customer for the year ended EYUE -—XPRHEE NS Hﬁlmé%ﬁ
31 December 2019 (2018: Nil). ﬁﬁ BB AE10%H A E (ZF—
F |
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31 December 2019

—E-NF+-A=1+—H /E\Zl-i%ﬁ'%% Mq-%I

Revenue, Other Income and Gains and Other 5.

Expenses

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains and other

WA HttR AR s R E

ftu 8 A

A - B A R M R E b E R

expenses is as follows: DITWAT -
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
(US$’000) (US$000)
(F%r) (F%T)
Revenue from contracts with customers FEF &L=
Sale of goods SHEE MW 932,567 930,268
Other income Hg A
Gross rental income from investment REREMELEHENHES
property operating leases: WA 425 -
Fixed lease payments EEHERK 12,642 =
Rental income WA - 13,063
Interest income FLEUA 17,676 9,489
Other interest income from financial REBEAFEABTERN
assets at fair value through profit SRUEER
or loss H A FIE WA 19,965 11,412
Government subsidies BT 47 B 13,455 4,277
Sale of scrap materials SHERER 241 299
Others HAith 490 873
64,469 39,413
Gains g
Fair value gains on financial assets BATEGFABENEREE
at fair value through profit or loss A ERE 4,024 4,200
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEYE  BEMEEEE 2 W
plant and equipment 598 =
4,622 4,200
69,091 43,613
Other expenses HithEH
Foreign exchange loss, net HNEEFE 5 B 18 55 406 11,010
Net loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE - FERRENERF5E
plant and equipment = 96
406 11,106
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5. Revenue, Other Income and Gains and Other 5. WA - Hft AR K=ZRHE

Expenses (continued) tEA (&)
2019 2018
—E-NF —FTN\F
(US$°000) (US$'000)
(F%x) (F=7T)
Type of goods EmER
Sales of semiconductor products and 3822 2 g4 E K B =B
total revenue from contracts with B U BT
customers 932,567 930,268
Timing of revenue recognition SHE WA TR
Goods transferred at a point in time ~ fERE—FREEZENERNMKE
and total revenue from contracts BEAHRBRUTA
with customers 932,567 930,268
The disaggregation of the Group's revenue based on the BHE_Z-AFT_A=T—HBILHF
geographical region for the year ended 31 December 2019 is B AEBEENMERNWA S EEHIRN
given in note 4. HiaE4 -
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6. Profit before Tax 6. BiAnsF
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ NEBAFALEF TR (GEA)
(crediting): THEIREER
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Notes (US$°000) (US$'000)
Btat (F%Rr) (F%=T)
Cost of inventories sold BEFERA 650,107 619,114
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BB LRETE
equipment 13 122,630 116,187
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRESENE 16 2,637 -
Recognition of prepaid land lease RN T E R IE
payments 18] - 666
Amortisation of intangible assets S ER Y 17 3,444 3,006
Research and development costs TR A 63,126 44,732
Minimum lease payments under KeEHEREMEERIE
operating leases - 3,933
Lease payments not included inthe  Fit AMHEHEHE
measurement of lease liabilities EOREN=SNEN 33(b) 1,625 =
Auditor’s remuneration A GIE A 557 497
Employee benefit expense (including {EERAMAY (BEEER
directors’ and chief executive’s = T B R M
remuneration (note 8)): (FF5E8)) -
Wages, salaries and other benefits T #He REMER 205,814 168,646
Equity-settled share option expense AR A E ARSI ER X 31 7,746 1,298
Pension scheme contributions RIS FHEIHEFR 22,640 18,692
236,200 188,636
Impairment of items of property, VI - BB RREEE
plant and equipment E 13 2,222 6,151
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 EWGRIBRE 21 47 25
Write-down of inventories to net TFEMUR
realisable value EREIREE 1,370 646
Changes in fair value of an investment & & ¥ AL (EESH)
property 14 (163) (247)
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7. Finance Costs 7. BKEH
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
(US$’000) (US$'000)
(F%r) (F%m)
Interest on bank borrowings RITIERF S 358 2,203
Interest on lease liabilities HEAGERNE 884 -
1,242 2,203
8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 8. EEREREITHAENHMH
Remuneration
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, B EmR A R BB QR EFI5383(1)
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (@) (b)) RMNET R AR (HE=E
(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 ERZER) RO FoRBWENAREE
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of EERERTBRABHMOT -
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
(US$’000) (US$'000)
(F%r) (F=T)
Fees e 219 231
Other emoluments: Him e -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind N - 2EE R EYF S 148 150
Performance related bonuses EA R IF MR EAL 351 196
Equity-settled share option expense LA A H M R AR R 2 139 58
Pension scheme contributions RIREET B 8 8
646 412
865 643
During the year and the prior year, certain directors were RFEARBAFE BHTESREAD
granted share options, in respect of their services to the Group, AR EE AR R T B A E m AN B iR A AR
under the share option scheme of the Company, further details FIEREIRE - BE— S EEHRTH
of which are set out in note 31 to the financial statements. RARMIFEST - HEERENAFED IR
The fair value of such options, which has been recognized BEEENERARER  TRIREBHE
in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, was FERARFEEUBREABRNSIEC T
determined as at the date of grant and the amount included AR EERERITEA BRI EHBEE
in the financial statements for the current year is included F oo
in the above directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration
disclosures.
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8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s

Remuneration (c

(@) Independent non-executive directors

ontinued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

31 December 2019
—E-NF+=-A=1+—8H

B 5 ¥ R B

8. EERBSITHAERNH M
(&)

BYFHTES
FARBILFRTESINNRSE

(a)

during the year were as follows: s
2019 2018
—B-NF —ETN\F
(US$000) (US$'000)
(F%x) (F=7T)
Stephen Tso Tung Chang SRAE[R] 73 77
Kwai Huen Wong, JP FHEEE - KP4t 73 7
Long Fei Ye HEE 73 77
219 231

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year

(2018: Nil).

(b) A non-executive director and the chief executive

FRYEREN TBEIIFRTESH
Hipi& (ZT—N\F : &) -

(b) FHBTEERESTHAR

Salaries, Equity-
allowances Performance settled Pension
and benefits related share option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expense contributions remuneration
FH - 2ER  ERREN  UEREER
ae BNAlE WA WBRERX BASIAMT  HHAR
US$'000 Us$'000 US$°000 US$°000 US$'000 US$'000
TER TER TER TZn TER TEn
2019 —ET-NF
Non-executive director: ~ JEH{TES :
Mr. Takayuki Morita MR EE = - - 16 - 16
Chief executive: RRITHAR
Mr. Junjun Tang BHERE
(appointed on (R=B-n%
1 May 2019) hA—REZHE) = 100 299 = 5 404
Mr. Yu Wang FREE
(resigned on (R=E—n%
1 May 2019 HA—REH) - 48 52 123 3 226
- 148 351 139 8 646
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8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 8. EERBEITHRAENH M
Remuneration (continued) (%)
(b) A non-executive director and the chief executive (b) BITEE  FHTESRESTH
(continued) ABE (#&)
Salaries, Equity-
allowances  Performance settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expense  contributions  remuneration

B RER  BREE  NRGEE
e BN WAL MBRERS RASHBIEE  HMER
US$:000 US$:000 US$'000 US$000 US$000 US$:000
TET TET TET TEL TET TET

2018 “F-N\F
Non-executive director:  FFH{TES :
Mr. Takayuki Morita AR EE - - - 7 = 7
Chief executive: ER1THAR
Mr. Yu Wang TREE - 150 196 51 8 405
= 150 196 58 8 412
Save as disclosed above, none of the directors received BRAREREIN  MEEZER_ZF—N
any emoluments during 2019 and 2018. FRZZ—N\FREBEREBM -
There was no arrangement under which a director waived REA - BESEELLHEREXRE
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. W B o
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“ooneionsr s B EEERAR B EE

Five Highest Paid Employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included one
director, who is also the chief executive (2018: one director
being also the chief executive), details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the
year of the remaining four (2018: four) highest paid employees
who are not directors of the Company are as follows:

hERESHES

TR IEESFREERRE—RES
(FAZRSITBRABR) (ZF—\F: —
FEEZ (TRAKRITHRAR))  HFHH
HBEN EXHES . FA - HEET A
—E-N\F OR) YFARAES
MkmHEENFMFBDT

2019 2018

—E-NEF —ZT-)N\F

(US$°000) (US$000)

(F3=7T) (F=71)

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind  ZBl - FE8L R EWFIZR 1,207 1,123
Performance related bonuses BRI MR TEAL 836 458
Equity-settled share option expense DA A E MR 339 128
Pension scheme contributions RIS R B 22 16
2,404 1,725

The number of highest paid employees who are not directors
of the Company and whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

FNBRATHRIENALIERNATESRD
E=HEEABMAT :

Number of employees

EE A
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—N\F
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7L E 2,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 723,000,000/ 7T 3 2
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T E 4,500,000/ 7T 1 1
4 4

During the year and the prior year, share options were granted
to four non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees in respect of their services to the Group, further
details of which are included in the disclosures in note 31 to
the financial statements. The fair value of such options, which
has been recognized in the statement of profit or loss over the
vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and the
amount included in the financial statements for the current year
is included in the above non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.

REARBEFE  WHRIFEFRIFR
BITBABNEZSHEEEERALKE
RERFERBERE - LE—TFER
BATE SRR TES1 TR - HEABREN R
FECRFBHENEERER AN
HEMETE AR AFEPBRRARD
SRCFAANLFEERIFERTERA
BENREHEBNFHIMEES -
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10. Income Tax

Profits arising in Hong Kong were subject to profits tax at the
rate of 16.5% during the year (2018: 16.5%). No provision for
Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Company and
a subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kong had no assessable

income during the year (2018: Nil).

The Company'’s subsidiary incorporated in the Cayman Islands
is not subject to corporate income tax (“CIT”) as it does not
have a place of business (other than a registered office) or

carry on any business in the Cayman Islands.

All of the Group’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC and
only having operations in Mainland China are subject to PRC
enterprise income tax on the taxable income as reported in
their PRC statutory accounts adjusted in accordance with
relevant PRC income tax laws based on a statutory rate of

25%.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and
with approval from the tax authorities in charge, one of the
Group’s subsidiaries, HHGrace, is qualified as an enterprise
producing integrated circuits of 0.25 pm below in width and is
therefore entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% from 2017 to

2020.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC
and with approval from the tax authorities in charge, one of
the Group’s subsidiaries, Hua Hong Wuxi, is entitled to an
exemption from CIT for five years, commencing from the first
year that Hua Hong Wuxi generates taxable profit, and a
deduction of 50% on the CIT rate for the following five years.

The Company’s subsidiary incorporated and operating in
Japan was subject to corporation tax at a rate of 25.5% (2018:

25.5%).

The Company’s subsidiary incorporated and operating in the
United States was subject to federal corporation income tax at
a rate of 21% during the year (2018: 21%), as well as state tax

at 8.84% (2018: 8.84%).

10. FRE8L

REANEREMNEL16.5% (ZF—
NF 1 16.5%) W EREAMEH -
RARR R —REFBFMAILOTA
BAIRFARLEISEFREA - B &
REEMEHRELEE (ZF—N\F:
&) -

HRARRERSESEMKIZNTA
AERSHEYEES S (G
WMERERIN) HELEEAER - WEH
FTRABEBREEAER (REM
B/#R -

PrAEASEEFBEEMAEETREAM
LEMNT AR - BIERIEAERE T BHR
BRZARNPBEIAERE T2 RER
B AIZ25% B EE R R BATRBELE
PSR -

REFBRBEEEIERREREEE
R E  ANEBE—RTARELR
NFEERKABEETIERMEE/ R
0.25umEXEE M - thEEN =
T+t FE T - TFHEIER15%E
B KT -

RIBTBEEREAREL R L EREEE
R E - ARE—KFRRFEILED
BRAESERWENE —FEAFE
REBMERMEN - RERAFHL
50% °

NN RE BAGEMA S N 2 B R T A A
JE12255% (—ZZF — )\ 4 : 25.5%) HJ
TR REHH o

RRABERBEMRL R EEN T AR
FERNERNIE21% (ZF— \F : 21%)
RO O SEFTIS B K [28.84% (=T —
J\EE 1 8.84%) HYINFRTH BT o
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31 December 2019
—E-NF+=-A=1+—8H

10. FRE%H (&)

AEBFAEHRAXHETZAKE M

10. Income Tax (continued)

The major components of income tax expense of the Group

are as follows: T
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
(US$’000) (US$'000)
(FXx) SED
Current income tax — PRC = HIRTS R — A 24,048 26,887

RIS — EfbiblE 287 364
BT E) DR B TEIIRL

Current income tax — elsewhere
Withholding tax on the distribution

dividend from a PRC subsidiary 4,656 4,245
Deferred tax (note 28) IRERE (F5E28) (2,403) 3,951
26,588 35,447

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rate of 25% for the jurisdiction in which the
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to

BARA REKE D FREEEMER
VERER B TE I R 25 % 7T H HO T Al A
FMERRIERY - BRERRERGEN

the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows: THIEE Y AYBRT ¢
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
(US$000) (US$'000)
(F%r) (F=7T)

Profit before tax T A& A 181,573 221,055
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25% BRERR25% T EMFEIE 45,393 55,264
Lower tax rates for specific provinces BEA M E RBEGH

or enacted by local authority BER R (15,764) (22,450)
Adjustments in respect of current tax Bt —HAREE BT IE a) A #E

of previous periods (14) (219)
Profits attributable to an associate —KEE N RS R T (1,520) (1,417)
Expenses not deductible for tax TRIFIFR S 219 244
Tax losses not recognized RERTIBEE 217 306
Temporary differences not recognized AER G =58 339 923
Additional deduction of research and FHEE R AR E A 308

development costs (5,553) (5,032)
Effect of withholding tax at 10% (2018: BEASEFRBETF AR AHS IR

10%) on the distributable profits of the SHERIA10% (ZZF—\4F :

Group’s PRC subsidiary 10%) sTE B2 3,271 7,828
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate EAREBERRETEMNHIERS 26,588 35,447
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11.

12.

31 December 2019
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

Dividend 1.5
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZT-)N\F
(US$’000) (US$000)
(F%=x) (F%m)
Proposed final — Nil (2018: BEAERE - FREBRE
HK31 cents) per ordinary share ZZ—N\F 31 = 50,741

The Board did not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Board recommended a final 2018 dividend of HK$31
cents per share amounting to HK$398,302,640, which was
equivalent to US$50,741,129.

Earnings Per Share Attributable to Ordinary
Equity Holders of the Parent

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent, and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 1,285,586,255 (2018: 1,070,699,301) in
issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent. The weighted average number
of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the basic
earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at
no consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

12.

EEeTEIRNBE_T-NF+=
A=Z+—HALEFEZEARE -

BEEeREN - N\ERBREE
B&31738 L - & 51 /45398,302,640/ It
HEMNE50,741,1293E 7T ©

BRAAEBREREARN
BREF

EREABMNDIERESRAREAR
BEEAEBEFRENERFRE
%% 771,285,586,255/0 (= & — )\ F :
1,070,699,301%) & i@ f% &9 hn 4 F 15

BELE o
Al 7+

ERCHEIRNSEIRES AR ER
BiERE NREFRENTE - s ER
REZEBBRIEF AN ESRE
AENKRABZFAND ETEBREE
N ERERPAEEEE T BREARRTT
EHA BB EBRFATRERTZE
BA IR FII 8 -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. Earnings Per Share Attributable to Ordinary
Equity Holders of the Parent (continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are

31 December 2019
—E-NF+=-A=1+—8H

B 5 ¥ R B

NR.BAFEERESE AR
BRER (&)

BREARBERNOFETER

based on:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
(US$°000) (US$'000)
(F%r) (F=7T)
Earnings &F|
Profit attributable to ordinary equity B REEBRERE ARG
holders of the parent 162,237 183,158
Number of shares
REOEE
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-)N\F

Shares A& 15

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year used in
the basic earnings per share calculation

Effect of dilution-weighted average
number of ordinary shares:

Share options

R

AR EERERRNNER
BETEBBINET IR

1,285,586,255 1,070,699,301

TR TINETORNTE -

9,953,000 11,752,000

1,295,539,255 1,082,451,301
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31 December 2019
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

Br 75 R R B

13. Property, Plant and Equipment
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13. 1% - MERRE

Plant and Office Motor ~ Leasehold  Construction
Buildings ~ machinery  equipment vehicles improvements  in progress Total
HE BE
e R#s ARG AE VES ERIE Eh
(USS'000) (Uss'000) (US$'000) (Us§'000) (USs'000) (Us§'000) (USs'000)
(T£n) (T£n) (T£7) (F&7) (F£7) (T£1) (T£n)
31 December 2019 “E-fE
tZA=t-A
At 31 December 2018 and at R-E-N\E+-R
1 January 2019: S+-BR-E-1E
-B-R:
Cost A 300,531 3,821,085 44,661 1,903 3,945 139,223 4,311,348
Accumulated depreciation BAMELRE
and impairment (173,318)  (3,310,934) (31,735) (1,567) (3,945) (16,669)  (3,538,168)
Net carrying amount REFE 127213 510,151 12,926 336 - 122,554 773,180
At 1 January 2019, net of R=E-hE-F-RB"
accumulated depreciation MR EHTERRE
and impairment 127213 510,151 12,926 336 - 122,554 773,180
Additions RE - - - - - 937,685 937,685
Transfers fEy] 120,166 525,810 2,706 138 - (648,820) -
Disposals RE - (189) 1] @ - - (198)
Depreciation provided ERERITE
during the year (11,147) (108,443) (3,001) (39) - - (122,630)
Impairment e - (2,204) (18) - - - (2,222)
Exchange realignment ERa% (3,947) (16,917) (252) @) - (6,408) (27532)
At 31 December 2019, net of R-E-h&E+=R
accumulated depreciation =+-B kg
and mpairment NERAE 232,285 908,208 12,354 425 - 405,011 1,558,283
At 31 December 2019; R-E-NE
tZA=t-A:
Cost R 413,332 4,261,537 46,431 1,993 3,881 421310 5,148,484
Accumulated depreciation ZENELEE
and impairment (181,047)  (3,353,329) (34,077) (1,568) (3,881) (16,299)  (3,590,201)
Net carrying amount EEHE 232,285 908,208 12,354 425 - 405,011 1,558,283
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13. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

31 December 2019
—E-NF+=-A=1+—8H

B 5 ¥ R B

13. 9% - BMENRRE (&)

Plant and Office Motor Leasehold ~ Construction
Buildings machinery ~ equipment vehicles  improvements i progress Total
BR g
BF R#& kM HE EST fRIE faz
(US§000) (US§000)  (USS000)  (USSO00)  (US§000)  (US§000) (US§000)
(%) (F£71) (Tx1) (1) (Fxm) (%) (%)
31 December 2018 “E-\Et-A=t-H
At 31 December 2017 and at RE—+5+24
1 January 2018; =t-BR-E-\%
-B-R:
Cost A 315,187 3,923,939 45,280 2,041 4143 36,507 4327097
Accumulated depreciation ZEREE
and impaiment (171733)  (3,368,445) (30851) (1,78) (3314)  (17500)  (35936)
Net carrying amount FE¥E 143,454 555,494 14,429 258 829 18,998 733,462
At 1 January 2018, net of RN=E-\E-F-H"
accumulated depreciation and TRZEERAE
impairment 143,454 55,494 14,429 258 829 18,998 733,462
Additions AE - = = = = 200,220 200,220
Transfers g5 468 88,820 2482 130 - (91,900) -
Disposals RE - (36) (55) ) - = (100)
Depreciation provided FRFRENE
during th year (10457)  (10229) (289) 27) (816) - (116.187)
Impairment BE = (5,806) (345) - - - (6,151)
Exchange realignment 3 (6,552) (26,029) (690) (16) (13) (4,764) (38,064)
At 31 December 2018, net of RZE-NE+ZA
accumulated depreciation =+-A - HBEH
and impairment NERRE 127,213 510,151 12926 336 - 122,554 773,180
At 31 December 2018: RZZE-\F+2A
=t-H:
Cost AR 300,531 3,821,085 44 661 1,903 3945 139,223 4311348
Accumulated depreciation ZAERAE
and imparment (173318)  (3,310,934) (31,735) (1,567) (3,945) (16,669)  (3,538,168)
Net carrying amount ERE 127,213 510,151 12926 336 - 122,554 773,180

For the year ended 31 December 2019, certain items of the
Group’s machinery of US$2,222,000 (2018: US$6,151,000)
were obsolete with a minimal recoverable amount determined
based on their fair value less costs of disposal and were
therefore fully impaired.

As at 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment with a net carrying value of US$20,858,000
(2018: US$22,325,000) were pledged to banks to secure the
Group’s banking facilities (note 26).
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HE - ZT—h&E+-_A=+—BIF
B ASBE#E+FE TIEE2,222,000
E3x (ZZ—N\F :6,151,000%7T) B
B - MREM S A FER S KA R
EREAJKESE - BAmTEmE -

R=ZT—hhF+=-A=+—H8 " ~5£H
BRE %18 /520,858,000 7T (ZZE— 1\
F 1 22,325,000%70) WETWE - B
B RHRED BB TIRITUARGAREED
IBITEEME (KizEee) -
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14.

258

Investment Property 14. REYE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
(US$’000) (US$'000)
(F%r) (F=7T)
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HBMEREE 171,225 179,586
Net gain from a fair value adjustment N EFHER W FEE 163 247
Exchange realignment bE 5 (2,773) (8,608)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HHEREE 168,615 171,225

The Group’s investment property is situated in Shanghai, the
PRC and is held under a medium term lease. The directors
have determined that the investment property is an industrial
property based on the nature, characteristics and risks of the

property.

The Group’s investment property was revalued on 31
December 2019 based on valuation performed by Jones
Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited, an
independent professionally qualified valuer, on an open market
value basis. The valuation is based on capitalisation of income
derived from the existing tenancy with allowance for the
reversionary income potential of the property.

Every year, the Group’s property manager and the chief
financial officer decide to appoint which external valuer to
be responsible for the external valuations of the Group’s
properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards
are maintained. The Group’s property manager and the
chief financial officer have discussions with the valuer on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results annually when the
valuation is performed for annual financial reporting.

The investment property is leased to a related party under an
operating lease (note 33 and note 35(b)).

AEENREMEMLRHELE - &H
HENRE - EEEERNYENMEE -
FHELRREBEERENESTENE -

R-ZB-N\F+-_A=+—H  ~%£H
MEENFEERE-REEXERNE
MR ER P ERITEEF G RFEABR
REBAFRMEETTER - ZEESR
ZTHREMROTBRDEEEAEREA
BBV ABRCHETE °

BF  AEENYFEE MM BEER
EREIMNEF A B EAREE Y ELNI
EAE - BESLESERHEMEN TH -
BE BUMIELTABREEKE - K
SER Y REE LM B RS F R
WEETHER  BERGEMBFIR
—RfEERRMAEE

REMEBBERKLHOBHE T @S
(Pft3E33F0135(b)) °
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14. Investment Property (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The recurring fair value measurement for the Group’s
investment property, which is an industrial property, was
made using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) as at
31 December 2019 and 2018. During the year, there were no
transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and
Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 (2018: Nil).

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the

31 December 2019
—E-NF+=-A=1+—8H

B 5 ¥ R B

14. REW%E (&)

D EER

AEBREME (RIXEPR) X _F
—NER_F-N\Ft+-_A=+—HBH
BHAFEAEDEREATAERE
ABE (F3) Eh - RER - F1R
HERBYEAFEAEER - HE3
R BEAZEH (ZF—\F : E) -

TXREEMEAEMAGERMNRE

2019F FE ke ANNUAL REPORT 2019 e ZEdT 4 &5 [R N\ 7]

key inputs to the valuation of the investment property: Lo ABURIEE -

Significant unobservable Weighted
Industrial property Valuation techniques inputs average
TEM (G I=EsE0) BANEHRE ABIE piliL: B
As at 31 December 2019 Term and reversion method Estimated rental value US$11.9
(per sg.m. and per month)  (equivalent to
RMB81.90)
RZBE-NF+A=+—H FHRESRE HEtHEBE 11.9% 7T
(BERAKREAR) (HERARY
81.907t)
Term yield 6.75%

F A Rk
Reversionary yield 7.25%

B8R m R E
Long term vacancy rate 10.00%

REIZEE X
As at 31 December 2018 Term and reversion method Estimated rental value Us$12.8
(per sg.m. and per month) (equivalent to
RMB88.08)
RZBE-N\F+HA=+—H FHRESRE HEtHEBE 12.8%7T
(B FHAKRER) (HERARE
88.087L)
Term yield 7.00%

F A R K
Reversionary yield 7.50%

B ERE K
Long term vacancy rate 5.00%

P

L L J
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14. REW%E (&)

14. Investment Property (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Under the term and reversion method, fair value is measured
by taking into account the rental income derived from the
existing lease with due allowance for the reversionary income
potential of the lease, which is then capitalised into the value
at appropriate rates.

The term value was estimated based on the existing rent, the
tenancy period as stated in the lease agreement and the yield
during the term period (tenancy period). The reversionary
value was estimated based on the market rents, the market
yield and the reversionary periods.

A significant increase (decrease) in the estimated rental value
and the market rent growth rate per annum in isolation would
result in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of the
investment property. A significant increase (decrease) in the
long term vacancy rate and the discount rate in isolation would
result in a significant decrease (increase) in the fair value of
the investment property. Generally, a change in the assumption
made for the estimated rental value is accompanied by a
directionally similar change in the rent growth per annum and
the discount rate and an opposite change in the long term

DNFEER (8)

RIBFHRERZE R FELEFTRR
BHROEEMHBESWA - IHRZFHELQ
VEERERBAGHREE BE  HiR
REREAMC LR BEREANAEEEM
B

EHEEDREAEGHMIANRAR
He HHLRFHAR (B QmEfG
it EREEDREMEHRS  mHO
HER MBI -

EFAHEBEATSESFRERXES
Rig 7 (T BEBUREMEN R
FEREZMORD)  RPZERR
B REBEBHAR LA (TR) $EEK
BYMERORFENERD BB0) o —
Mims - At REEEERNERE
BRE HEFRERELMBERLIER
A MEHEEXHRRAEE -

vacancy rate.

15. Prepaid Land Lease Payments

15. A Lt HE KA

(US$'000)
(F=m)
Carrying amount at 1 January 2018 RZE—\F—A—HBHNEKEEAE 21,308
Additions B 43,342
Recognized during the year F AR (666)
Exchange realignment HE 34, 38 B (4,353)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\F+A=+—H
HBREE 59,631
Current portion included in prepayments, other TESFRIE - EbEURGRIE
receivables and other assets R E M & ZE R BIERER D (642)
Non-current portion FERNERER {5 58,989
Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F+—A=+—H
B ERREE 59,631
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 (note 2.2) RABABYIEREERIFE 1655/
T8 (fi2.2) (59,631)

Carrying amount at 1 January 2019 and
31 December 2019

WoE-NE—A—BR
—E-AF+=A=1—~
AR

N )
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ceneionen ARG ERER BT EE

15. Prepaid Land Lease Payments (continued) 15. AT L HERIE (&)
Certain of the Group’s prepaid land lease payments with a RZFE—NF+ZA=+—RH KEE
carrying value of US$5,750,000 as at 31 December 2018 were 735,750,000 T ALK EE FHEN T
pledged to banks to secure the Group’s banking facilities (note MBS KR TRITARGE R ER
26). MIRTTEERE (MiFE26)
16. Right-of-Use Assets 16. EAREEE
Land use
right Buildings Total
i fE AR L oy

(US$'000)  (US$000)  (US$°000)
(F%7m) (F=m) (F%m)

At 31 December 2018, net of R N\FE+-_A=+—H" 1
accumulated depreciation =i - - -
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 HRABAMEMEERE 1657
(note 2.2) 2 (fsF2.2) 59,631 17,746 77,377
At 1 January 2019, net of N-E—HE—A—B ' KRB
accumulated depreciation e 59,631 17,746 77377
Additions NE - 1,233 1,233
Depreciation provided during the ~— FRFHEITE
year (613) (2,024) (2,637)
Exchange realignment P& 5 EE (1,188) (259) (1,447)
At 31 December 2019 R-EB-hFE+-_A=+—H 57,830 16,696 74,526
Certain of the Group’s land use right with a carrying value RZZF-—hF+=-A=+—H KEMA
of US$5,445,000 as at 31 December 2019 were pledged to 435,445,000 TH A E B E T L HfF
banks to secure the Group’s banking facilities (note 26). AREEHER TIRITAREAREBMRTT

EERE (MEE26) -
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Br 75 R R B

17. Intangible Assets

31 December 2019
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

17. B & E

Process
technology
licence Software Total
TERM
g B st
(US$°000)  (US$000)  (US$°000)
(F%m) (F=mr) (F%=m)
31 December 2019 —E-h&E+=A=+—H
At 31 December 2018 and at NR-ZE—-N\FE+=-A=+—H
1 January 2019: E=ZT-h&F—HA—R8:
Cost AR 282,999 93,929 376,928
Accumulated amortisation R ORE
and impairment (282,999) (84,358) (367,357)
Net carrying amount BRI FE - 9,571 9,571
At 1 January 2019, net of R-ZZE—hF—HF—8 "
accumulated amortisation 0Bk RETEE Y KR E
and impairment - 9,571 9,571
Additions INE 3,150 4,226 7,376
Amortisation provided FAEL
during the year = (3,444) (3,444)
Exchange realignment PE 7 FE (62) (119) (181)
At 31 December 2019, net of R-ZE—-HE+-A=+—H"
accumulated amortisation Bk RETEESE KR E
and impairment 3,088 10,234 13,322
At 31 December 2019: RZE—NF+=ZA=+—8:
Cost B AN 286,149 98,155 384,304
Accumulated amortisation T8 NORE
and impairment (283,061) (87,921) (370,982)
Net carrying amount BRMEFE 3,088 10,234 13,322
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31 December 2019

—E-NF+=-A=1+—8H

17. Intangible Assets (continued)

17. BV EE (&)

B 5 ¥ R B

Process
technology
licence Software Total
TERI
Al B HET
(US$'000)  (US$'000)  (US$'000)
(FZ=7T) (F=7T) (F=7T)
31 December 2018 —E-N\Et+=-HB=+—H
At 31 December 2017 and at RZE—+F+_A=+—H
1 January 2018: M=Z—N\F—H—H:
Cost AN 282,999 88,427 371,426
Accumulated amortisation E5HEEMORE
and impairment (282,999) (81,016) (364,015)
Net carrying amount BREVHE = 7,411 7,411
At 1 January 2018, net of RZZE-NF—H—A8"
accumulated amortisation Bk BT SE ORE
and impairment - 7,411 7,411
Additions B - 5,502 5,502
Amortisation provided FREL Y
during the year - (3,006) (3,006)
Exchange realignment [E 3 %R = (336) (336)
At 31 December 2018, net of RZE—N\FE+—A=+—H"
accumulated amortisation Bk RETEE S SORE
and impairment = 9,571 9,571
At 31 December 2018: R-ZE—N\F+-_A=+—8":
Cost [B%N 282,999 93,929 376,928
Accumulated amortisation R RRE
and impairment (282,999) (84,358) (367,357)
Net carrying amount BREFAE = 9,571 9,571
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31 December 2019
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

Br 75 R R B

18. Investment in an Associate 18. R E RNFIMNKBRE
2019 2018
—E-hF E—\F
(US$°000) (US$'000)
(F%x) (F=71)
Share of net assets DILFEE 73,142 64,005
Particulars of the material associate are as follows: FEBERAFFBEOT ¢

Percentage of

Place of Paid-  equity interest
registration and in capital attributable
Name of company business B to the Group  Principal activities
RMB’000 REB NG
NSIEEE BERRkEFEME ARETT BEESE FBES
Shanghai Huahong Technology PRC/Mainland 548,000 50% Technology
Development Co., Ltd. China development and
(“Huahong Technology B PR AL investment
Development”) BHRFERIRE
LBEIREEREBR AR
(MM RIRER])
The financial statements of this associate were not audited by ZHE NIRRT R EF B LK
Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst RN E ST sk 2ok TR ST 23K
& Young global network. AR E ALK B A R EA% o
The Group’s voting power held and profit sharing arrangement REBEBBAEIRIFEERFBENRERE
in relation to Huahong Technology Development are 40% and Kom D B &2 HE 9 Bl /A540% K 50% ©
50%, respectively.
The Group’s shareholding in the associate is held through a AREBFBAARNEETFAREAEX
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Hig & N AR RRAE ©
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TREMAEER S QRN EER :

information of the Group’s associate:
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18. Investment in an Associate (continued)

31 December 2019

B 5 ¥ R B

18. REEE QX RIWVIRE (&)

2019 2018
—E-NF F— N\
(US$°000) (US$000)
(F%=x) (F%m)
Current assets TRENEE 73,282 113,440
Non-current assets IEREEE 210,028 185,056
Current liabilities mEBAE (56,216) (66,496)
Non-current liabilities B EUN=NE (80,810) (103,990)
Net assets FEE 146,284 128,010
Net assets, excluding goodwill FEE  TRERE 146,284 128,010
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest ARE BB E N B RS B AR
in the associate:
Proportion of the Group’s interest REEREEE R AR L B
in the associate 50% 50%
Group’s share of net assets of REBDEWMERNRFEE -
the associate, excluding goodwill T\@%ﬁéﬁ% 73,142 64,005
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
(US$’000) (US$000)
(FZ=m) (F=7T)
Revenue WA 19,782 17,188
Profit and total comprehensive income Y F| % 2 E ks 4258 20,262 18,888
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19. Financial Investments 19. £RIRE

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
(US$’000) (US$000)
(F%r) (F=7T)

Equity investments designated at fair BEARATEFAEMER

value through other comprehensive WA R AR E

income 207,689 208,357

Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABENCRIEE
profit or loss 519,779 667,033

Equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are unlisted equity investments in
two fellow subsidiaries, Shanghai Huali Microelectronics
Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Huali”) and QST Corporation (“QST"),
which were irrevocably designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income as the Group considers these

investments to be strategic in nature.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represent
wealth management products issued by banks in Mainland
China. They were mandatorily classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows

are not solely payments of principal and interest.

HERRATFEF AR M2 ERARRARR
ERMEERFLA BIEBENMETF
BOBERRR ([LEEN]) R EEBWER
BRBERQE ([WERK]) WIFLHRER
B MAKERSZERETAHEMEEE
REBAFEFARMEERE - THRZE
BREBREIEE -

BATETABRN S WA RS TEN
RAIRTORHMESR - HRAHREBUA
FiEsEARSHH ARRNSBMEAE - 1
mMREANBSRETERASAABHX
fit o

20. Inventories 20. 78

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

(US$°000) (US$'000)

(F%7x) (F%1)

Raw materials E# R 75,499 64,818
Work in progress R 52,547 48,621
Finished goods LUk 25,764 26,725
153,810 140,164
Provision for inventories FEEE (11,723) (10,535)
142,087 129,629
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21. Trade and Notes Receivables

emione o B IEERAR B EE

21. EZBEWREARERRE

2019 2018

—E-hF —E-N\F

(US$°000) (US$'000)

(F%m) (F%m)

Trade receivables =) e 121,884 123,414
Notes receivable FE =R 44,613 54,887
166,497 178,301
Impairment of trade receivables B S W RIERE (1,529) (1,504)
164,968 176,797

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit and the credit period is generally 30 to 45 days,
extending up to 150 days for major customers. There
is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are
non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables, based on the
invoice date and net of loss allowances, is as follows:

AEBEEZFNESERHUEES
T EEH—RAI0E4ISK HETE
EEFHMEEHRERERZI150K - A%
ElEsAEPEHER - RSB HE
PEE S RUGERIES T AERR
S ERERE M NSk 15 R e o B 5 FE WK
BARE -

WEZEME - BZRYEGA (NRE
BEE) KRBT ¢

2019 2018
—B-nE T NF

(US$’000) (US$'000)

(F=x) (F=71)

Within 3 months 31 A LA 120,355 121,910

The movements in loss allowance for impairment of trade

BZRERBREBEREBNES N

receivables are as follows: T
2019 2018
—E-NF —ETN\F
(US$°000) (US$000)
(F3=u) (F=71)
At 1 January R—HA—H 1,504 1,547
Impairment losses, net (note 6) BEEEFEE (MI5E6) 47 25
Exchange realignment b 5 AR (22) (68)
As at 31 December R+—_A=+—H 1,529 1,504
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1. ES5RRREREREE

21. Trade and Notes Receivables (continued)

The Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime
expected loss for all trade receivables. To measure the
expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due. The expected credit losses have also incorporated
forward-looking information. The expected credit loss rates for
trade receivables that were not yet past due or aged within 3
months are minimal.

The Group applies a general approach in calculating ECLs
for notes receivable. All of the notes receivable are not past
due. The Group classified such instruments as Stage 1 and
measured ECLs on a 12-month basis. However, when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the allowance will be based on the lifetime ECL.
For bank acceptance bills, as the relevant financial institutions
have a high credit rating, the loss rate is expected to be
minimal. For commercial acceptance bills, which were not yet
past due, loss rate is expected to be minimal as well.

The credit quality of the trade receivables is as follows:

(&)

ARBRABBHBEHRELEANEIRF]
RAFERYEEBR BT S &%
R 2 LA B 5 R IR R R B (A
FEMNENEE - AFTEENEES
1B BZRKSAERERAREERR
FERBHIREUETT DA - BHIEEE
BIRESREEEN - AR T=EA
REHNE ZRUKIENFAREERE
G o

REBRA—RITEHEREEENTE
HEEBER IEREKERS S RA
B AEEREBTASERE &
B Rt —EARREEEEEE
B AW BREUREERREZE
e - BEHAFRAEREEERR
HE - plIRTTARFZEME - ARIER
TREBNERFTARS - BFHEEAE
RIRE - RABBANEEALZEM
5 BEERIHBRERTEHBE -

BHRYGENEEEENT ¢

2019 2018

—E-hF —E-N\F

(US$’000) (US$000)

(F%r) (F=5T)

Neither past due nor impaired BE AR B BN AR E 114,841 115,952
Less than 1 month past due BHI DR E A 5,514 5,958
Past due and impaired Bk ERE 1,529 1,504
121,884 123,414
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considered to be insignificant.

22. Prepayments, Other Receivables and Other 22. AN RIE - Htt B RIER
Assets Hth&E
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
(US$’000) (US$°000)
(F%=5r) (F%T)
Other receivables H At fEUGRIR 4,004 2,417
Interest receivables JEU T B 2,938 2,218
Prepayments TEfSRIR 5,171 2,779
Value-added input tax (S IE R 2E 102,238 5,331
Current portion of prepaid land lease TEfS A & SR IAR BN AR ER 1
payments (note 15) (Mf7%15) = 642
114,351 13,387
Impairment of other receivables Hh FEUGRIBRE (898) (908)
113,453 12,479
Other receivables are repayable on demand. Hup el shIm B BIR ESRER -
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of other HiEWHRBEREREBSENESHN
receivables are as follows: S
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—)\F
(US$°000) (US$'000)
(F%5x) (F=mT)
At 1 January n—A—H 908 940
Exchange realignment b AR (10) (32)
As at 31 December RNt+=—A=+—8H 898 908
The Group applies a general approach in calculating ECLs for NEBFA AT AT E E M ERGRIE
other receivables. Other receivables related to debtors that BIEEEEEIE - BEXNEB AEBELY
are in default are classified as Stage 3 and the lifetime ECL EMEWRIBFREAE=-RE  BRERE
rate was estimated to be 100% based on historical credit loss S EEBELRET2HEREESRE
experience, resulting in an impairment balance of US$898,000 = £100% + A I F (B 4 £ £898,000
(2018: US$908,000). The remaining other receivables are E7T (ZZ— )\ : 908,000k T) ° E
classified as Stage 1 without any significant increase in credit BHEMBKKIBEREAE R B
risk tracked since initial recognition. Their recoverability was FHEREBENEERR L EEMER
assessed with reference to the credit status of the debtors, N o E Al YRR R ES ARG AR
and the expected credit loss as at 31 December 2019 is MFE MEBEZZE—NEF+ZA=1

—HMEHNEEBREARTEX -
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BrEE SRR MY EE

23.

270

31 December 2019
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted

B.BRERATEBYUARER

and Time Deposits HEREHER
2019 2018
—2-nE T NF
(US$'000) (US$'000)
(F%=5r) (F%T)
Cash and bank balances & RIRTTEERR 211,875 171,781
Time deposits EHITFR 335,187 605,556
547,062 777,337
Restricted and time deposits: RGN THTF :
Pledged deposits for letters of credit s AEEBER (749) (315)
Other pledged deposits for payment
of dividends MEREE A B ERER (27) (22)
Time deposits with original maturity REHIE A=A UL
of more than three months 5 HATF 3K (70,000) =
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 476,286 777,000

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances and time deposits of the Group denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to US$288,237,000 (2018:
US$269,064,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between seven days and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

Pledged deposits with a carrying value of US$749,000 as at 31
December 2019 (2018: US$315,000) were pledged to secure
the issuance of letters of credit.

Other pledged deposits with a carrying value of US$27,000
as at 31 December 2019 (2018: US$22,000) were pledged to
secure the payment of dividends to shareholders.

There were time deposits of US$70,000,000 with original
maturity of more than three months as at 31 December 2019
(2018: Nil).

RBREHER  AEEMES RRITES
AR EHERTIAARE AR
B - /5288,237,000% 7T (= ZF — )\
F : 269,064,000F L) ° A R¥EAT
BRABAHMER - A BiEHE
R CINEE B AIEF) RCGEE - &
ERMEEERTE) AEERESER
EEEARINEEBNBITHARES
BMAEHME -

RITRE DHREE ARITHERF HIZF
BHEEE - N EBRERDET AR
SENARREFTRBBLRE=(EA
RE - RE R HE B3 R EREUH
B RITERDERNMEERFBAH
I 12 K RCERAVRTT ©

R-ZZEBE-AE+-A=+—08 2K
BRI {E A749,000% 0 (ZZ — /\F :
315,000%€70) K B M7 3R A B 7T

A -

R-ZE-AE+-_A=+—HNEEE
A27,000% 7T (ZF —/\F : 22,0005
J0) MEME MIFFR - AR AR A

BB e

RZFE—AFE+=-A=+—8  REH
B =1{& A A _E & E HifF 50 &70,000,000
ET (ZE—NF: FT) -
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31 December 2019
—E-NF+=-A=1+—8H

B 5 ¥ R B

repayable on demand.

As at 1 January 2018, the carrying amount of contract liabilities
was US$21,344,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, contract liabilities
of US$27,261,000 (2018: US$21,344,000) at the beginning of
the year were recognized as revenue. The increase in contract
liabilities in 2019 and 2018 was mainly due to the increase in
short-term advances received from customers in relation to the
sale of semiconductor products.

24. Trade Payables 24. EZ B RIR
An ageing analysis of the trade payables of the Group as at RERERARREZEANGT  ~&EHE
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is SENFIBNRRDITHOT -
as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
(US$°000) (US$000)
(F%=5r) (F%5T)
Within 1 month 1E A LA 54,737 26,704
1 to 3 months 12318 A 18,276 37,713
3 to 6 months 3=6{8A 2,901 4,310
6 to 12 months 62 121E H 1,402 2,215
Over 12 months 1218 A LA £ 8,803 8,528
86,119 79,470
The trade payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and B SN AEE T”ré' R—m
are normally settled on terms of 30 to 60 days. RB0RECOKRHARALE ©
25. Other Payables and Accruals 25. Hitn B I REREEE R
2019 2018
—E-hF —EN\E
(US$’000) (US$'000)
(F%=x) (F%=5T)
Other payables and accruals Efﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁaﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ 227,470 102,247
Contract liabilities SEHBE 33,249 27,261
Payroll and bonus payables J‘éﬁa&ﬁi TE4T 42,868 35,840
Dividend payable FERTAR B 27 22
303,614 165,370
Other payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and HEMEMRIBEERR 22 RAREXK

FFEE -

R-_ZE—-N\$—A—H"
{E/421,344,0003E 7T ©

BHAERRT

HE_Z—hFE+_A=+—HIHF
g 4F 127,261,000 7T (= F — )\
 : 21,344,000 7T0) ME N B B E
RBEBWA -M—EB-AER T N\E
MEHNBEENEZSHNEHEFE
REMEBENEFEEZZLM -
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26. Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings

26. T R RITIER

2019 2018
—E—hE —E-NF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity US$’000 rate (%) Maturity — US$'000
BEFI= BEF=
(%) I FExR (%) FE F=ET
Current TRED
Current portion of REAIRITE A
long term bank Eﬂ%ﬁﬁlﬁﬁ
loans — secured — FEM 1.20 2020 4,300 1.20 2019 4,371
Non-current IR B
Secured bank loans  FEARITER 1.20 2021-2025 21,502 1.20 2020-2025 26,227
25,802 30,598
2019 2018
—E-NEF —ET-)N\F
(US$’000) (US$'000)
(F%x) (F=T)
Analysed into: SR
Bank loans repayable: JEERRITER :
Within one year —FNR 4,300 4,371
In the second year E-F 4,300 4,371
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FoEZFRFT (REERMT) 12,900 13,113
Beyond five years BB RF 4,302 8,743
25,802 30,598

Secured bank loans of US$25,802,000 as at 31 December
2019 (2018: US$30,598,000) were denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group’s bank loans
were secured by pledges of the Group’s assets with carrying
values as follows:

A—E—hFE+-A=+—08  5ER
RITERBAARBFER25,802,000
=70 (ZZ—/\4F : 30,598,000%7T) °

—NER_FT-NFE+ZA=1
—El $%@E’Jfﬁh R AR E
MEEFRER  BEMNKREEDT

2019 2018

—E-hF = N\F

Notes (US$°000) (US$'000)

Htat (F%Ex) (F=x)

Property, plant and equipment ME - BB KRG 13 20,858 22,325
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 5,445 -
Prepaid land lease payments TEf T E IR 15 = 5,750
26,303 28,075
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27. Lease Liabilities 27. HEEE
(US$°000)
(F%x)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 RZE—-N\F+=A=+—H
HEREE -
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 (note 2.2) HAEBYEmEERFE 1657
VR & (MiE2.2) 17,882
Carrying amount at 1 January 2019 RZZE-NF—A—-BHNKRAEE 17,882
Additions NE 1,233
Accretion of interest I AN 884
Payments (BB (975)
Exchange realignment b 3 % (408)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 R-ZE—hhFE+-A=+—H
HEREE 18,616
Maturity profile of lease liabilities as at 31 December 2019 is HEABER=ZE—hhE&+=A=+—8
as follows: R HERIT
2019
—E-NEF
(US$’000)
(F%x)
Within one year —&R 2,892
In the second year £ 1,750
In the third to five years, inclusive F-EERF (BEEEMTE) 4,697
After five years AHF% 15,153
Total undiscounted lease liabilities AR E A ERRE 24,492
Discount amount BhIREE (5,876)
Total present value of lease liabilities HEaENEERE 18,616
Current portion BUEAER 5 (1,922)
Non-current portion FERNHAES 16,694
2019
—E-NEF
(US$°000)
(F%mx)
Analysed into: SaR) V=1
Lease liabilities: HERE:
Within one year —&R 1,922
In the second year E-F 1,150
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F=ZFhFE (BREEEMF) 3,133
After five years AFE 12,411
Total present value of lease liabilities HEBENRIRE 18,616

2019F F[Z#kE ANNUAL REPORT 2019 o ZEITHEEEHR A E HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED | 273



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAREER R MIEE “

28.
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Deferred Tax

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the
year are as follows:

8. IELERLIH

FREERBRRBENREENEINT

Deferred tax liabilities: RIERIEEE
Fair value Fair value
gains on gains on
financial investment Withholding
investments property tax Total
SRIREDN REMEN
NERE NERE TEHIR wet
(USP000)  (US$000)  (US$000)  (US$000)
(F=) (F=) (F%=) (F%)
As at 1 January 2018 R=—Z—\F—H—H 184 489 13,634 14,307
Deferred tax charged to profit  FRFIHIBFHEE
or loss during the year ERERIE (Fi3E10)
(note 10) - 47 3,583 3,630
Deferred tax charged to other SR EHE 2 EUES
comprehensive income BB AET I8
during the year 265 - - 265
Exchange realignment B 5 A = (56) - (56)
As at 31 December 2018 and  HW=F—/\F
1 January 2019 +=ZRA=+—Hk
—Z-NE—HA—H 449 480 17,217 18,146
Deferred tax charged/(credited) €R3E /(5 A)
to profit or loss during the B RHELTIR
year (note 10) (FFE10) = 24 (1,385) (1,361)
Deferred tax charged to other SR8 EM 2 EE
comprehensive income HIERERTE
during the year 406 = = 406
Exchange realignment BE K R = (15) = (15)
As at 31 December 2019 NZZE—-h4E
—RA=1t— 855 489 15,832 17,176

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The Group is therefore liable for withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

BE(RFEAREKMBEEEREHR
B R BRI SINE B E RSN
B#%EH IR IS AR10% B A TEH
B e Bt ZF%I/,\EJEEAEPIWﬂﬂEX_L
MZETARE-_TTN\F—A—HE
B B B PR 0 TR B B B AR SR AN A
fief o B P 3 ERL SN BRI % 8 3 P B DA R [
REIABAHE - Al 8L EAEEMIEN
XK o

ZK/A A1) 1) L A% 3R 5 A% B I 48 B A 4]
SHEER -

HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED #4588 HR /A7) « ANNUAL REPORT 2019 2019 FE#HE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 ¥ R B

31 December 2019
—E-NF+=-A=1+—8H

28. Deferred Tax (continued) 28. BB E (&)

Deferred tax assets: RIETRIBEE -
Write-down of
inventories
and
impairment of Share
receivables Accruals options Leases Total
FEHRR
EYWFIERE BB RERiE HE st
(US$'000) (US$000) (US$'000) (US$000) (US$'000)
(F%71) (=) (F%71) (F%=1) (F%71)
As at 1 January 2018 RZZ—-\F—A—H 1,834 3,941 1,299 = 7,074
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to FREA/(HE)

profit or loss during the year BRRNERHE

(note 10) (Kt3E10) 104 (138) (287) (321)
Exchange realignment I 5 3% (93) (245) (52) (390)
As at 31 December 2018 and RZZE—N\F

1 January 2019 as previously +ZA=+—-8k

reported “E-NF-A-

B (Mm%ERI23) 1,845 3,558 960 6,363
Impact of adopting HKFRS 16 FINE RIS ERE
(note 2.2) EHIE165M
72 (Mir2.2) - - - 217
As at 1 January 2019 as restated RZZE—NF—A—H
(&=31) 1,845 3,558 960 6,640
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to ERA/(HNF) 185

profit or loss during the year ROEREHIE (z10)

(note 10) 172 (49) 881 1042
Exchange realignment BE 5 AR (29) (65) (16) (115)
As at 31 December 2019 RZZE—NE

+-A=+—-H 1,988 3,444 1,825 7,567

Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of

the following items:

TN B W EERELERBEE

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

(US$°000) (US$000)

(F%r) (F=z)

Unused tax losses REVAIAEE 10,013 8,698
Deductible temporary differences AR E R EE 410,912 417,338
420,925 426,036

HRRERBEETRE EBEZ R
FAR - BAAF LR ERD G M A A
UHEHZERBAER  RUBRZEE
BRREENIREE

Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been
loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised.
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28. Deferred Tax (continued) 28. BB E (&)
The above tax losses are from overseas countries and are iR IR ES R R B8 SNEI R B 1] fE R HR
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable ALK A B AR RRERT S
profits of the companies. Deferred tax assets have not been F o R KA AEH FE R TR T A A A
recognized in respect of the temporary differences as it is I LI E - MU ERE R EERER
not considered probable that taxable profits will be available BELEFHIBEE ©

against which the above items can be utilised.

29. Government Grants 29. U #H BY
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
(US$°000) (US$'000)
(F%=5t) (F=7)
At 1 January n—A—H 44,406 40,523
Received during the year FERUE 93,087 8,040
Released to offsetting research and B DA SE T 25 Bk AR
development costs (948) (2,029)
Offset with long term assets HIHRAEE (94,519) -
Exchange realignment & X (1,385) (2,128)
As at 31 December W+=—A=+—H 40,641 44,406
The Group received government funding for several REE®ZEWTEBNIE B ABEBA
government-sponsored projects focusing on the research and BNESER  %FHEZERMEE
development of advanced technologies. R -
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30. Share Capital 30. iR A<
2019 2018
S L G
(US$°000) (US$'000)
(F%x) (F=7T)
Issued and fully paid: BEITRHRE
1,288,819,560 (2018: 1,283,952,225) 1,288,819,560/% (ZZF—/)\F :
ordinary shares 1,283,952,2251% ) @A 1,966,095 1,960,159

A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as

AR RBACEBLIT -

follows:
Number of Amount of
shares in issue  share capital
ERITROEE RAEEE
(°000) (US$°000)
(Fm) (F%x)
At 1 January 2018 RZZFE—-NF—H—H 1,037,571 1,554,870
Share options exercised (note (a)) TERERE (M3E(a)) 3,982 5,289
New issuance to a designated BT TIEERE S (Mi(b))
subscriber (note (b)) 242,399 400,000
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January RZZE—N\FE+-_A=+—HK
2019 —E—-hF—H—H 1,283,952 1,960,159
Share options exercised (note (a)) ITIEBEASHE (Fi5E(a)) 4,868 5,936
At 31 December 2019 RZE—hF+=-—A=1+—H 1,288,820 1,966,095
Notes: Bt -

(a) The subscription rights attaching to 4,868,000 (2018: 3,982,000)
share options were exercised at the subscription price of
HK$6.912 per share (2018: HK$6.912 per share), resulting in
the issue of 4,868,000 (2018: 3,982,000) shares for a total cash
consideration of US$4,302,000 (2018: US$3,515,000). An amount
of US$1,634,000 (2018: US$1,774,000) was transferred from the
share option reserve to share capital upon exercise of the share
options.

(b) On 3 January 2018, the Company and China Integrated Circuit
Industry Investment Fund Co., Ltd (the “Subscriber”) entered
into an agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”), pursuant to
which the Subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe for
and the Company has conditionally agreed to allot and issue an
aggregate of 242,398,925 shares (the “Subscription Shares”) at
HK$12.90 per share (the “Subscription Price”). All the conditions
set out in the Subscription Agreement have been fulfilled and
the subscription took place on 7 November 2018 pursuant to
the terms of the Subscription Agreement. All the 242,398,925
Subscription Shares have been allotted and issued to Xin
Xin (Hong Kong) Capital Co., Limited, being the Subscriber’s
designated entity, at the Subscription Price, in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the Subscription Agreement.
The proceeds from the subscription were approximately
US$400,000,000.

(a)

4,868,000 (=Z—/\ & : 3,982,000
7)) BREREZ RBECRAEES
f%6.9128 7T (=T —/)\F : Bi6.912
L) 1718 - 35| B % 174,868,0004%
(=—Z — )\ 4 : 3,982,0000%) f% 5 °
38 & KR8 54,302,000% T (ZF —
J\4F : 3,515,000% 7T) - FEREEST
#1% > 1,634,000 7T (ZZF— )\ F :
1,774,000 70) HIEE HERERE
ERHERA o

il

ﬂ‘

<t

\

=5

—
S35 Pt
B
|FSat ol
SR e

(L 38 )t 55 caf 6 0> &

([R B E %]
2% 17 & $£242 398,9250% A% 1
B 1) o REE & AT ELZ FT
BERK ARBEHEER_Z
+— At ARBERBIHEIETET
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31.

278

31 December 2019

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. The Scheme includes two batches, each of which
were effective on 4 September 2015 (the “2015 Options”)
and on 24 December 2018 (the “2018 Options”), respectively.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Company’s
directors, including a non-executive director, an executive
director and other employees of the Group. The share options,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for
7 years from the respective effective date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in
the Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the
price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and commences after a vesting period of two to five
years and ends on a date which is not later than the expiry
date of the Scheme.

31. B8

RARIHRE—EHERES ([ZF
g]) EERUASHEIENEREME
Bl e B2 HEERNE R EE -
ZErEID AWML - DRRZZE—RAFN
ANB ([ZE—RFHBRE]) R=Z
—NF+ZAZ+THEB([ZZE—N\F
B £ - ZETBI2HEEKS
HEREARAES (BIE—RIEHTT
FE) NASBEHEMES - RIESHEE
HEEE] - ZEERERBSERB
RET7TERNF °

WA R IEZ AT B 2 RITEE RS AR
HETSERBZEBRETEEARATR
TEEBEITRMD Z210% o AER+ @
REIME - ZEHEISR A B2 HERE
BT R IT 2 IRB BB TEBAAR
DRVERBIREBEITIRG 21%  #E—
SE T R EE 2 AR R AR R
R ARE EiLE -

AEESE  ARAERHTBRABRER
BRIEEZEABEALE TER
BAFERBUSBIIFNITESIR - It
O - ERMER @A BE - BFA
RAEBRRIBLIFATEST RS
FERZEABEALTZBREBRL AR
BMERRE 1T 20.1% & 1E
(REXLBBARB RN ERFTHE)
HBEs008 BT MBS EERRAE
ERSBCRALAE -

AR ABRE A BEF 28 HARE 2
DERMBERZBRE - XARZREH
REHXIBET2RERE - BREZTT
EHREERE IR _ERTFHEH
BRBARRZAt8IfER < BRI LE -
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31. Share Option Scheme (continued) 31. iR AESTE (&)
The exercise price of share options is determinable by the BREZITHEERBESET - ENF
directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock DPRUNTRE 2&REE - ()VARRRKRG
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the R TR B BB X AT < W (E
date of offer of the share options; and (i) the average Stock MONVARARBRMHREER T BB AE
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the five R 5 BEBR T FHRTE -
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer.
Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends BRI IEM BT S B ABBRE
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. RIRERZIREHRET o
2015 Options “E-hFBRE
The following share options were outstanding under the 2015 REAFEUTERESRRE-Z—h
Options during the year: FREIRRETTE
2019 2018
—ZE-hF ZE-)N\F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price HK$ of options  price HK$  of options
per share ’000 per share ‘000
fnkE BBARAE hnE
FHITHEE HE THIFEE BREHRE
sRET F3 BB T
At 1 January R—HA—H 6.912 18,872 6.912 23,610
Forfeited during the year FRR UL 6.912 (57) 6.912 (756)
Exercised during the year FRITE 6.912 (4,868) 6.912 (3,982)
At 31 December Rt+—A=+—8 6.912 13,947 6.912 18,872
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31. Share Option Scheme (continued) 31.

2015 Options (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding under the 2015 Options as at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

BRETE (8)

—E-LFBERE (B

RIBER T — R EBAEE T MR

TTEBERENITEE RITEHRINT

2019 —E-hE

Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BRERE TEEr 1T6EH

’000 HKS$ per share

T4 BRET
6,556 6.912 4 September 2018 to 3 September 2022
—E-)\FhLAMNBE=ZE=_=_FNA=H
7,391 6.912 4 September 2019 to 3 September 2022
—E-NFhALAMNBE=ZE=_=_FNA=H

13,947
A —B-N\%

Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BRERE TEEr 1TEH

’000 HKS$ per share

T4 BRET
1,842 6.912 4 September 2017 to 3 September 2022
—E—+tFhAMNBE=E=_=_FNA=H
8,431 6.912 4 September 2018 to 3 September 2022
—E-)\FhLAMNBE=ZE==FNA=H
8,599 6.912 4 September 2019 to 3 September 2022
—E-NFhLAMNBE=ZE=_=FNA=H

18,872

* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment
in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in
the Company’s share capital.

The Group recognized a share option expense of US$551,000
(2018: US$1,298,000) under the 2015 Options during the year.

The 4,868,000 (2018: 3,982,000) share options exercised
under the 2015 Options during the year resulted in the
issue of 4,868,000 (2018: 3,982,000) ordinary shares of the
Company for a total cash consideration of US$4,302,000
(2018: US$3,515,000). An amount of US$1,634,000 (2018:
US$1,774,000) was transferred from the share option reserve
to share capital upon the exercise of the share options, as
l further detailed in note 30 to the financial statements.

© MERTERSARET RAAF
ZBAB AR - BIREARE
B TR -

NEBRENRE T — R EBRER
R HERD 551,000 7T (ZZE— N\
£ 11,298,000 7T) °

FRNZE —AFHEIREE T H4,868,000
7 (= ZF— )\ £ : 3,982,0001)) B P& 4
JETTE - B BUA A F) ¥ 774,868,0000%
—ZF— )\ F : 3,982,0008%) & & A -
2 18 & R (B 54,302,000 T (=& —
J\AE © 3,515,000 JT.) ° 40 BF 75 3k 2% MY
FESOFTHE — T RFiul - BRI TR
1,634,000% 7T (=& — /\4F : 1,774,000
ET) RIEE MBRERBERERE -
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31 December 2019

B 5 ¥ R B

On 23 December 2019, 300,000 options were granted to
directors and key management personnel (“2018 Tranche
B”) (2018: Nil) and 2,182,000 options were granted to other
employees (“2018 Tranche C”) (2018: Nil).

20195 4FZ s ANNUAL REPORT 2019 o FEITEH AR /A F] HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED

—E-NF+=-A=1+—8H
31. Share Option Scheme (continued) BRAESHE (&)
2015 Options (continued) “E-HFERE (F)
At the end of the reporting period, the Company had E"ﬁlﬁiﬁﬁﬂi $ A H 13,947,000/
13,947,000 share options outstanding under the 2015 Options. HMARE -ZE—AFBREITENRR
The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, T o $ETF$ AR A AR AN RS - BB
under the present capital structure of the Company, result ﬁﬁféﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁ’\]E%H%%E—Iﬁ‘éé\ﬁﬁgﬁﬁl\
in the issue of 13,947,000 additional ordinary shares of the #%1713,947,0008% 28~ &) & 18 A% K2 38 1N
Company and additional share capital of US$17,796,000 B Z17,796,0003 T (@TEEE,E\%H%%EE%
(including US$5,417,000 transferred from the share option HEBE AR5 417,000%7T) °
reserve to share capital).
At the date of approval of these financial statements, the R EZSEY BHRETAE  ARG#HS
Company had 11,706,029 share options outstanding under the 11,706,02913 M AR IE —F — A F B
2015 Options, which represented approximately 0.9% of the REITERBRE - (5 AR ARIEET
Company'’s shares in issue as at that date. B& 7 HI#10.9% ©
2018 Options —E-N\FHERE
The following share options were outstanding under the 2018 RAFEATERERREE - —
Options during the year: FREIRRETTE
2019 2018
—E-NEF — N\
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price HK$ of options  price HK$  of options
per share ’000 per share ‘000
fnfE InsE
FHITHEE BRESE THITEE BREHE
FRBT T2 BT T
At 1 January n—A—H 15.056 34,500 = =
Granted during the year FRKRH 18.027 2,982 15.056 34,500
Forfeited during the year F AR 15.056 (1,671) - -
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 15.303 35,811 15.056 34,500
On 29 March 2019, 500,000 options were granted to the chief RZE—-AF=H=+AH 500,000
executive (“2018 Tranche A”) (2018: Nil). MZE-—NF:ZT) BERECE TR
STBRAE ([ZZE—NEFEAZSD]) -

WN-—ZE—-—hE+-_A=-+=80"
300,000 (ZZE—N\F: T) ExE
ERTESRTEEEAE ([ZZT—
NEBI H ) K2,182,00010 (= & —
NE:Z) BREERTHMWES ([=
T N\FCEHH]) -

'

~

>
281



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IS ERRMEE S

31. Share Option Scheme (continued) 31. iR AESTE (&)
2018 Options (continued) “E-N\FERE (&)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options RERARZZFT—\FEREETHR
outstanding under the 2018 Options as at the end of the ITEBRENTEERITERAT
reporting period are as follows:
2019 —E-hE
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BRESA TEE" 1T
’000 HKS$ per share
T4 BRET
10,571 15.056 24 December 2020 to 23 December 2025
CE RS A+ WAE=ZE-_hFT-A=+=H
10,571 15.056 24 December 2021 to 23 December 2025
—E At WAE=ZE-_hFT+-A=+=H
10,570 15.056 24 December 2022 to 23 December 2025
CE YA+ WAE—Z-_hFE T -A=+=H
1,158 15.056 24 December 2023 to 23 December 2025
C=HFZAZtTHEAE=E-RE+ZA=+=H
125 18.400 29 March 2021 to 28 March 2026
R F=-AZF+hREZZ=A"F=A=1+NR
125 18.400 29 March 2022 to 28 March 2026
—ECCF-A-thREZZE-RE=A=+N\A
125 18.400 29 March 2023 to 28 March 2026
—=F=A-t+hRE-ZE-F=A-1+/\H
125 18.400 29 March 2024 to 28 March 2026
ZECIWE=AZThAREZZE=ARF=HA=1+N\HRH
791 17.952 23 December 2021 to 22 December 2026
—E- 4+ At =HE_ZE-_AF+-_A=+=H
790 17.952 23 December 2022 to 22 December 2026
R CF+ A=+ =RET_AFF+=A=1+=H
790 17.952 23 December 2023 to 22 December 2026
— At ZHEZ_~Ft+-A=-+=AH
75 17.952 23 December 2024 to 22 December 2026

—E_NF+ At =H&E_A"Ft+_A=+=H

35,811
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31 December 2019
—E-NF+=-A=1+—8H

31. B E (&)

—E-N\FRERE (&)

2018 —EB-N\F

Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BRESA TfEE" 1T

’000 HKS$ per share

T4 BRET
11,015 15.056 24 December 2020 to 23 December 2025
CE RS A+t WAE=Z-_RFT-A=1+=H
11,015 15.056 24 December 2021 to 23 December 2025
—E At WAE=Z-_hFT+-A=+=H
11,015 15.056 24 December 2022 to 23 December 2025
Tt ACTmAEE-_RF+-A=+=H
1,455 15.056 24 December 2023 to 23 December 2025
—E =+t WmAE=ZT-_AF+=A=1+=H

34,500

the Company’s share capital.

The Group recognized a share option expense of
US$7,195,000 (2018: Nil) under the 2018 Options during the

year.

The fair values of the share options granted during the
year were US$449,000 (US$0.90 each) for 2018 Tranche
A, US$245,000 (US$0.82 each) for 2018 Tranche B and
US$1,782,000 (US$0.82 each) for 2018 Tranche C. The Group
did not recognize any share option expense under 2018
Tranche B and Tranche C during the year, which is immaterial.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during
the year was estimated as at the date of grant, using a
binomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. The following table lists

the inputs to the model used:

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment
in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in

o WEETHRSAKRET  RARF
ZBAFE MBI E - BIBREL
TTEBR THE -

Wﬁ ERERNRE T — \FERERE
ﬂﬁﬂx%ﬁﬂim%,ooo%m (ZZE—
)\$ ) o

RER - BE_ZT—\FAZH + =
—N\EFBH D KT — N\FCEHHIRH
BEIRAERN D FED 5 A449,000% T
(# #20.903< JT) * 245,000% 7t (& &
0.82%7T) M 1,782,000% 7T (FA%0.82
ETL) e RER AEEVTERR T
— \FBEB D MCE o A T Ay (E 1] B A%
Y - BREAESER/) -

FARLNURREEBREZ QT
B DREHASRA ZEAEA G
a0 E AT IR A AR A 15 R R 1K
o TRINLAABRANBAZR :

2018 Tranche A 2018 Tranche B 2018 Tranche C

ZE—\FAZD —N\FBH# 7 —N\FCHH

Dividend yield (%) % B ES (%) 1.68 1.80 1.80
Expected volatility (%) TEHI 8 (%) 40.90 41.64 41.64
Risk-free interest rate (%) 4 [ B 1R (%) 1.37 1.67 1.67
Annual post-vesting forfeit rate (%) EE FBBIZIE(%) 3 3 4
Exercise multiple THEREE 2.8 2.8 2.2

Share price (US$ per share)

H%ET% (BRET) 236 222 292
./‘\/‘\/L

2019F FZ ¥R ANNUAL REPORT 2019 o ZFEHTE8HR A E HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 283



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ERARAIEE S .

31.

32.

284

31 December 2019

Share Option Scheme (continued)

2018 Options (continued)

The annual post-vesting forfeit rate is based on the historical
data and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns
that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption
that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which
may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
35,811,000 share options outstanding under the 2018 Options.
The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result
in the issue of 35,811,000 additional ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of US$93,486,000
(including US$23,130,000 transferred from the share option
reserve to share capital).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 35,734,000 share options outstanding under the
2018 Options, which represented approximately 2.8% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 197 to
198 of the financial statements.

According to the relevant PRC laws and regulations for
wholly-foreign-owned enterprises, which are applicable to
the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC, profits of the PRC
subsidiaries, as determined in accordance with the applicable
accounting rules and regulations in the PRC, are available
for distribution in the form of cash dividends to the Company
after the PRC subsidiaries have (1) satisfied all tax liabilities;
(2) provided for losses in previous years; and (3) made
appropriations to the statutory reserve funds. The Company’s
subsidiaries in the PRC are required to appropriate not less
than 10% of their profit after taxation to the statutory reserve
funds until the reserve balance reaches 50% of their registered
capital.

31.

32.

BRETE (8)

—E-N\FERE (8)

FERBELRETIREE L BET
B RORBRATEHERENITERN - 8
HR IR R E LR B R AR KBS -

48 2 4 L MR RS M A B3

E-°

RREHER - KRR N\FER
RETE TS (8 AR 1T L Y BE A 7 /535,811,000
17 o IRIBEARRIREMRAZEE  BH
ITE M ARITIE MBI I R 2 B B EE S
#£1735,811,000% 7K 22 7] 38 B K2 18 hn
1% 7893,486,000% 7T (235 A B8 A% 8
R E IR AR 23,130,000%7T) °

RHLEZSEVBREBE  RARRZ
T N\FHEREIET MARITE ISR
£35,734,0001% ' {55z AR A RIE 2
TP B9 492.8% ©

e

AEBRAEE RBAEFERNHEE &I
) BRYBRKRFI197E1988
GARREBHRP R -

RIEFEARIEEECRERIE
BOGERRARANGTEFRA) &
RERNTESF R RRPIEER S
BFAAa s - ARREFRREN)
ENMARGRE: QRBEFES
BIEHEE  ROBATHEEIEL
BERUARESEEFARARABELD
& o RABHHETFARAZBES DR
HBEBEENE10%IEREERBS -
EERREREDEEMEARMNS0% °
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33. Leases 33.1HE
As lessor EREBEA
The Group leases its investment property (note 14) to Shanghai REBREBE-IHLEHERH - HHE
Huali, under an operating lease arrangement, with a lease B (MzE14) HE T EEESN B
term of 20 years. The terms of the lease generally also require HIR20F - ZHEAMBER—BRITHTE
the tenant to provide for periodic rent adjustments according AEEARBERTANEHES AR
to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental income EHBE AEERFARRNEE
recognized by the Group during the year was US$12,643,000 WA &12,643,000%% 7L (=2 — N\4F :
(2018: US$ 13,063,000), details of which are included in note 5 13,063,000% 7T) © HFBEH A B R
to the financial statements. FMIFES ©
At 31 December 2019, undiscounted lease payments NZTE—-—NF+ZA=+—080 " ~&H
receivable by the Group in future periods under AR 1 7 AT R B 48 2 L 49 A R 2R HA R B LK
non-cancellable operating leases with its tenant are as follows: HEEPHAREBHEENZAT :
2019 2018
—E-NEF ZE-N\F
(US$°000) (US$'000)
(F%=7t) (F=m)
Within one year —FR 11,712 12,058
After one year but within two years —FRERMENRN 11,712 11,905
After two year but within three years MERBBER=FNK 11,712 11,905
After three year but within four years = FREREFE 11,712 11,905
After four year but within five years WEBRERRFA 11,712 11,905
More than five years BBAF 61,424 74,341
119,984 134,019
The Group was advanced with the future rentals from Shanghai RZE—NE+ZA=+—H *&H
Huali of US$3,800,000 as at 31 December 2019 (2018: W B /8% )TN H %7 £3,800,000
US$4,185,000). 7 (ZZ—\F : 4,185,000 7T) °
As lessee ERABEAN
The Group has various lease contracts for land use right, AEEHEERNEEBLER TR
offices and dormitory properties used in its operation. Lump B-WAERBEEVWENETHES
sum payments were made upfront to acquire the leased land %9 o BERRAIEL —IRMER SRA R ZE I
from the owners with lease periods of 42 to 50 years, and no BHEE L HEN F42F50F - M
ongoing payments will be made under the terms of these land BIEZE T HENRN - B TEEE
leases. Leases of offices and dormitory properties generally SRR - WAERBEEWFELE
have lease terms between 2 and 20 years. Generally, the HREN T2220F - — M5 &A%
Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased B mAKBEAINATEE RS HEHE
assets outside the Group. EEE -
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33. Leases (continued)

As lessee (continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

Detailed information regarding right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities is set out in notes 16 and 27, respectively,
to the financial statements.

33. 1% (&)

ERERAN (H)

HEREEENHERBABNE
BEBD R EN M E R EE16
&k27 -

The amounts recognized in profit or loss in relation to (b) RERFHERANEERESTEN
leases are as follows: T:
2019
—B-NF
(US$°000)
(F%Ex)
Interest on lease liabilities HEAERNE 884
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets TREEENERX 2,637
Expense relating to short-term leases and other HGHITA & REr N AHEIR
leases with remaining lease terms ended on or —E-NF+ZA=+—H%
before 31 December 2019 ZAIE R EMEER BN 1,625
Total amount recognized in profit or loss RIERERN B SR 5,146

Total cash outflows for leases and non-cash additions to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are disclosed in
note 39 to the financial statements.

Operating lease commitments as at 31 December 2018

The Group leases certain of its offices and dormitory
properties under operating lease arrangements,
negotiated for terms of one to twenty years.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

(c)

HERSRLBREAREREEE
EHERENIFREARE N B HR
RMFEIINWEE -

R-ZE—NFE+-_A=+—HHK
LEAE

REBBECEHELHRAET
WMAEREEME  SHEfAls
—ZE_+%F o

R-ZE—NFE+=-_A=+—8 " &
EERBETAIBUEEERLORIAT
B R R R R E R E R
s

2018
—T—)N\F
(US$'000)
(F=7T)

Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive
More than five years

—FR
F_EFLF (BREEMF)
HEBRF

2,784
7,200
17,132

27,116
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—E-NF+=-A=1+—8H

34. Commitments

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note
33 (b) above, the Group had the following capital commitments
at the end of the reporting period:

34. A& HE

B E 3Bt 7E33(b) A it 48

B EAE

Sh - REBRBEHRE AT E AR K

=

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
(US$°000) (US$'000)
(F%=x) (F=m1)
Contracted, but not provided for: DETHA) - BAREE
Property, plant and equipment W - BENEE 383,653 409,701
35. Related Party Transactions and Balances 35. BBt A X B KRR
(a) Name and relationship (a) BEREBRE

Name of related party

Relationship with the Group

B B8 BEAKENER
Huahong Group and its subsidiaries
EUEBRAETRT

— Shanghai Huahong (Group) Co., Ltd. (“Huahong Group”)
— L/BE (KE) ERARA] ([FIEH])

— Hua Hong International Inc. (“Huahong International”)

— EMEREBR AR ([ETEE )

— Shanghai Huahong Zealcore Electronics Co., Ltd.
(“Huahong Zealcore”)

— DEFETBEMKRAERAR ([FLRTK])

— Shanghai Hongri International Electronics Co., Ltd.
(“Hongri”)

— BT BEREEFARAR ([HAH )

— Shanghai Integrated Circuit Research and Development
Center (“ICRD”)

— PEEXTEAETO ([EXEBHEMAE])

— Shanghai Hua Hong Jitong Smart System Co., Ltd. (“Jitong”)

— DBEAGRERERGRNERAR ([FH@])

NEC Corporation (“NEC”)

NEC Corporation ([NEC )

— NEC Management Partner, Ltd. (“NEC Management”)
— NEC Management Partner, Ltd. ([NEC Management )

SAIL and its subsidiaries
ERBAREFAFR
— Sino-Alliance International Ltd. (“SAIL International”)

— Shanghai Huali
— biEEH

- QST

— WERHX

Holding company of Hua Hong International

Inc.

EIT PR B R A aRER A A
Shareholder of the Company
PN ) 8

Subsidiary of Huahong Group
FEIAEEFRA]

Subsidiary of Huahong Group

EIEET AR
Subsidiary of Huahong Group
EHEET AR

Subsidiary of Huahong Group
EIEET AR

Shareholder of the Company
RARIRER

Subsidiary of NEC
NECF2 7]

Shareholder of the Company
RABIRER

Subsidiary of SAIL
EEEA-F AR

Subsidiary of SAIL
i p NI a/N
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35. Related Party Transactions and Balances

(continued)

(@) Name and relationship (continued)

5. @B ARG KLk ()

(a) BWREAEZ (F)

Name of related party

Relationship with the Group

*

BT 518 BEAREENREER
INESA and its subsidiaries
BEEERETAT

— Shanghai INESA Intelligent Electronics Co., Ltd.

(“Shanghai INESA”")
- LERRREETERAR ([ LEEE])

— Shanghai Nanyang Software System Integration Co., Ltd.

(“Nanyang Software”)

— LEBRAENERERERAR ([FFRMT )
— Shanghai Nanyang Wanbang Software Technology

Co., Ltd. ("Wanbang”)
— bEmFEARERMARAR ([EH])

Huahong Technology Development
LIRS E

— Huahong Real Estate

—EMEX

— Shanghai Huajin Property Management Co., Ltd.

(“Huajin”)
— bigEisyR e m AR AT ([#EsE])
CEC and its subsidiaries

FEEFRHEFATR
— China Electronics Corporation (“CEC”)*

~ hEETEEEREEARAR (FHET)) "

— CEC Huada Electronic Design Co., Ltd. (*Huada”)*
—tRPEEFABFRABREMELRR ([FEKX])*
— Shanghai Huahong Integrated Circuit Co., Ltd.

(“Shanghai Huahong IC”)*

— EEETERERERETAR ([ EFETEMERK]) *
— Shanghai Belling Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Belling”)*

— bR ERHhERA R ([E8H%E])
~ Hylintek Limited (“Hylintek”)*
- BEERARAT (BHEE]) -

CEC disposed of all of its shareholdings in Huahong
Group on 26 October 2018. From then on, CEC and its
subsidiaries are no longer related parties to the Group.

Subsidiary of INESA
BEEETAA

Subsidiary of INESA
EZEEE TR

Subsidiary of INESA
BEEET AR

Associate of the Group

REERE R A]

Subsidiary of Huahong Technology
Development

FERIRBER T AR

Subsidiary of Huahong Technology
Development

EAMZERTAF

Shareholder of Huahong Group
(before 26 October 2018)

T SR E AR
(ZE—NF+AZ+/"BZA

Subsidiary of CEC

HEEFFAR]

Subsidiary of CEC

FEEFFAHE
Subsidiary of CEC
FEEFFAR
Subsidiary of CEC
FEEFFAR

* HEEFR -FE—)NFEFH A
NAHERRENEFBN AR
o Hilt  PEEFREFILA
T BB ERL GG T o
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(continued)

(b) Related party transactions

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2019
—E-NF+=-A=1+—8H

(b) BHAIXZ
Rz SRR M A A RER

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had
the following material transactions with related parties

during the year:

2 R EEERIN

B 5 ¥ R B

. @A KL (F)

AEBERFARAEEH

EITETATEARARS :

2019 2018
—E-NF —ZT-)N\F
(US$°000) (US$'000)
(F%r) (F%5m)
Sale of goods to related mEAEE T HEE S (BIEEG))
parties (note (i))
ICRD SR EIEE 8,503 9,076
Huahong Zealcore* E 2,895 4,996
QST* BWERR 1,810 1,607
Huada* ER* - 44,589
Shanghai Huahong IC* B S E R = 14,536
Shanghai Belling* g8 = 4,919
Purchases of goods from related B EE S 5w (M)
parties (note (ii))
Shanghai Huali EgER 8,698 -
Hongri T H 7,171 7,567
ICRD SR B 867 -
NEC Management NEC management 773 748
Huahong Zealcore* QT B 476 651
Jitong 5B 66 98
Hylintek* BEGE - 13,183
Purchases of intangible assets BB E EREE (M)
from a related party (note (ii))
ICRD SR E R 3,150 -
Rental income from a related 8 R T ARSI A (B EEii))
party (note (iii))
Shanghai Huali g 13,139 13,448
Service fee charged by related RAEsE 7 WA AR TS & (M sE(iv))
parties (note (iv))
Wanbang? & B 2,461 -
Shanghai INESA* LEES 1,870 2,183
Huajin* gt 218 227
Huahong Real Estate EEXE 142 151
Nanyang Software? R 31 208
Rental expense charged by a related BB 5 U E Y FH € 5
party (note (iv, vi)) (B s (v ~ vi))
Huahong Real Estate* FEUT B - 1,670
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35. Related Party Transactions and Balances
(continued)

(b) Related party transactions (continued)

. BHMLRZ R &R (&)

(b) BBLXZ (&)

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
(US$’000) (US$'000)
(F%Rr) (F%T)
Interest expense charge by a related B85 U BRI A B 57 (BEaE(iv))
party (note (iv))
Huahong Real Estate B 832 -
Expense paid on behalf of a related B A RS (FEE(V))
party (note (v))
Shanghai Huali HBES 29,001 31,235
*  The related party transactions also constitute continuing t BB ZINEK LT ARIE

connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

These related party transactions with CEC's subsidiaries

disclosed above were conducted from 1 January 2018 to
26 October 2018.

Note (i)

Note (i)

Note (i)

Note (iv)

Note (v)

The sale of goods to related parties was made
according to the prices and terms agreed between the
related parties.

The purchases of goods and intangible assets from
related parties were made according to the prices and
terms offered by the related parties.

The rental income received from a related party was
based on the prices and terms agreed between the
related parties.

The rental expense, service fees and interest expense
charged by related parties were based on the prices
and terms agreed between the related parties.

The expense paid on behalf of the related party is
interest-free and repayable on demand.

Note (vii) The Group entered into a twenty-year lease in respect of

certain dormitory properties from Huahong Real Estate.
The amount of rent payable by the Group under the
lease is US$1,625,000 per year. With the initial adoption
of HKFRS 16, the Group recognized right-of-use assets
of US$16,922,000 and lease liabilities of US$17,049,000
for the operating lease on 1 January 2019. At 31
December 2019, the balances of those right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities were US$15,538,000 and
US$17,595,000, respectively. Before 1 January 2019,
the Group recognized rental expenses under operating
leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term
according to HKAS 17.

74A§/5ﬁﬁ,fﬂ7f7 BREXS o

© EXFEBRFAET TR

7k

TR X B LR =F—/1
F—H—HAZB-_ZF—NF+A
T NHER -

Biat()  [FIBSEE T H R E R TR
E2EHHE T 155 T B 18 R IR0

Biat(i) BB TR B A REE
BETIRIE B 7 1e a8
TERIEHEL ©

Biat(iil) KA BB T B 2 A TIAR
1EEABHHETT 17 7 BB 18 R 1K
FUER -

Kiat(iv) BB KR B - R
BB R FE B TR 1% E1 6
7ﬁﬁfﬁﬁ%&%mi

BiaE(v) BB 11 S BT 5

RBIZEKNEIE -

Hizt(vii) LB EZI ERTHEAY
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EETEMNNHE BEE
1,625,000% T ° #F B X
BB B R R E6
ﬁé FEFGR=F—1
F— F— HRjAE T B R
L%‘ﬁi’ # éﬁ?m 922,000

T RHE §/§77049000
Ex - R-F_hEf=
B=+—H ZEEAR

BERHBER B
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35. Related Party Transactions and Balances 5. @BH ARG R (&)
(continued)
(c) Outstanding balances with related parties (c) EERANES ZRIMKREFERE
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\F
(US$’000) (US$'000)
(F%r) (F=%=mT)
Long-term prepayments to related  FE{ BaESE 5 &= ERFE R 0B
parties
Shanghai Huali EgER 6,808 6,920
ICRD SN BRI = 1,827
6,808 8,747
Amounts due from related parties  FEUSREEE T 3XIE
ICRD £k E R AR 5,818 519
Shanghai Huali EBEN 2,712 7,841
QST BWERX 373 164
Huahong Zealcore BT 341 558
Shanghai INESA LEES 18 =
Huahong Real Estate BB - 1,718
9,262 10,800
Amounts due to related parties JE 1<t BEES 5 5B
Shanghai Huali EgER 7,674 4,185
Wanbang B 700 =
Shanghai INESA HEEE 685 352
Hongri TH 548 101
ICRD SEXEBIEE 521 576
Huahong Zealcore AT 239 256
NEC Management NEC Management 158 191
Huahong Real Estate EM B 86 148
Jitong Bl 24 7
QST BERK 18 18
Huajin =48 2 -
Nanyang Software FEF B - 4
10,655 5,838
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35. Related Party Transactions and Balances 5. @A R F R (&)
(continued)
(d) Compensation of key management personnel of the (d) XEEFXEEEAENHS
Group
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
(US$’000) (US$000)
(F%=5r) (F=5T)
Short term employee benefits el =il 4,007 3,686
Pension scheme contributions RN FT B3R 60 60
Equity-settled share option expense JAMEzRASE HIEERYFERT X 952 299
Total compensation paid to key SN FEEEBEABNMSEEE
management personnel 5,019 4,045
Further details of directors’ remuneration are included in BEHME—TFFBEERNY B
note 8 to the financial statements. KMIFES ©
36. Financial Instruments by Category 36. ZERIESHERMTI A
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial ZEReRITARRERRNEREEBEN
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as TS 8
follows:
Financial assets — at amortised cost EEEE — T
2019 2018
—B-NF —TN\F
(US$’000) (US$'000)
(F=7t) (F=5T)
Trade and notes receivables B S RWHIBERENER 164,968 176,797
Financial assets included T ATERFRIE « E A EWGRIE R
in prepayments, other receivables HihEENEREE ([322)
and other assets (note 22) 6,044 3,727
Due from related parties JiE Wt Bt 75 SR IE 9,262 10,800
Restricted and time deposits BR A N EHITER 70,776 337
Cash and cash equivalents e RIRESEEY 476,286 777,000
727,336 968,661
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36. Financial Instruments by Category 36. ZERETHNEMT A (&)
(continued)
Financial assets — at fair value through other comprehensive THEE —ZRTEFARMEEHK
income without recycling to profit or loss a (TEEHFIABz)
2019 2018
—B-NF —ETN\F
(US$’000) (US$'000)
(F%=5r) (F=7T)
Equity investments designated at fair B BIEATEF AR M2
value through other comprehensive AR E
income 207,689 208,357
Financial assets — at fair value through profit or loss THEE — ZA-FEGAERD
2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
(US$°000) (US$000)
(F%5x) (F=mT)
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEGFABENCRIEE
profit or loss 519,779 667,033
Financial liabilities — at amortised cost TEE F — AR
2019 2018
—E-hF —F-N\F
(US$’000) (US$'000)
(F%=5t) (F=7T)
Trade payables B S IR 86,119 79,470
Financial liabilities included in other ST A EAth A 7R0E R E (L &
payables and accruals (note 25) wEraE (fizE2es) 227,497 102,269
Interest-bearing bank borrowings TRIRITER 25,802 30,598
Lease liabilities HEARE 18,616 =
Due to related parties F& < RS 75 kI8 10,655 5,838
368,689 218,175

2019F FZ ¥R ANNUAL REPORT 2019 o ZFEHTE8HR A E HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 293



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br 75 R R B

31 December 2019
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

37. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of

J7.ETMITENAFERAFE

Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

=

ARESHIA (FRERAERAY
EABIRENSBIA) OEAERA
FEBFIT

Carrying amounts Fair values
FREE AYE
2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-hFE ZEN\EFE ZE-hF ZE-N\F
(US$’000)  (US$'000) (US$'000)  (US$000)
(F=x) (FZ=T) (FZ%Ex) (F=m1)
Financial assets ERMEE
Equity investments designated at 185 &IRAF(E
fair value through other FFAEMEE
comprehensive income W KRR A & 207,689 208,357 207,689 208,357
Financial assets at fair value BAHERT AR
through profit or loss e REE 519,779 667,033 519,779 667,033
727,468 875,390 727,468 875,390
Financial liabilities cHeE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5+ E8R1T{EX 25,802 30,598 23,079 26,246
Lease liabilities HERE 18,616 - 18,616 -
44,418 30,598 41,695 26,246

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, restricted and time deposits, trade and
notes receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets, trade payables,
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals,
amounts due from/to related parties and the current portion
of interest-bearing bank borrowings and lease liabilities
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short
term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance department reports directly to the
chief financial officer. At each reporting date, the finance
department analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the
chief financial officer. The valuation process and results are
discussed with the board of directors annually for annual
financial reporting.

EEEDHERSMASEEY  BR
BEERER - B 5 RUGRIE M E W
£ - sEABRNFIR - A RUGRIE R
HEENSREE - EHRNFA -
SAARMMENFELEGRERNSRE
& - U eI R 5 SR - GHER
TERMEHEREN RS MO AF
B WEHREKHERES  T2EAH
RzFETAGREHREE -

AEEETAMBEESENW A
EETERIAQRFEAENRER
B o MBHERAMBAERS - X
EREAH MBHBOMERTANE
BEEHVEFHETERNEEH AR
& HERMFREEZRIE - {E
BREMMERHESFEEFIR— A U
ETEEMHR -
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37. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of 7. eI AENAFERLAFE
Financial Instruments (continued) B (&)
The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are S HEERABHATERRERHES
included at the amount at which the instrument could be BB 5 (M3kwasEREeE) ma
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, THEBITAEMNSEYE - G AFEE
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following THE AT EREBE -
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:
The fair values of equity investments designated at fair value EEARATES AL MEEmIISEIR
through other comprehensive income have been estimated A& N EEREATEEEE o (45
using the market approach. If there is a recent deal regarding AR SEBA FTHIRE » AFET
the unlisted investments, the fair values are estimated based HENXSEBEE - 4 EZER S a4t
on the dealing price. If there is no such deal to be referenced, S BEERETE . EE . ZEH
the directors will determine comparable public companies RERETOEE FRAT (F1T) -
(peers) based on industry, size, leverage and strategy, and BMERENER A RAFEEY
to calculate an appropriate price multiple, such as price to B EBRES . MHER ((TEX)) £
book value (“P/B") multiple, for each comparable company B o ZEHVIRA A NG DB
identified. The multiple is calculated by dividing the enterprise BEBRLCEEERSE - XS 8EEEIRIE
value of the comparable company by net assets. The trading NAEEBER R AR IE B EREE
multiple is then discounted for considerations such as FLABREE o BRI EUEAN IE F TR
illiquidity based on company-specific facts and circumstances. A AEFEENENTEE &5
The discounted multiple is applied to the corresponding net Zoa s A ARA B RS AR S R B (B T
assets of the unlisted equity investments to measure the fair FrEAEAAFEEUNNSALMEE
value. The directors believe that the estimated fair values WHH AT EHRBESHESTE  MRR
resulting from the valuation technique, which are recorded LHIRHEESANRY -

in the consolidated statement of financial position, and the
related changes in fair values, which are recorded in other
comprehensive income, are reasonable, and that they were the
most appropriate values at the end of the reporting period.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represent WAFESF A BRI EESEP R
wealth management products issued by banks in Mainland NHSRITR /T E R - AEERIE
China. The Group has estimated their fair value by using a BREUESHERBREY T ENTIEF X
discounted cash flow valuation model based on the market HEMEBES REHEERGEE AT
interest rates of instruments with similar terms and risks. =D

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-bearing HERTESILESABNIEREIT G
bank borrowings and lease liabilities have been calculated BATEEBEAESRLIER =
by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates FER R FAS RS T AERNIRA R
currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk RELIATEEA R RIS REMEE - A&
and remaining maturities. The changes in fair value as a result B GERE R—E—hhFE+-_F=
of the Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-bearing +—HREEE SR ARTEZRES
bank borrowings and lease liabilities as at 31 December 2019 BETBYBRRMERN AFBEESHT
were assessed to be insignificant. RENRX °
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37. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of 37.eMIT AN A FERLAFE

Financial Instruments (continued)

Fair value hierarchy
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Financial assets measured at fair value
31 December 2019

& (&)

AFEBR
TRERAZESBIANATEN S
AR

A FEGTEN 2 HEE
—ZE-AF+=A=+—H

Fair value measurement categorised into

PEAUTERzATENE
Level 2 Level 3 Total
E28% £33 st
(US$’000) (US$’000) (US$°000)
(F%r) (F%r) (F%r)

Level 1
FE1R
(US$’000)
(F=3x)
Equity investments designated at 5 AR A F{EzFA
fair value through other Hiv 2
comprehensive income IR AR E =
Financial assets at fair value BAFE AR
through profit or loss HEemEE -

207,689 207,689

519,779 519,779

727,468 727,468

31 December 2018

“E-N\Ft+-A=t—H

Fair value measurement categorised into

SERUTER AFEZ
Level 2 Level 3 Total
Eof E3R #st
(US$'000) (US$'000) (US$'000)
(F%=7T) (F=7T) (F=7T)

Level 1
E1R
(US$'000)
(F%5T)
Equity investments designated EEAEREATERTA
at fair value through other Hiv 2
comprehensive income R AR E =
Financial assets at fair value BAFER AR
through profit or loss e REE -

2,384 205,973 208,357

= 667,033 667,033

2,384 873,006 875,390

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 (2018: Nil). There
was a transfer from Level 2 to Level 3 for an equity investment
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
with a carrying amount of US$2,384,000 as at 31 December
2019 (2018: Nil).

RER - BIREZ2HE AT EFEZ
M EER (22— N\F: &) RN
E-AF+-_A=+—B REEA
2,384,000 LW 6 FE BIE A FEFT A
Hh 2R BRARE 8 Fo4 8 A
FIF(ZE—N\F : &) o
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37. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of
Financial Instruments (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The recurring fair value measurement for the Group’s financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss was performed using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) as at 31 December
2019 and 2018. Below is a summary of the valuation

techniques used and the key input to the valuation:

7. I EN LAY ERLAFE

& (&)

DFEER (8)

AEBRAFEFABRSNERHEEN
BYAFEAEDER _T-NAFR=
E-N\F+t-_A=+—BHNEXTHEH
Rig AR (£34) fFl - TXRMAE

PRAMERM R EZ/ABIBEME -

Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair

technique unobservable input Range value to the input

AEHBABE

fEER EATAREZRAYE EE ZBBE

Equity investments designated 157 ARAT{E  Valuation multiples  Average P/B multiple of 2019: 0.2x-5.5x 5% (2018:5%)
at fair value through other FAHMEE peers 2018:0.6x-3.7x  increase/decrease
comprehensive income W IR AR & would result in
increase/decrease

in fair value by 5%

(2018: 5%)

ETEAEE RFTHmERE —Z-NE: 5% (ZF-\&:

0.2x55x  5%) M,/ WD

“E-N\§: BEBATE

0.6x-3.7x B/ Be%

(ZB-N\¥: 5%)

Discount for iliquidity 2019: 20%-30% 5% (2018: 5%)

2018: 20%-30% increase/decrease

would result in

decreasefincrease

in fair value by 5%

(2018: 5%)

Rz mBaTEE —Z-NE: 5% (ZF-N\&:

20%-30%  5%) HE,/

“E-N\E: N

20%-30% B /5%

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

BATE A B2 Discounted cash flow

/N
)

ERAE

method

BRASREE

Discount rate per annum  2019: 3.55%-3.80%
2018: 4.10%-4.30%

FRR R “T-hE:
3.55%-3.80%
“E-N\E
4.10%-4.30%

(ZE—N\F :5%)

5% (2018: 5%)
increase/decrease
would result in
decreasefincrease
in fair value by 0.01%
(2018: 0.02%)

5% (ZB—\% :
5%) B/ R
KEHATE

H /E100.01%
(ZF-NE:
0.02%)
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37. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of 7.eWMIAENAFERAFE
Financial Instruments (continued) B (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AFEER (K)
The movements in financial assets categorised into Level 3 FAPERERNEMEEZ SN
during the year are as follows: ahs:
Equity
investments
designated
at fair value Financial
through other assets at fair
comprehensive value through
income profit or loss
EERRDY

Bt ARMZE BAFERA
BANBRAEE BRaNoREE

(US$°000) (US$°000)
(F%r) (F%r)
At 1 January 2018 R-ZZ—-N\E—HA—H 215,487 -
Purchases BEE = 1,959,653
Disposals RE - (1,279,352)
Total gains recognized in the statement RIEZRERT AR MBI A
of profit or loss included in other RS e R
income and gains - 15,612
Total gains recognized in other RE A 2 S R
comprehensive income I s 458 864 -
Exchange realignment & H (10,378) (28,880)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 R —ZE—N\F+-_A=+—H
E=—F2—NF—H—H 205,973 667,033
Transfer from Level 2 B SR 2,384 =
Purchases BE = 2,532,504
Disposals BE - (2,689,442)
Total gains recognized in the statement RERRERT AR MBI A
of profit or loss included in other P eatiollEaTEtL]
income and gains - 23,989
Total gains recognized in other RE A 2 R
comprehensive income I as 458 2,708 =
Exchange realignment & H (3,376) (14,305)
As at 31 December 2019 RZZE—hhFE+=-_A=+—H 207,689 519,779
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38. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank
loans, cash and short term deposits. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities, such as trade and other receivables and trade and
other payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. These
exposures arise from sales or purchases by its significant
subsidiary operating in Mainland China in US$ other than the
subsidiary’s functional currency, which is RMB. During the year,
approximately 41% (2018: 43%) of the Group’s sales were
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency
of the subsidiary making the sale, whilst 71% (2018: 59%) of
costs of sales were denominated in the subsidiary’s functional
currency.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
RMB exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of

31 December 2019
—E-NF+=-A=1+—8H

B 5 ¥ R B

38. H¥EREEEEREEK

e

AEENTIESRTIABERTE
R BREREHEFER - ZFERTHE
MEIBEARIRARENEESHEE
T AREBZREERBHEEEELW
HiveREERAR  WEHREME
WK TR A R B 5 e B Al FE S 5RO -

AEESH T AMELNEERR S
ek ERRRERBDESRER - B
Fere i EEESEZFRAKRK
R BEABEBAR T

ShiEE R B

AEEEBRZINERR - ZERBE
FEEAEPBEAMMLENEEFRFIN
EETHES  MUIFELEINEEER
AREHETT - RFR - AEBERNIEER
RA41% (ZF—)\F : 43%) JhLAi#E
ITHERNTARIMINEEE B I B
FHE - BUEEE  HERART7T1% (=
T—N\F :590%) JIAFRARIMNMEE

Be &
HsaHE -
TRETERA S B RS TR NS

AT RBERRAREHRIESN (A
REBEERABRAFEZS) AR

the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value IE XSGR g B EHBURE -
of monetary assets and liabilities):
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit
in USS$ rate before tax
EnEXR B AT =R
®m, i) &GRS
(US$°000) (US$°000)
(FZ=r) (FZ%r)
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-_Z—h&+-_A=+—H
LIEFE
If US$ weakens against RMB WETHARBRE 5% (10,844)
If US$ strengthens against RMB fifZETH AREHE (5%) 10,844
Year ended 31 December 2018 Bz Z—\&+_-_A=+—H
IEFE
If US$ weakens against RMB WETH AR E 5% (26,809)
If US$ strengthens against RMB HETHAREFE (5%) 26,809

L L J
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38.

300

31 December 2019

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk
from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables).

The Group trades only with recognized and creditworthy third
parties and related parties. It is the Group’s policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure
to bad debts is not significant.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade and
notes receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets, amounts due from related
parties and restricted and time deposits included in the
consolidated statement of financial position represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets. The Group has no other financial assets which
carry significant exposure to credit risk.

Further qualitative and quantitative information regarding
trade receivables, for which the Group applies the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs under HKFRS 9, is disclosed in
note 21 to the financial statements.

All the carrying amounts of financial assets at amortised cost,
applying the general approach under HKFRS 9, are classified
as Stage 1 in terms of ECLs as at 31 December 2019 in
addition to the fully impaired other receivables classified as
Stage 3, as stated in note 22 to the financial statements.

.U BEAREEEEREXK

(%)

= RE kg
ERRREHFITEIBITERIAS
BEPANETEEMSI RS RIBRZE
o ARBEERKEELLEH (X2
REZRWEIR) NERRR

AEEREERITREERTINE=FH
MM ARS - NEBBBERRE @ AT
EREEAFARINEFHEBRBE
AZERRF o 1IN - RSB R
BEMEITER  MAEBHNZEERERR
WARERK o

HEVBARRARE RIREFEY
EE )L CEV YL ES: VG WNEIE
B HERREREBEEN SR E
B~ FEURRERESE 5 FRIE A K BOR & K
FHRHNEAESARENESREEMN
HERHRAERRR - ARELEH
FEEXEAERNEREE

BRAEZRURNE—FTEERTEE
BR (AEERER BV BHRELERIFE
IR ERAMILTTEZAERBEERE
1B) RPBHRME2NARE -

B BEREAMEL2AME S BERE=
FEERMNE2HERENEMEETIA -
BRBERAGENEREENKREE
(REBEF BV HEREERFOIRER—R
WE)R—F-—NAF+-_A=1T—HHK
HHMEEBEIBERE R -
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Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to monitor regularly the current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

requirements in the short and long term.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

31 December 2019
—E-NF+=-A=1+—8H

B 5 ¥ R B

B.UKEABRMEEAERKE
(&)

RBE SRR

AEBNBRATERERR K RBHR
HESFR  URRERTHENRESH
BRRETEZSBEBERSEANRE K
ERE  AERGEEHLEHRDES

=S

RBEHR - AEESHABRESLD
RAERNFOBIREROT -

On Less than 3to 1to Over
demand 3 months 12 months 5 years 5 years Total
S
31 December 2019 REXR PR=EA +=BA —-ZEIF "HFUE st
—E-hE+=ZHA=+—H (US$°000) (US$’000) (US$'000) (US$000) (US$’000) (US$’000)
(Fxx) (F%xx) (F£x) (F%Fx) (FEr) (FER)
Interest-bearing bank FHEBRITIER
borrowings - - 4,597 17,872 4,339 26,808
Lease liabilities MEaE - 2,263 629 6,447 15,153 24,492
Trade payables B Z IR 13,106 73,013 = = = 86,119
Financial liabilities included 5t A E b {2 IA
in other payables and RE %A
accruals meEmaE 123,198 104,299 - - - 227497
Amounts due to related & 1) B 7 510
parties 10,655 - - - - 10,655
146,959 179,575 5,226 24,319 19,492 375,571
On Less than 3to 1to Over
demand 3 months 12 months 5 years 5 years Total
=
31 December 2018 REk PR=@A +ZEA —ERF A"FHUE st
T )\F+=—BA=1+—H (US$'000) (US$'000) (US$000) (US$000) (US$000) (US$000)
(F%rx) (F%x) ((FEx) (FEx) (FEx) (FEx)
Interest-bearing bank HBRITIER
borrowings - - 4,725 18,376 8,873 31,974
Trade payables B Z IR 15,053 64,417 = = = 79,470
Financial liabilities included 5t A E b ZIAE
in other payables and RE{HE A
accruals =l 102,269 - - = - 102,269
Amounts due to related JE 1< BB B 75 108
parties 5,838 - - - - 5,838
123,160 64,417 4,725 18,376 8,873 219,551
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38. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios to support its business
and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the year.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by total equity plus net debt. The Group includes,
within net debt, trade payables, other payables and accruals,
interest-bearing bank borrowings, lease liabilities and amounts
due to related parties, less cash and cash equivalents. The
gearing ratios as at the end of each of the reporting periods
were as follows:

B BEBREEEREREX

(&)

BEXxER
AEEEAEENEEARS  #EAX
SENFECERI MERRIFNER
R UXFHEEBRERRREESR
KAE e

AR B AR O R B E R R A
HAREH - AEBRBLARLEHE -
AEE R HLEATRROBRE - @
BRI E AT TH - ARETE
SN EARBFBRR - RN
P AEEEREANEE  BERIE
B (R -

AEENEERBLRERER  BE
BELRRFAERAEREEINER
Bt HE - AREKEZEMNFR - Hitp
ENFALREGHER - FHRRITER
HEAEARENEET FAENRES
RREEEMFAFEE - EREPR
MEERBLLERMT

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

+=A=+—-H +=ZA=+—H

(US$000) (US$'000)

(F%r) (F=5T)

Trade payables B SN RIA 86,119 79,470
Other payables and accruals (note 25) HibERIENEGER

(Fftsr25) 270,365 138,109

Interest-bearing bank borrowings T RRITER 25,802 30,598

Lease liabilities HEaE 18,616 =

Amounts due to related parties FE <t BE S 5 TR I 10,655 5,838

Less: Cash and cash equivalents B ReRREEEY (476,286) (777,000)

Net debt FEE (64,729) (522,985)

Total equity Wi e 3,082,592 2,704,332

Capital and net debt BRKEFAE 3,017,863 2,181,347

Gearing ratio BEAMGBHE (2.14%) (23.98%)
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39. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of

emione o B IEERAR B EE

9. ZFEREMBRMTE

Cash Flows
(a) Major non-cash transactions (a) FBIFAERH
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to RERN - REBEFEEA E]
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of US$1,233,000 EYMEEBNEE ﬁ?‘#ﬁ@ E‘iﬁﬁ
and US$1,233,000, respectively, in respect of lease EEERHEEAGD #iﬁfi\ NE
arrangements for offices and dormitory properties (2018: 1,233,000 J© &1 ,233,000% 7T
Nil). (ZZ—N\F ,ﬂﬁ) o
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities are (b) BBEBMEENAGBESHNOT -
as follows:
Interest Dividend
Interest- payable payable
bearing included included
bank in other in other Lease
borrowings payables payable liabilities
st A st AEf
e Ef5E
FERTER MWEARR WERRE HEAR
(US$'000)  (USS'000)  (USS'000)  (US$'000)
(F£x) (F%n) (F%n) (F%7n)
As at 1 January 2018 RZZ-N\F
—A 92,890 66 13 -
Changes from financing cash flows E ﬁi,%,,ﬁ vt (60,613) (2,259) (41,066) -
Interest expense g - 2,203 - -
Final 2017 dividend payable
- - 41,095 -
Foreign exchange movement (1,679) - (20) -
As at 31 December 2018 and 1 January
2019 as previously reported
(mseAI25]) 30,598 10 22 -
Impact of adopting HKRFS 16 (note 2.2) RREANRRE
’EH‘]%&F )
72 (Wif22) - - - 17,882
As 1 January 2019 as restated RIZ-NE
—A—H (&5) 30,598 10 2 17,882
Changes from financing cash flows REESHEREY (4,332) (360) (50,963) (975)
Interest expense Gills Bﬂ}z = 358 = 884
Final 2018 dividend declared REREE=Z—\F
4] = = 50,772 =
New Leases %ﬂﬁ‘* - - - 1233
Foreign exchange movement ANESR (464) 1 196 (408)
As at 31 December 2019 R-Z-NE
+=A=+-H 25,802 9 21 18,616

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement

of cash flows is as follows:

(c) HEREMILAR

AR eRERMNAERSRLA
UK

2019
— i
(US$’000)
(F%r)

Within operating activities
Within financing activities

I 1,625
SEENA 975

~

RN
i
TH THA

2,600
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40. Partly-Owned Subsidiary With Material
Non-Controlling Interests

Details of the Group’s subsidiary that has material

W0.FERFEREZZHFEE

FAFE

AEBARBERFERERZIFEZET

non-controlling interests are set out below: NAIZFHBEWT -
2019 2018
—F-hF —E—N\F
Percentage of interest held by IR R A R R
non-controlling interests 49% 43.5%

Hua Hong Wuxi FEAT 45

Pursuant to the Investment Agreement, capital injection to Hua
Hong Wuxi has been scheduled into four instalments. As at 31
December 2019, all the four instalments have been fully paid
and the proportion of the injected capital attributable to the

non-controlling shareholders was 49%.

The board of directors is the supreme governing body for Hua
Hong Wuxi, in which non-controlling shareholders hold three
seats out of seven. Therefore, the proportion of voting rights is
different from that of the ownership interest above and remains

constant regardless of the instalment of capital injection.

RIEIE Hed - A5 EE AR
DHET RE—NF+ZA=+—
H - WEFEHEHT B FFERIRTE

EE LB A49% ©

EZeRBUEINRSEERE &
TRERAK - EF=REFTRIIFER
BIR o EE - RERL AR L Fr
BRERLD  BERIBESESH

AR I RF T -

2019 2018
—g-nE —F-NF
(US$000) (US$'000)
(F%x) (F=m1)
(Loss)/profit for the year allocated to DEEEIEERER 2 FA
non-controlling interests: (E518), %7 -
Hua Hong Wuxi 9T 4745 (7,252) 2,450
Accumulated balances of non-controlling ¥4 B BIFEVRAGRE RS Bt 4564 ¢
interests at the reporting date:
Hua Hong Wuxi T MRS 837,351 549,076
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31 December 2019

—E-NF+-A=1+—H /E\Zl-i%iﬁ'%% Mq-%I

40. Partly-Owned Subsidiary With Material Non- 40.

Controlling Interests (continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information of the above subsidiary. The amounts disclosed

are before any inter-company eliminations:

BEXRFEREZZHZE
FoF (&)

TERBAFRRNMBER - AREZ
SRR AREEFEN 228

Hua Hong Wuxi Hua Hong Wuxi

B gT =T 55

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

(US$°000) (US$'000)

(F%r) (F=5T)

Revenue SHEIA 7414 -

Other income HABYA 45,443 16,328

Total expenses Fs 48 %8 (68,311) (13,315)

(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive FR (F8)/ #AREE

(loss)/income for the year (E518) MWasiage (15,454) 3,013

Current assets BB E 953,970 1,163,234

Non-current assets EmBEE 1,028,097 146,210

Current liabilities mENAE (273,049) (47,210)

Non-current liabilities EmBEE (138) -

Net cash flows used in operating activities & FEFTAEEREF5 (36,447) (2,935)

Net cash flows used in investing activites ~ HEGEEFFERS RS S5 (702,045) (795,227)

Net cash flows from financing activities BB EEPTSIR &R 2558 500,000 1,300,000

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net JMNEERE BT E - JF5E (10,784) (12,115)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash ~ I|/&KIFLZEY CHd ),/

equivalents EANFEEE (249,276) 489,723

41. Event After the Reporting Period M. HEHERSE

There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the

Group after 31 December 2019.

AEER_F-AFt+-_A=1t—H81%
BB EMEAMRER -
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31 December 2019
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

42. X B B A B IR L R

42. Statement of Financial Position of the
Company

BRAARRIHRE MR HARRNKER

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

o

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
+=ZA=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
(US$°000) (US$000)
(F=mr) (F=71)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RERF A 1,967,608 1,959,862
Total non-current assets EMEVEEARR 1,967,608 1,959,862
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Trade and notes receivables B S RBGRIA R EREE 5,684 6,666
Prepayments, other receivables and TAfRRIE - Efth U FRIE
other assets REMEE 1,850 107
Due from a subsidiary iGN ] 998 998
Restricted and time deposits ERE K EEFR 27 22
Cash and cash equivalents B4 RIBESEEY 13,020 19,792
Total current assets BN EELTE 21,579 27,585
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Other payables and accruals HiENRIEREHER 264 1,250
Due to subsidiaries AT RARRIEA 94,693 95,010
Total current liabilities mENaERRE 94,957 96,260
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAEFHE (73,378) (68,675)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHERARBAERS
LIABILITIES 1,894,230 1,891,187
Net assets BEE 1,894,230 1,891,187
EQUITY s
Share capital A& 7N 1,966,095 1,960,159
Reserves (note) A (PEE) (71,865) (68,972)
Total equity EREE 1,894,230 1,891,187
Suxin Zhang JunYe
IR/ ik
Director Director
EZE EZE
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42. Statement of Financial Position of the

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2019
—E-NF+=-A=1+—8H

Company (continued)

B 5 ¥ R B

42. KR A MR AR (F)

Note: Wit -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AATIRREER RO T -
Share
Other option Accumulated
reserve reserve losses Total
Hitf#E - BRERE ZitEE st
(US$°000) (US$’000) (US$°000) (US$°000)
(F%=r) (F%r) (F%=r) (F%m)

As at 1 January 2018 W_ZE—-N\FE—HF—H (68,260) 7,083 (3,427) (64,604)
Profit for the year FRHEF] - - 37,203 37,203
Final 2017 dividend declared S5 R-ZE—+FRE = = (41,095) (41,095)
Equity-settled share option DA G E AR R

arrangements - 1,298 - 1,298
Issue of shares BITRRAD - (1,774) - (1,774)
At 31 December 2018 and R-ZZE—N\F+-_A=+—H

1 January 2019 k—ZE—-hE—A—B (68,260) 6,607 (7,319) (68,972)
Profit for the year FEREF] - - 41,767 41,767
Final 2018 dividend declared H#EER-Z—/\FRE = = (50,772) (50,772)
Equity-settled share option LA G E BB R

arrangements - 7,746 - 7,746
Issue of shares BITIRD = (1,634) = (1,634)
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZE—hAF+-_A=+—8H (68,260) 12,719 (16,324) (71,865)

43. Approval of the Financial Statements 43. BI ISR AVt E

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 26 March 2020.

T REERN—_E-_EE=H=1+/<H
EEEod i RIRETE -
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AFMBEERE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and TCET AN R E R A BE B B R R A
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, UREE BERFERERONE - 56
as extracted from the published audited financial statements, is set ER RS 8 B TR EZVBWE -

out below.

Year ended 31 December
BZEt-A=t-HLFE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-NE BN\ ZE—+tF ZEF ZE-hfF
(US$’000)  (US$000)  (US$000)  (USE000)  (US$000)
(F£r) (Fxm) (F2r) (FFn)  (FE)

RESULTS E
REVENUE HEWA 932,567 930,268 808,148 721,428 650,131
Cost of sales HERA (650,107)  (619,114)  (540,971)  (501,080)  (448,705)
Gross profit EF 282,460 311,154 267 177 220,348 201,426
Other income and gains Hip A\ R Mz 69,091 43,613 24,394 34,761 42 717
Fair value gain on an investment property R & MEMN A FEUE 163 247 89 72 58
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (8,828) (7,771) (7,232) (6,814) (7,292)
Administrative expenses ERER (169,796)  (122,323)  (108,673)  (97,404)  (104,855)
Other expenses Hit &M (406) (11,106) (10,712) (666) 9)
Finance costs BMISEBH (1,242) (2,203) (2,178) (3,873) (7,754)
Share of profit of an associate MME—FKEENFER] 10,131 9,444 9,622 7,056 961
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BATRA 181,573 221,055 172,487 153,480 125,252
Income tax expense FEHRAX (26,588) (35,447) (27,225) (24,648) (12,703)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRER 154,985 185,608 145,262 128,832 112,549
Attributable to: L‘AT%IEFEH =

Owners of the parent BREHEEA 162,237 183,158 145,262 128,832 112,549

Non-controlling interests 3H TR (7.252) 2,450 - - -

154,985 185,608 145,262 128,832 112,549

Year ended 31 December
BEt-A=t-HLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-hE 2B )N\F ZE—+tF 2R ZT-h%
(US$’000)  (US$000)  (US$000)  (US$000)  (US$000)
(F£x) (Fxx) (FEr)  (FFr) (FED

Total assets AEBE 3,613,303 3078274 2078306 1826664 1911733
Total liabilities et (530,711)  (373,942)  (383,101)  (337.978)  (421,043)
Non-controlling interests JEERRER (837,351)  (549,076) = = =

2,245241 2155256 1,695,205 1,488,686 1,490,690
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